KDBC Licensee, LLC Form S-4 December 06, 2013 Table of Contents

As filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 6, 2013

Registration No. 333-

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM S-4

REGISTRATION STATEMENT

UNDER

THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933

SINCLAIR BROADCAST GROUP, INC.

(Exact name of Registrants as Specified in their Charter)

Maryland

(State or Other Jurisdiction of Incorporation or Organization)

4833

(Primary Standard Industrial Classification Code Number) 52-1494660

(I.R.S. Employer Identification Number)

10706 Beaver Dam Road

Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030

(410) 568-1500

(Address, Including Zip Code, and Telephone Number, Including Area Code, of registrant s Principal Executive Offices)

SINCLAIR TELEVISION GROUP, INC.

(Exact name of Registrants as Specified in their Charter)

See Schedule A for Table of Additional Registrants

Maryland

(State or Other Jurisdiction of Incorporation or Organization)

4833

(Primary Standard Industrial Classification Code Number) 55-0829972

(I.R.S. Employer Identification Number)

10706 Beaver Dam Road

Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030

(410) 568-1500

(Address, Including Zip Code, and Telephone Number, Including Area Code, of registrant s Principal Executive Offices)

David D. Smith

Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer

Sinclair Television Group, Inc.

10706 Beaver Dam Road

Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030

(410) 568-1500

(Name, Address, Including Zip Code, and Telephone Number, Including Area Code, of Agent for Service)

With a copy to:

Jeffrey B. Grill, Esq.

Pillsbury Winthrop Shaw Pittman LLP 2300 N Street, NW Washington, D.C. 20037 (202) 663-8000

Approximate date of commencement of proposed exchange offer: As soon as practicable after the effective date of this registration statement.

If the securities being registered on this form are being offered in connection with the formation of a holding company and there is compliance with General Instruction G, check the following box. o

If this form is filed to register additional securities for an offering pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act, check the following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering.

If this form is a post-effective amendment filed pursuant to Rule 462(d) under the Securities Act, check the following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of large accelerated filer, accelerated filer and smaller reporting company in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

o Large accelerated filer

x Accelerated filer

o Non-accelerated filer
(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

o Smaller reporting company

CALCULATION OF REGISTRATION FEE

					Proposed			
	Proposed			Maximum				
			Maximum		Aggregate		Amount of	
Title of Each Class Amount to		Amount to	Offering Price		Offering		Registration	
of Securities to be Registered		be Registered	Per Note(1)		Price(1)		Fee	
6.375% Senior Notes due 2021	\$	350,000,000	100%	\$	350,000,000	\$	45,080	
Guarantee of the 6.375% Senior Notes due 2021(2)		N/A	N/A		N/A			

- (1) Estimated solely for the purpose of calculating the registration fee pursuant to Rule 457(f) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the Securities Act).
- (2) The 6.375% Senior Notes due 2021 are jointly and severally guaranteed, on a senior unsecured basis, by Sinclair Broadcast Group, Inc. (Sinclair), two of Sinclair s subsidiaries and all but one of the subsidiaries of Sinclair Television Group, Inc. See Schedule A for a table of registrant guarantors in addition to Sinclair.
- (3) Pursuant to Rule 457(n) under the Securities Act, no separate fee for the guarantees is required.

The registrants hereby amend this registration statement on such date or dates as may be necessary to delay its effective date until the registrants shall file a further amendment which specifically states that this registration statement shall thereafter become effective in accordance with Section 8(a) of the Securities Act of 1933 or until the registration statement shall become effective on such date as the Commission, acting pursuant to said Section 8(a), may determine.

Schedule A

TABLE OF ADDITIONAL REGISTRANT GUARANTORS

Exact Name of Registrant Guarantor as Specified in its Charter	State or Other Jurisdiction of Incorporation or Organization	Primary Standard Industrial Classification Code No.	I.R.S. Employer Identification No.	Address, including Zip Code, and Telephone Number, including Area Code, of Registrant Guarantor s Principal Executive Offices
Sinclair Broadcast Group, Inc.	Maryland	4833	52-1494660	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
WLFL, Inc.	Maryland	4833	52-1911462	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
Sinclair Media I, Inc.	Maryland	4833	52-1742771	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
WSMH, Inc.	Maryland	4833	52-1952880	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
WSTR Licensee, Inc.	Maryland	4833	52-1958895	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
WGME, Inc.	Maryland	4833	52-2050323	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
Sinclair Media III, Inc.	Maryland	4833	52-1836394	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
WTTO, Inc.	Maryland	4833	52-1836391	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
WTVZ, Inc.	Maryland	4833	52-1903498	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
KOCB, Inc.	Oklahoma	4833	73-1021304	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
WDKY, Inc.	Delaware	4833	61-1250982	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
WYZZ Licensee, Inc.	Delaware	4833	52-1959631	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
WSYX Licensee, Inc.	Maryland	4833	52-2100995	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
WTWC, Inc.	Maryland	4833	52-2149163	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
Sinclair Television of Nashville, Inc.	Tennessee	4833	62-0948016	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030

Edgar Filing: KDBC Licensee, LLC - Form S-4

				(410) 568-1500
Sinclair Acquisition VII, Inc.	Maryland	4833	52-2202776	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
Sinclair Acquisition VIII, Inc.	Maryland	4833	52-2202775	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
Sinclair Acquisition IX, Inc.	Maryland	4833	52-2202774	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
Sinclair Acquisition X, Inc.	Maryland	4833	52-2202779	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500

Montecito Broadcasting Corporation	Delaware	4833	33-0773615	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
New York Television, Inc.	Maryland	4833	52-2261453	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
KBSI Licensee L.P.	Virginia	4833	54-1762871	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
WMMP Licensee L.P.	Virginia	4833	54-1816156	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
WKEF Licensee L.P.	Virginia	4833	54-1762869	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
WICD Licensee, LLC	Maryland	4833	52-2149843	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
KGAN Licensee, LLC	Maryland	4833	52-2149845	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
WPGH Licensee, LLC	Maryland	4833	52-2115755	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
WCWB Licensee, LLC	Maryland	4833	52-2203568	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
Chesapeake Television Licensee, LLC	Maryland	4833	52-2115731	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030

Edgar Filing: KDBC Licensee, LLC - Form S-4

				(410) 568-1500
WLOS Licensee, LLC	Maryland	4833	52-2115696	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
WCGV Licensee, LLC	Maryland	4833	52-2115785	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
				(410) 568-1500

				Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
WLFL Licensee, LLC	Maryland	4833	52-2115786	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
WTWC Licensee, LLC	Maryland	4833	52-2149854	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
WDKY Licensee, LLC	Maryland	4833	52-2115782	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
WUPN Licensee, LLC	Maryland	4833	52-2203571	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
WCHS Licensee, LLC	Maryland	4833	52-2115763	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
Raleigh (WRDC-TV) Licensee, Inc.	Maryland	4833	25-1761433	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
WVTV Licensee, Inc.	Maryland	4833	51-0350913	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
WMSN Licensee, LLC	Nevada	4833	75-2976030	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
WUTV Licensee, LLC	Nevada	4833	75-2975851	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500

Edgar Filing: KDBC Licensee, LLC - Form S-4

WZTV Licensee, LLC	Nevada	4833	75-2975977	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
WTAT Licensee, LLC	Nevada	4833	03-0472770	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
		4		

				(410) 568-1500
KDSM, LLC	Maryland	4833	55-0829966	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
San Antonio Television, LLC	Delaware	4833	43-2067983	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
Sinclair Programming Company, LLC	Maryland	4833	54-2095223	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
WFGX Licensee, LLC	Nevada	4833	27-0086509	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
WNYS Licensee, LLC	Nevada	4833	20-4154219	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
Illinois Television LLC	Maryland	4833	45-5586210	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
KSAS Licensee, LLC	Nevada	4833	46-0649940	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
WKRC Licensee, LLC	Nevada	4833	46-0620031	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
WTTA Licensee, LLC	Nevada	4833	46-0553408	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500

Edgar Filing: KDBC Licensee, LLC - Form S-4

KEYE Licensee, LLC	Nevada	4833	45-3206684	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
WLWC Licensee, LLC	Nevada	4833	45-3206725	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
		5		

WPEC Licensee, LLC	Nevada	4833	45-3745087	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
WRGB Licensee, LLC	Nevada	4833	45-3745141	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
WLAJ Licensee, LLC	Nevada	4833	45-3745232	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
KFDM Licensee, LLC	Nevada	4833	45-3754130	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
WWHO Licensee, LLC	Nevada	4833	45-4540346	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
KRXI Licensee, LLC	Nevada	4833	46-2156931	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
WJAC Licensee, LLC	Nevada	4833	46-2194800	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
KVII Licensee, LLC	Nevada	4833	*	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
WACH Licensee, LLC	Nevada	4833	*	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
KTVO Licensee, LLC	Nevada	4833	*	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030

Edgar Filing: KDBC Licensee, LLC - Form S-4

				(410) 568-1500
KHQA Licensee, LLC	Nevada	4833	*	10706 Beaver Dam Road
				Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
ANDRA L'ANNA LL C	N 1	4022	*	1070(D D D L
VPBN Licensee, LLC	Nevada	4833	*	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030
				(410) 568-1500
		6		

				Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
WHOI Licensee, LLC	Nevada	4833	*	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
Chesapeake Television, Inc.	Maryland	4833	*	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
Chesapeake Media I, LLC	Nevada	4833	*	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
Fisher Properties, Inc.	Washington	4833	*	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
Sinclair Bakersfield Licensee, LLC	Nevada	4833	*	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
Sinclair Broadcasting of Seattle, LLC	Delaware	4833	*	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
Sinclair Idaho Falls Licensee, LLC	Nevada	4833	*	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
Sinclair Kennewick Licensee, LLC	Nevada	4833	*	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
Sinclair Lewiston Licensee, LLC	Nevada	4833	*	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500

Edgar Filing: KDBC Licensee, LLC - Form S-4

Sinclair Media of Idaho, LLC	Delaware	4833	*	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
				(410) 308-1300
Sinclair Media of Washington, LLC	Delaware	4833	*	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
		7		

				(410) 568-1500
Sinclair Radio of Seattle, LLC	Delaware	4833	*	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
Sinclair Seattle Licensee, LLC	Nevada	4833	*	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
Sinclair Television of Bakersfield, LLC	Delaware	4833	*	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
Sinclair Television of Portland, LLC	Delaware	4833	*	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
Sinclair Television of Washington, Inc.	Washington	4833	*	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
WJAC, Inc.	Pennsylvania	4833	*	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
Sinclair Television of Fresno, LLC	Delaware	4833	*	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
KFRE Licensee, LLC	Delaware	4833	*	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
KPTM Licensee, LLC	Delaware	4833	*	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500

Edgar Filing: KDBC Licensee, LLC - Form S-4

WOLF Licensee, LLC	Nevada	4833	*	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
WQMY Licensee, LLC	Nevada	4833	*	10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, Maryland 21030 (410) 568-1500
		8		

7D 1	1			_			
Tal	٦I	е	Λt	('	Λn	tei	1tc

The information in this prospectus is not complete and may be changed. We may not sell these securities until the registration statement filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission is effective. This prospectus is not an offer to sell these securities and it is not soliciting an offer to buy these securities in any state or other jurisdiction where the offer or sale is not permitted.

Subject to Completion, dated December 6, 2013

Prospectus

SINCLAIR TELEVISION GROUP, INC.

OFFER TO EXCHANGE

\$350,000,000 6.375% Senior Notes due 2021, registered under the Securities Act of 1933, for any and all outstanding 6.375% Senior Notes due 2021

Sinclair Television Group, Inc. (the Issuer) is offering to exchange, on the terms and subject to the conditions described in this prospectus and the accompanying letter of transmittal, 6.375% Senior Notes due 2021 that have been registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the Securities Act), for any and all of its outstanding unregistered 6.375% Senior Notes due 2021. We refer to the registered notes as the exchange notes, the unregistered, original notes as the original notes and the exchange notes and original notes, collectively, as the Notes. The Notes are guaranteed by Sinclair Broadcast Group, Inc., the Issuer s parent (Sinclair), two of Sinclair s subsidiaries and all but one of the Issuer s subsidiaries.

The exchange notes are substantially identical to the original notes, except that the exchange notes have been registered under the Securities Act and, therefore, will not bear any legend restricting their transfer and will not have rights to additional interest or registration rights. The exchange notes will represent the same debt as the original notes, and will be issued under the same indenture.

Edgar Filling. Nobbo Electrisce, ELO From O 4
We will exchange an equal principal amount of exchange notes for all original notes that you validly tender and do not validly withdraw before the exchange offer expires. The exchange offer expires at 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on , 2013, unless extended. We do not currently intend to extend the exchange offer. You may withdraw tenders of original notes at any time prior to the expiration of the exchange offer.
The exchange of original notes for exchange notes pursuant to the exchange offer will not be a taxable event for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Neither the Issuer nor any of its subsidiaries will receive any proceeds from the exchange offer.
We have not applied, and do not intend to apply, for listing of the exchange notes on any securities exchange or automated quotation system.
See the Risk Factors beginning on page 22 of this prospectus for a discussion of certain risks that you should consider in connection with this exchange offer.
Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of the exchange notes or passed upon the adequacy or accuracy of this prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.
The date of this prospectus is , 2013.
9

TABLE OF CONTENTS

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

MARKET AND INDUSTRY DATA

SUMMARY

RISK FACTORS

SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

CAPITALIZATION

USE OF PROCEEDS

THE EXCHANGE OFFER

DESCRIPTION OF THE EXCHANGE NOTES

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

MATERIAL U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS

LEGAL MATTERS

EXPERTS

INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

You should rely only on the information contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus. No one has been authorized to give any information or to make any representations, other than those contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus, in connection with any offer made by this prospectus. If anyone provides you with different or inconsistent information, you should not rely on it. We are offering to exchange the original notes for the exchange notes only in places where the exchange offer is permitted. Neither the delivery of this prospectus nor any sale or exchange made hereunder or thereunder shall, under any circumstances, create an implication that the information contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus is correct as of any time subsequent to its date. You should assume that the information appearing in this prospectus is accurate only as of the date on the front cover of this prospectus. The business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects of the Issuer may have changed since that date.

ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS

In this prospectus, unless otherwise specified or the context otherwise requires, we refer to Sinclair Television Group, Inc. as the Issuer. The Issuer is a direct, wholly-owned subsidiary of Sinclair Broadcast Group, Inc., which we refer to in this prospectus as Sinclair. The terms we, us and our refer to Sinclair and all of its subsidiaries, unless otherwise indicated or the context otherwise requires. Original notes refers to the \$350,000,000 aggregate principal amount of the Issuer s 6.375% Senior Notes due 2021, originally issued on October 11, 2013. Exchange notes refers to the Issuer s 6.375% Senior Notes due 2021, offered pursuant to this prospectus. The original notes and the exchange notes are sometimes referred to collectively as the notes.

Each broker-dealer that receives exchange notes for its own account pursuant to the exchange offer must acknowledge that it will deliver a prospectus in connection with any resale of such exchange notes. The letter of transmittal states that by so acknowledging and by delivering a prospectus, a broker-dealer will not be deemed to admit that it is an underwriter within the meaning of the Securities Act and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder. This prospectus, as it may be amended or supplemented from time to time, may be used by a broker-dealer in connection with resales of exchange notes received in exchange for original notes where such original notes were acquired by such broker-dealer as a result of market-making activities or other trading activities. We have agreed that, starting on the expiration date of the exchange offer and ending one hundred and eighty days after such date, this prospectus will be made available to any broker-dealer for use in connection with any such resale. See Plan of Distribution.

Any statements in this prospectus concerning the provisions of any document are not complete. Such references are made to the copy of that document filed or incorporated or deemed to be incorporated by reference as an exhibit to the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part or otherwise filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the SEC). Each statement concerning the provisions of any document is qualified in its entirety by reference to the document so filed.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

This prospectus contains and incorporates forward-looking statements. Any statements about our expectations, beliefs, plans, objectives, assumptions or future events or performance are not historical facts and may be forward-looking. These statements are often, but not always, made through the use of words or phrases like anticipate, estimate, plans, projects, continuing, ongoing, target, expects, managem we believe, we intend, we may, we will, we should, we seek, we plan, the negatives of those terms, and similar words or phrases. We forward-looking statements on our expectations, assumptions, estimates and projections about our business and the industry in which we operate as of the date of this prospectus. These forward-looking statements are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties that cannot be predicted, quantified or controlled and that could cause actual results to differ materially from those set forth in, contemplated by, or underlying the forward-looking statements. Statements in this prospectus and in documents incorporated by reference in this prospectus, including those set forth under the caption Risk Factors, describe factors, among others, that could contribute to or cause these differences.

Because the factors discussed in this prospectus or incorporated herein by reference could cause actual results or outcomes to differ materially from those expressed in any forward-looking statements made by us or on our behalf, you should not place undue reliance on any such forward-looking statements. Further, any forward-looking statement speaks only as of the date on which it is made, and we undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking statement or statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date on which such statement is made or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events, except as required by law. New factors emerge from time to time, and it is not possible for us to predict which will arise. In addition, we cannot assess the impact of each factor on our business or the extent to which any factor, or combination of factors, may cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in any forward-looking statements.

MARKET AND INDUSTRY DATA

Market and industry data and forecasts included in this prospectus have been obtained from independent industry sources. Although we believe these sources to be reliable, we have not independently verified the information obtained from these sources and we cannot assure you of the accuracy or completeness of such third party information. Forecasts and other forward-looking information obtained from these sources are subject to the same qualifications and uncertainties as the other forward-looking statements in this prospectus.

11

Table of Contents

SUMMARY

This summary highlights information contained elsewhere in this prospectus and therefore is not complete and does not contain all the information that you should consider before participating in this exchange offer. You should read this entire document carefully, including the information under the heading Risk Factors and the information and the financial statements and related notes included elsewhere or incorporated by reference in this prospectus.

Our Company

We are the largest diversified television broadcasting company in the United States by number of primary television stations that we own or to which we provide certain programming, operating or sales services. As of October 31, 2013, we owned, provided programming and operating services pursuant to local marketing agreements (each an LMA), or provided (or were provided) sales services pursuant to outsourcing agreements to 125 primary television stations in 60 markets. For the purpose of this registration statement, these 124 primary stations are referred to as our stations. As of October 31, 2013, our stations reach approximately 32% of U.S. television households (19% for purposes of the 39% Federal Communications Commission s (FCC s) ownership cap), and we are affiliated with all major networks.

Historically, we have had a mid-size market focus. However, as we announced concurrently with entering into definitive agreements to acquire certain television stations from Cox Media Group, which closed on May 1, 2013, and Barrington Broadcasting Group, which closed effective November 22, 2013, we have expanded our focus to include television stations in smaller markets. Our broadcast segment includes the following network affiliations as of October 31, 2013: FOX (36stations); MyNetworkTV (21 stations; as of September 2009, MyNetworkTV is no longer a network affiliation; however, it is branded as such); The CW (18 stations); ABC (13 stations); CBS (22 stations); NBC (8 stations); Azteca (1 station); Univision (5 stations); and one independent station. In addition, certain stations broadcast programming on second and third digital signals through network affiliation or program service arrangements with CBS (rebroadcasted content from other primary channels within the same market); The CW; MyNetworkTV; This TV; Weather Radar; The Weather Authority Network; Live Well Network; Antenna TV; Bounce Network; The Country Network; Retro TV; and Azteca, Telemundo and Estrella TV, Spanish-language television networks.

Recent Developments

Barrington Broadcasting Group. Effective November 22, 2013, Sinclair closed on its previously announced acquisition of 18 television stations owned by Barrington Broadcasting Group, LLC (Barrington) for \$370.0 million and entered into agreements to operate or provide sales services to another six stations. The 24 stations are located in 15 markets and reach 3.4% of the U.S. TV households. The acquisition was funded through cash on hand from a \$445 million draw under term loan A of our Bank Credit Agreement on October 3, 2013. Due to FCC ownership conflict rules, we sold our station in Syracuse, NY, WSYT (FOX), and assigned our local marketing agreement (LMA) and purchase option on WNYS (MNT) in Syracuse, NY to Bristlecone Broadcasting. We also sold our station in Peoria, IL, WYZZ (FOX) to Cunningham Broadcasting Corporation (CBC). In addition, the license assets of three stations were purchased by CBC (WBSF in Flint, MI and WGTU/WGTQ in Traverse City/Cadillac, MI) and the license assets of two stations were purchase by Howard Stirk Holdings (WEYI in Flint, MI and WWMB in Myrtle Beach, SC) to which we will provide services pursuant to shared services and joint sales agreements. Following the acquisition, WSTM (NBC) in Syracuse, NY, will continue to provide services to WTVH (CBS), which is owned by Granite Broadcasting, and receive services on WHOI in Peoria, IL from Granite Broadcasting. We have, however, notified Granite Broadcasting that we do not intend to renew these agreements in these two markets when they expire in March of 2017.

The Exchange Offer

The following is a brief summary of terms of the exchange offer covered by this prospectus. For a more complete description of the exchange offer, see The Exchange Offer.

Initial Offering of Original Notes

On October 11, 2013, the Issuer issued \$350,000,000 aggregate principal amount of 6.375% Senior Notes due 2021 to the initial purchasers in a private offering. The initial purchasers subsequently resold the original notes to qualified institutional buyers pursuant to Rule 144A under the Securities Act and to non-U.S. persons within the meaning of Regulation S under the Securities Act.

Registration Rights Agreement

Simultaneously with the initial sale of the original notes, the Issuer, the guarantors and the initial purchasers entered into a registration rights agreement for the exchange offer. The registration rights agreement requires, among other things, that the Issuer use commercially reasonable efforts to complete a registered exchange offer for the original notes or cause to become effective a shelf registration statement for resales of the original notes. This exchange offer is intended to satisfy the obligations under the registration rights agreement.

The Exchange Offer

Pursuant to the registration rights agreement, the Issuer is offering to exchange \$1,000 principal amount of its 6.375% Senior Notes due 2021, which have been registered under the Securities Act, for each \$1,000 principal amount of its currently outstanding 6.375% Senior Notes due 2021, which were offered without registration under the Securities Act in the initial offer. Both the exchange notes offered by this prospectus and the original notes are guaranteed by Sinclair, two of Sinclair s subsidiaries and all but one of the Issuer s subsidiaries.

Mechanics of the Exchange Offer

The Issuer will accept any and all original notes validly tendered and not withdrawn prior to 5:00~p.m., New York City time, on , 2013. Holders may tender some or all of their original notes pursuant to the exchange offer. Exchange notes will be issued only in denominations of \$2,000 and integral multiples of \$1,000 thereof. The form and terms of the exchange notes are the same as the form and terms of the original notes except that:

- the exchange notes have been registered under the Securities Act and will not bear any legend restricting their transfer; and
- the exchange notes bear a different CUSIP number than the original notes.

Resales

Based on interpretations of the staff of the SEC, we believe that the exchange notes issued in the exchange offer may be offered for resale, resold and otherwise transferred by you without compliance with the registration and prospectus delivery provisions of the Securities Act, provided that:

you are not a broker-dealer tendering notes acquired directly from us;

- you acquire the exchange notes in the ordinary course of your business;
- you are not participating, do not intend to participate, and have no arrangement or understanding with any person to participate, in the distribution of the exchange notes issued in the exchange offer; and
- you are not an affiliate, as defined in Rule 405 under the Securities Act, of ours.

If any of these conditions is not satisfied and you transfer any exchange notes issued to you in the exchange offer without delivering a prospectus meeting the requirements of the Securities Act or without an exemption from registration of your exchange notes from these requirements, you may incur liability under the Securities Act. The Issuer will not assume and will not

Table of Contents

indemnify you against any such liability.

Each broker-dealer that is issued exchange notes in the exchange offer for its own account in exchange for original notes, where such original notes were acquired by that broker-dealer as a result of market-making or other trading activities, must acknowledge that it will deliver a prospectus meeting the requirements of the Securities Act in connection with any resale of the exchange notes. See Plan of Distribution.

Expiration Date

The exchange offer will expire at 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on , 2013 , unless extended. The Issuer does not currently intend to extend the exchange offer.

Conditions to the Exchange Offer

The exchange offer is subject to certain customary conditions, including that it does not violate any applicable law or SEC staff interpretation.

Guaranteed Delivery Procedures

If you wish to tender your original notes and your original notes are not immediately available or you cannot deliver your original notes, the letter of transmittal or any other required documents, or you cannot comply with the applicable procedures under The Depository Trust Company $\ s\ (DTC\ s\)$ Automated Tender Offer Program, prior to the expiration date, you must tender your original notes according to the guaranteed delivery procedures set forth in this prospectus. See The Exchange Offer Procedures for Tendering Original Notes.

Procedures for Tendering Original Notes

If you wish to accept the exchange offer, you must complete, sign and date the letter of transmittal, or a facsimile of the letter of transmittal, in accordance with the instructions contained in this prospectus and in the letter of transmittal. You should then mail or otherwise deliver the letter of transmittal, or facsimile, together with the original notes to be exchanged and any other required documentation, to the exchange agent at the address set forth in this prospectus and in the letter of transmittal.

By executing the letter of transmittal, you will represent to the Issuer that, among other things:

- you, or the person or entity receiving the related exchange notes, are acquiring the exchange notes in the ordinary course of business;
- neither you nor any person or entity receiving the related exchange notes is engaging in or intends to engage in a distribution of the exchange notes within the meaning of the federal securities laws;
- neither you nor any person or entity receiving the related exchange notes has an arrangement or understanding with any person or entity to participate in any distribution of the exchange notes;
- neither you nor any person or entity receiving the related exchange notes is an affiliate of the Issuer, as defined in Rule 405 under the Securities Act;

- if you are a broker-dealer, you will receive the exchange notes for your own account in exchange for original notes acquired as the result of market making activities or other trading activities and that you will deliver a prospectus in connection with any resale of the exchange notes; and
- you are not acting on behalf of any person or entity that could not truthfully make these statements.

Alternatively, you may tender your original notes by following the procedures for book-entry delivery or by complying with the guaranteed delivery procedures each described in this prospectus. See The Exchange Offer Procedures for Tendering Original Notes.

Table of Contents

Special Procedures for Beneficial Owners

If you are the beneficial owner of book-entry interests and your name does not appear on a security position listing of DTC as the holder of the book-entry interests or if you are a beneficial owner of original notes that are registered in the name of a broker, dealer, commercial bank, trust company or other nominee and you wish to tender the book-entry interest or original notes in the exchange offer, you should contact the person in whose name your book-entry interests or original notes are registered promptly and instruct that person to tender on your behalf.

Effect of Not Tendering

Any original notes that are not tendered or that are tendered but not accepted will remain subject to restrictions on transfer. Since the original notes have not been registered under the Securities Act, they bear a legend restricting their transfer absent registration or the availability of a specific exemption from registration.

Interest on the Exchange Notes and the Original Notes

The exchange notes will bear interest from the most recent interest payment date to which interest has been paid on the original notes. Interest on the original notes accepted for exchange will cease to accrue upon the issuance of the exchange notes.

Withdrawal Right

Tenders of original notes may be withdrawn at any time prior to 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the expiration date by complying with the withdrawal procedures described in this prospectus. See The Exchange Offer Withdrawal of Tenders.

U.S. Federal Income Tax

Considerations

For a discussion of material U.S. federal income tax considerations relating to the exchange of original notes for exchange notes pursuant to the exchange offer, see Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations.

Use of Proceeds

The Issuer will not receive any proceeds from the issuance of exchange notes pursuant to the exchange offer. See Use of Proceeds.

Dissenters Rights

Holders of the original notes do not have any appraisal or dissenters rights in connection with the exchange offer.

Exchange Agent

U.S. Bank National Association, a national banking association organized under the laws of the United States of America will act as the exchange agent for the exchange offer.

15

Terms of the Exchange Notes

The following is a brief summary of the terms of the exchange notes. The financial terms and covenants of the exchange notes are the same as the original notes and both the original notes and the exchange notes are governed by the same indenture. For a more complete description of the terms of the exchange notes, see Description of the Exchange Notes.

Issuer Sinclair Television Group, Inc.

Notes Offered \$350,000,000 aggregate principal amount of 6.375% senior notes due 2021.

Maturity Date November 1, 2021.

Interest Payment Dates May 1 and November 1 of each year, beginning on May 1, 2014.

Guarantees The exchange notes initially will be fully and unconditionally guaranteed, jointly and severally, on a

senior unsecured basis, by Sinclair, two of Sinclair s subsidiaries and all but one of the Issuer s

subsidiaries. See Description of the Exchange Notes Note Guarantees.

Ranking The exchange notes will be senior unsecured obligations of the Issuer and will:

• be senior in right of payment to all of the Issuer s existing and future indebtedness that is expressly subordinated in right of payment to the exchange notes;

- rank equally in right of payment with all of the Issuer s existing and future indebtedness that is not so subordinated, including the Issuer s 8.375% Senior Notes due 2018 (the 8.375% Notes), 6.125% Senior Notes due 2022 (the 6.125% Notes) and 5.375% Senior Notes due 2021 (the 5.375% Notes);
- be effectively subordinated to any of the Issuer s existing and future secured indebtedness, including indebtedness under the Issuer s Bank Credit Agreement and any indebtedness secured by permitted liens, in each case to the extent of the value of the collateral securing such indebtedness; and
- be structurally subordinated with respect to any indebtedness of the Issuer s non-guarantor subsidiaries.

The guarantees will be senior unsecured obligations of the guarantors and will:

- be senior in right of payment to all of the guarantors existing and future indebtedness that is expressly subordinated to the guarantees;
- rank equally in right of payment with all of the guarantors existing and future indebtedness that is not so subordinated to the guarantees, including the guarantees of the 8.375% Notes, 6.125% Notes and 5.375% Notes; and
- be effectively subordinated to any secured indebtedness of the guarantors, including the guarantees by the guarantors under the Bank Credit Agreement, or any indebtedness of the guarantors secured by permitted liens, in each case to the extent of the value of the collateral securing such indebtedness.

As of September 30, 2013, the Issuer and the guarantors had approximately \$1,005.4 million of secured indebtedness outstanding, which includes indebtedness under the Bank Credit Agreement and the Issuer s 9.25% Senior Secured Second Lien Notes due 2017 (the 9.25% Notes), which were fully redeemed as of October 12, 2013 using, in part, the proceeds of the offering of the original notes. Such secured indebtedness is effectively senior to the exchange

Table of Contents

notes to the extent of the value of the collateral securing such indebtedness. In addition, excluding guarantees under the Bank Credit Agreement and the 9.25% Notes and indebtedness under Sinclair s 3.0% Convertible Senior Notes due 2027 (the 3.0% Notes), and the guarantees of the Issuer s 8.375% Notes, 6.125% Notes and 5.375% Notes, the guarantors had total consolidated liabilities, including trade payables, of approximately \$876.3 million as of September 30, 2013.

Claims in respect of the exchange notes or Sinclair s guarantee will be structurally subordinated to all of the liabilities of the Issuer s and Sinclair s, as applicable, non-guarantor subsidiaries. As of September 30, 2013, these non-guarantor subsidiaries had approximately \$263.4 million of liabilities (including trade payables and excluding intercompany debt).

Optional Redemption

Prior to November 1, 2016, the Issuer may redeem the exchange notes, in whole or in part, at any time or from time to time at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the exchange notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, plus a make-whole premium as described in this prospectus. Beginning on November 1, 2016, the Issuer may redeem some or all of the exchange notes at any time or from time to time at the redemption prices set forth in this prospectus. In addition, on or prior to November 1, 2016, the Issuer may redeem up to 35% of the exchange notes using the proceeds of certain equity offerings. See Description of the Exchange Notes Optional Redemption.

Change of Control

If we experience specific kinds of Changes of Control (as hereinafter defined), the Issuer must offer to purchase the exchange notes at a price equal to 101% of the principal amount of the exchange notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any.

Covenants

The indenture restricts the Issuer s ability and the ability of the Issuer s restricted subsidiaries to:

- incur, assume or guarantee additional debt with certain exceptions;
- make certain investments and other restricted payments;
- enter into transactions with affiliates;
- create liens;
- sell certain assets to third parties and use proceeds from asset sales;
- issue guarantees of and pledges for indebtedness;
- transfer assets to restricted subsidiaries;

•	consolidate, merge o	r sell all oı	r substantially al	l of their assets;
---	----------------------	---------------	--------------------	--------------------

- issue equity interests;
- pay dividends and create restrictions on the ability of subsidiaries to pay dividends and make other payments affecting subsidiaries; and
- make investments in unrestricted subsidiaries.

These covenants are subject to a number of significant limitations and exceptions. See Description of the Exchange Notes Certain Covenants.

17

Table of Contents

No Public Market The exchange notes will be a new class of securities for which there is currently no established

trading market. We do not intend to apply for a listing of the exchange notes on any securities

exchange or any automated dealer quotation system.

Risk Factors See Risk Factors and the other information contained or incorporated into this prospectus for a

discussion of factors you should carefully consider before deciding to participate in this exchange

offer.

For additional information regarding the exchange notes, see the Description of the Exchange Notes section of this prospectus.

18

Summary Historical Consolidated Financial Information

The following tables set forth our summary historical consolidated financial information for the periods indicated. We have derived the summary financial information for each of the years ended December 31, 2010 through December 31, 2012 from our audited consolidated financial statements, which are incorporated by reference herein. The summary financial information for each of the nine month periods ended September 30, 2012 and 2013 is unaudited and includes all adjustments (consisting of normal and recurring adjustments) which are, in our opinion, necessary for a fair presentation of our financial position as of such dates and results of operations for such periods. The results of operations for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 are not necessarily indicative of results for our full fiscal year ending December 31, 2013 or any future period. This summary financial information should be read in conjunction with the section entitled Management s discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations and the consolidated financial statements and related notes thereto contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012 (our Annual Report) and our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2013 (our Quarterly Report), which are incorporated herein by reference. See Where You Can Find More Information and Incorporation by Reference.

Summary Consolidated Financial Data (in thousands, except per share data)

	Nine months ended September 30,				Years ended December 31,			
	2013		2012	2012		2011	2010	
Statements of operations data:								
Net broadcast revenues (a)	\$ 835,223	\$	633,493 \$	920,593	\$	648,002	\$ 655,	,836
Revenues realized from station								
barter arrangements	60,930		60,060	86,905		72,773	75,	,210
Other operating divisions revenues	39,263		38,609	54,181		44,513	36,	,598
Total revenues	935,416		732,162	1,061,679		765,288	767,	,644
Station production expenses	265,066		184,098	255,556		178,612	154,	133
Station selling, general and								
administrative expenses	171,350		120,462	171,279		123,938	127,	091
Expenses recognized from station								
barter arrangements	53,478		55,119	79,834		65,742	67,	,083
Amortization of program contract								
costs and net realizable value								
adjustments	56,746		43,565	60,990		52,079	60,	,862
Depreciation and amortization (b)	95,835		60,406	85,172		51,103	55,	,141
Other operating divisions expenses	33,351		33,165	46,179		39,486	30,	,916
Corporate general and administrative								
expenses	38,806		25,166	33,391		28,310	26,	,800
Impairment of goodwill, intangible								
and other assets						398		,803
Operating income	220,784		210,181	329,278		225,620	240,	815
Interest expense and amortization of								
debt discount and deferred financing								
costs	(123,029)		(92,001)	(128,553))	(106,128)	(116,	046)
	(4 < 202)		(2.2.5)	(2.2.4)		(4.0.4=)		
Loss from extinguishment of debt	(16,283)		(335)	(335))	(4,847)	(6,	,266)
Income (loss) from equity and cost			0.246	0.570		2.266		061
method investees	115		8,343	9,670		3,269	(4,	,861)

Edgar Filing: KDBC Licensee, LLC - Form S-4

Gain on insurance settlement	137	37	47	1,742	344
Other income, net	1,290	1,696	2,233	1,717	1,865
Income from continuing operations					
before income taxes	83,014	127,921	212,340	121,373	115,851
Income tax (provision)	(22,992)	(42,185)	(67,852)	(44,785)	(40,226)
Income (loss) from continuing					
operations	60,022	85,736	144,488	76,588	75,625
Discontinued operations:					
(Loss) income from discontinued					
operations, net of taxes	11,558	(178)	465	(411)	(577)
Net income	\$ 71,580	\$ 85,558 \$	144,953	\$ 76,177	\$ 75,048
Net loss (income) attributable to					
noncontrolling interest	(415)	106	(287)	(379)	1,100
Net income attributable to Sinclair					
Broadcast Group	\$ 71,165	\$ 85,664 \$	144,666	\$ 75,798	\$ 76,148
Basic and diluted earnings per					
common share attributable to					
Sinclair Broadcast Group:					
Basic earnings per share from					
continuing operations	\$ 0.66	\$ 1.06 \$	1.78	\$ 0.95	\$ 0.96
Basic earnings per share	\$ 0.78	\$ 1.06 \$	1.79	\$ 0.94	\$ 0.95
Diluted earnings per share from					
continuing operations	\$ 0.65	\$ 1.06 \$	1.78	\$ 0.95	\$ 0.95
Diluted earnings per share	\$ 0.78	\$ 1.05 \$	1.78	\$ 0.94	\$ 0.94
Dividends declared per share	\$ 0.45	\$ 0.39 \$	1.54	\$ 0.48	\$ 0.43
Balance sheet data:					
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 228,994	\$ 44,625 \$	22,865	\$ 12,967	\$ 21,974
Total assets	\$ 3,617,673	\$ 2,245,536 \$	2,729,697	\$ 1,571,417	\$ 1,485,924
Total debt (c)	\$ 2,474,897	\$ 1,726,789 \$	2,273,379	\$ 1,206,025	\$ 1,212,065
Total (deficit) equity	\$ 416,238	\$ (52,384) \$	(100,053)	\$ (111,362)	\$ (157,082)

m	. 1		c			
Tal	hI	e	ot	on	ıte	nts

- (a) Net broadcast revenues is defined as broadcast revenues, net of agency commissions.
- (b) Depreciation and amortization includes amortization of property and equipment and amortization of definite-lived intangible broadcasting assets and other assets.
- (c) Total debt is defined as notes payable, capital leases and commercial bank financing, including the current and long-term portions.

20

Table of Contents

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

The following table shows our ratio of earnings to fixed charges for the periods indicated:

	For the nine months ended September 30, For the years ended December 31,									
	2013	2012	2011	2010	2009	2008				
Ratio of earnings to										
fixed charges (1)	1.69x	2.63x	2.14x	2.00x						

⁽¹⁾ Earnings were inadequate to cover fixed charges for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008. Additional earnings of \$171.5 million and \$366.3 million would be required for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, to cover fixed charges.

The ratio of earnings to fixed charges is computed by dividing pre-tax income (loss) from continuing operations, before adjustment for minority interests in consolidated subsidiaries or income or loss from equity investees, plus fixed charges and less capitalized interest, by fixed charges. Fixed charges consist of interest expense, including interest expense from amortized premiums, discounts, and capitalized expenses related to indebtedness, and the estimated portion of rental expense deemed by us to be representative of the interest factor of rental payments under operating leases, plus preferred equity dividends.

Table of Contents

RISK FACTORS

An investment in the exchange notes involves a significant degree of risk. You should carefully consider the following risk factors, together with all of the other information included or incorporated by reference in this prospectus, before you decide whether to purchase the exchange notes. The risks and uncertainties described below and in such incorporated documents are not the only risks and uncertainties that we face. Additional risks and uncertainties not currently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial also may impair our financial condition and business operations. If any of the following risks actually occurs, our business s financial condition and operating results would suffer. The risks discussed below also include forward-looking statements and our actual results may differ substantially from those discussed in those forward-looking statements. See Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Information.

Risks Related to the Exchange Offer

If you do not properly tender your original notes, your ability to transfer them will be adversely affected.

The Issuer will only issue exchange notes in exchange for original notes that are timely received by the exchange agent, together with all required documents, including a properly completed and signed letter of transmittal. Therefore, you should allow sufficient time to ensure timely delivery of the original notes and you should carefully follow the instructions on how to tender your original notes. Neither the Issuer nor the exchange agent are required to tell you of any defects or irregularities with respect to your tender of the original notes. If you do not tender your original notes or if your tender of original notes is not accepted because you did not tender them properly, then, after consummation of the exchange offer, you will continue to hold original notes that are subject to the existing transfer restrictions. After the exchange offer is consummated, if you continue to hold any original notes, you may have difficulty selling them because there will be fewer original notes remaining, and the market for such original notes, if any, will be much more limited than it is currently. In particular, the trading market for unexchanged original notes could become more limited than the existing trading market for the original notes and could cease to exist altogether due to the reduction in the amount of outstanding original notes remaining upon consummation of the exchange offer. A more limited trading market might adversely affect the liquidity, market price and price volatility of such untendered original notes.

If you are a broker-dealer or participating in a distribution of the exchange notes, you may be required to deliver prospectuses and comply with other requirements.

If you tender your original notes for the purpose of participating in a distribution of the exchange notes, you will be required to comply with the registration and prospectus delivery requirements of the Securities Act in connection with any resale of the exchange notes. If you are a broker-dealer that receives exchange notes for your own account in exchange for original notes that you acquired as a result of market-making activities or any other trading activities, you will be required to acknowledge that you will deliver a prospectus in connection with any resale of such exchange notes.

Risks Related to the Exchange Notes

The exchange notes and the guarantees are unsecured and will be effectively subordinated to any of the Issuer s or any guarantor s existing or future secured indebtedness.

The exchange notes will be senior unsecured obligations of the Issuer and each guarantor and will be effectively subordinated to any of the Issuer s and each guarantor s existing and future secured indebtedness, including indebtedness under or guarantees of the Bank Credit Agreement, to the extent of the value of the collateral securing such indebtedness. In the event of a bankruptcy, liquidation, dissolution, reorganization or similar proceeding with respect to the Issuer or any guarantor, the holders of secured indebtedness will be entitled to recover from the collateral that secured such secured indebtedness prior to that collateral being available for the satisfaction of any amounts under the exchange notes and the guarantees. As of September 30, 2013, the Issuer and the guarantors had approximately \$1,005.4 million of secured indebtedness outstanding, which includes indebtedness under the Bank Credit Agreement and the 9.25% Notes. As of September 30, 2013, on a pro forma basis after giving effect to the offering of the original notes, the application of the net proceeds therefrom to redeem the 9.25% Notes, and the amendment of our Bank Credit Agreement as of October 23, 2013 (the Amendment), the Issuer and the guarantors would have had approximately \$763.7 million of secured indebtedness, excluding \$645.0 million to be drawn on a delayed basis under the Bank Credit Agreement (the Revolver).

Table of Contents

Your right to receive payments on the exchange notes could be adversely affected if any of the Issuer's or Sinclair's non-guarantor subsidiaries declares bankruptcy, liquidates or reorganizes.

In the event that any of the Issuer s or Sinclair s non-guarantor subsidiaries becomes insolvent, liquidates, reorganizes, dissolves or otherwise winds up, holders of its debt and its trade creditors will generally be entitled to payment on their claims from the assets of those subsidiaries before any of those assets are made available to us. Consequently, your claims in respect of the exchange notes or Sinclair s guarantee will be structurally subordinated to all of the liabilities of the Issuer s and Sinclair s, as applicable, non-guarantor subsidiaries. As of September 30, 2013, these non-guarantor subsidiaries had approximately \$263.4 million of liabilities (including trade payables and excluding intercompany debt). The non-guarantor subsidiaries generated \$90.4 million of Sinclair s net revenues in the nine months ended September 30, 2013, generated \$64.9 million of Sinclair s net revenue in the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012, and had \$460.1 million of Sinclair s total assets as of September 30, 2013.

Federal and state law may allow courts, under specific circumstances, to void the exchange notes and the guarantees, subordinate claims in respect of the exchange notes and the guarantees and/or require holders of the exchange notes to return payments received from the Issuer.

Under the federal bankruptcy laws and comparable provisions of state fraudulent transfer laws, the exchange notes and the guarantees could be voided, or claims in respect of the exchange notes and a guarantee could be subordinated to all of the Issuer s and a guarantor s other respective debt, if the issuance of the exchange notes or a guarantee was found to have been made for less than their reasonable equivalent value, and the Issuer, at the time it incurred the indebtedness evidenced by the exchange notes, or a guarantor, at the time it incurred the indebtedness evidenced by the guarantee:

- was insolvent or rendered insolvent by reason of such indebtedness;
- was engaged in, or about to engage in, a business or transaction for which its remaining assets constituted unreasonably small capital;
- intended to incur, or believed that it would incur, debts beyond its ability to pay such debts as they mature;
- was a defendant in an action for money damages, or had a judgment for money damages docketed against it, if in either case, after final judgment, the judgment is unsatisfied; or
- intended to incur, or believed that it would incur, debts beyond its ability to pay as such debts matured (as all of the foregoing terms are defined in or interpreted under the relevant fraudulent transfer statutes).

A court might also void the issuance of the exchange notes or a guarantee, without regard to the above factors, if the court found that the Issuer issued the exchange notes or the guarantors entered into their respective guarantees with actual intent to hinder, delay or defraud its or their respective creditors.

A court would likely find that the Issuer or a guarantor did not receive reasonably equivalent value or fair consideration for the exchange notes or the guarantees, respectively, if the Issuer or a guarantor did not substantially benefit directly or indirectly from the issuance of the exchange notes. If a court were to void the issuance of the exchange notes or the guarantees, you would no longer have a claim against the Issuer or the guarantors. Sufficient funds to repay the exchange notes may not be available from other sources, including the remaining guarantors, if any. In addition, the court might direct you to repay any amounts that you already received from us or the guarantors.

In addition, any payment by the Issuer pursuant to the exchange notes made at a time the Issuer was found to be insolvent could be voided and required to be returned to the Issuer or to a fund for the benefit of the Issuer s creditors if such payment is made to an insider within a one-year period prior to a bankruptcy filing or within 90 days for any outside party and such payment would give the creditors more than such creditors would have received in a distribution under Chapter 7 of Title 11 of the United States Code, as amended (the Bankruptcy Code).

The measure of insolvency for purposes of these fraudulent transfer laws will vary depending upon the law of the jurisdiction that is being applied in any such proceeding. Generally, however, an entity is considered insolvent if:

Table of Contents

- the sum of its debts, including contingent liabilities, is greater than the fair saleable value of all its assets;
- the present fair saleable value of its assets is less than the amount that would be required to pay its probable liability on existing debts, including contingent liabilities, as they become absolute and mature; or
- it cannot not pay its debts as they become due.

There can be no assurance, however, as to what standard a court would apply in making such determinations or that a court would agree with our conclusions in this regard.

In addition, although each guarantee will contain a provision intended to limit that guarantor s liability to the maximum amount that it could incur without causing the incurrence of obligations under its guarantee to be a fraudulent transfer, this provision may not be effective to protect those guarantees from being voided under fraudulent transfer laws, or may reduce that guarantor s obligation to an amount that effectively makes its guarantee of limited value or worthless. There is no way to predict with certainty what standards a court would apply to determine whether a guarantor was solvent at the relevant time. It is possible that a court could view the issuance of guarantees as a fraudulent transfer. To the extent that a guarantee were to be voided as a fraudulent transfer or were to be held unenforceable for any other reason, holders of the exchange notes would cease to have any claim in respect of the guarantor and would be creditors solely of the Issuer and of the guarantors whose guarantees had not been voided or held unenforceable. In this event, the claims of the holders of the exchange notes against the issuer of an invalid guarantee would be subject to the prior payment in full of all other liabilities of the guarantor thereunder. After providing for all prior claims, there may not be sufficient assets to satisfy the claims of the holders of the exchange notes relating to the voided guarantees. In a recent Florida bankruptcy case, this kind of provision was found to be unenforceable and, as a result, the subsidiary guarantees in that case were found to be fraudulent transfers. We do not know if that case will be followed if there is litigation on this point under the indenture. However, if it is followed, the risk that the guarantees will be found to be fraudulent transfers will be significantly increased.

Finally, as a court of equity, the bankruptcy court may subordinate the claims in respect of the exchange notes to the claims of other creditors under the principle of equitable subordination if the court determines that: (i) the holder of the exchange notes engaged in some type of inequitable conduct to the detriment of other creditors; (ii) such inequitable conduct resulted in injury to the Issuer s other creditors or conferred an unfair advantage upon the holder of the exchange notes; and (iii) equitable subordination is not inconsistent with the provisions of the Bankruptcy Code.

The Issuer is dependent on intercompany cash flows to satisfy its obligations under the exchange notes, and Sinclair is dependent on intercompany cash flows to satisfy its obligations under its guarantee.

Both Sinclair and the Issuer derive a significant portion of their respective operating income from their respective subsidiaries. The Issuer generates net cash flow from the operations of the assets that it owns directly but also relies on distributions and other payments from its subsidiaries to produce the funds necessary to meet its obligations, including the payment of principal of and interest on the exchange notes. Likewise, Sinclair relies on distributions and other payments from its subsidiaries, including the Issuer, to produce the funds necessary to meet its obligations, including its guarantee of the exchange notes. If the cash flow from directly owned assets, together with the distributions and other payments received from subsidiaries, are insufficient to meet all of the Issuer s or Sinclair s obligations, the Issuer or Sinclair, as applicable,

will be required to seek other sources of funds. We anticipate that these sources of funds may include proceeds derived from borrowings under existing debt facilities, select asset sales or, in the case of the Issuer, contributions by Sinclair. There can be no assurance that Sinclair or the Issuer will be able to obtain the necessary funds from these sources on acceptable terms or at all.

As a holder of the exchange notes, you will have no direct claim against Sinclair s or the Issuer s non-guarantor subsidiaries for payment under the exchange notes. The non-guarantor subsidiaries generated \$90.4 million of Sinclair s net revenues in the nine months ended September 30, 2013 and \$64.9 million of Sinclair s net revenue in the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012.

The Issuer may not be able to repurchase your exchange notes on a change of control and, in connection with certain transactions, may not be required to offer to repurchase the exchange notes.

If Sinclair or the Issuer undergoes a change of control, as defined in the indenture governing the exchange notes, the Issuer must offer to buy back the exchange notes for a price equal to 101% of their principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the repurchase date. The Bank Credit Agreement and the indentures governing the 8.375% Notes, the 6.125% Notes and the 5.375% Notes contain, and any future debt that Sinclair or the Issuer may incur may also contain, restrictions on repurchases in the event of a

Table of Contents

change of control or similar event. The Issuer may not have sufficient funds available to make the required repurchase of the exchange notes in event of a change of control. Also, the Issuer s other outstanding debt securities (including the 8.375% Notes, the 6.125% Notes and the 5.375% Notes) have substantially identical change of control provisions, and the Issuer would also be required to make an offer to repurchase such debt securities at 101% upon a change of control. If the Issuer fails to offer to repurchase the exchange notes upon a change of control, it will be in default under the indenture governing the exchange notes, which could cause defaults under and accelerations of our other debt. Any defaults under the exchange notes or our other debt could have a material adverse effect on our ability to meet our obligations. The occurrence of a change of control would constitute an event of default under the Bank Credit Agreement and also could constitute an event of default under any of the Issuer s future credit agreements, in which case its lenders may terminate their commitments under the Issuer s credit agreements and accelerate all amounts outstanding under the Bank Credit Agreement or any such future credit agreements. The lenders under the Bank Credit Agreement have the right to prohibit any such purchase or redemption, in which event the Issuer would be in default under the indenture governing the exchange notes, the 8.375% Notes, the 6.125% Notes, the 5.375% Notes and any future debt securities with similar change of control provisions. The Issuer could seek to obtain waivers from the required lenders to permit the required repurchase, but the required lenders have no obligation to grant, and may refuse to grant, such a waiver.

These change of control repurchase requirements may delay or make it harder to obtain control of the Issuer but may not prevent a transaction such as a reorganization, restructuring, merger or other similar transaction, because these types of transactions may not involve a change of control as defined in the indenture governing the exchange notes. There is no requirement that any company with which the Issuer merges has a capital structure similar to its structure or indebtedness of the same type or in the same ratios as its indebtedness. As a result, it may be possible for the Issuer to enter into a transaction that would alter the risk profile of the exchange notes but that would not require it to repurchase your exchange notes.

Holders of exchange notes may not be able to determine when a change of control giving rise to their right to have the exchange notes repurchased by the Issuer has occurred following a sale of substantially all of its assets.

A change of control, as defined in the indenture governing the exchange notes, requires the Issuer to make an offer to repurchase all outstanding exchange notes. The definition of change of control includes a phrase relating to the conveyance, transfer or lease of all or substantially all of our or the Issuer s assets. There is no precise established definition of the phrase substantially all under applicable law. Accordingly, the ability of a holder of exchange notes to require the Issuer to repurchase the exchange notes as a result of a conveyance, transfer or lease of less than all the Issuer s assets to another individual, group or entity may be uncertain.

You cannot be sure that an active public trading market will develop for the exchange notes.

The exchange notes will be a new issue of securities for which there is currently no market and will not be listed on any securities exchange. The initial purchasers have advised us that they intend to make a market in the exchange notes. However, the initial purchasers are not obligated to do so and may discontinue any such market making at any time without notice.

The liquidity of any market for the exchange notes will depend upon various factors, including:

the number of holders of the exchange notes;

•	the interest of securities dealers in making a market for the exchange notes;
•	the overall market for high yield securities;
•	our financial performance and prospects; and
•	the prospects for companies in our industry generally.
market de	gly, the Issuer cannot assure you that an active trading market or liquidity will develop for the exchange notes. If no active trading velops, you may not be able to resell your exchange notes. If the exchange notes are traded after their initial issuance, they may trade and their initial offering price, depending upon prevailing interest rates and other factors including those listed above.
	25

Table of Contents

Historically, the market for non-investment grade debt has been subject to disruptions that have caused substantial volatility in the prices of securities similar to the exchange notes. Any market for the exchange notes may be subject to similar disruptions, which may adversely affect you as a holder of the exchange notes.

Changes in our credit ratings or the debt markets could adversely affect the trading price of the exchange notes.

The trading price for the exchange notes will depend on many factors, including:

- our credit ratings with major credit rating agencies;
- the prevailing interest rates being paid by other companies similar to us;
- our financial condition, financial performance and future prospects; and
- the overall condition of the financial markets.

The condition of the financial markets and prevailing interest rates have fluctuated significantly in the past and are likely to fluctuate in the future. Such fluctuations could have an adverse effect on the trading price of the exchange notes.

In addition, credit rating agencies continually review their ratings for the companies that they follow, including us. A negative change in our rating could have an adverse effect on the trading price of the exchange notes.

Risks Related to Our Debt

Our substantial indebtedness could adversely affect our financial condition and prevent Sinclair and the Issuer from fulfilling their respective debt obligations.

Sinclair has a high level of debt, totaling \$2,474.9 million at September 30, 2013, compared to the book value of its shareholders equity of \$416.2 million as of the same date. The Issuer s debt, which includes its subsidiaries debt, totaled \$2,380.6 million as of September 30, 2013, of

which Sinclair guaranteed an aggregate principal amount of \$2,338.4 million. As of September 30, 2013, the Issuer also could draw \$445.0 million of delayed draw term loans. As of September 30, 2013, on a pro forma basis after giving effect to the offering of the original notes, the application of the net proceeds therefrom to redeem the 9.25% Notes, and the Amendment to our Bank Credit Agreement, the Issuer and the guarantors would have had approximately \$763.7 million of total indebtedness, excluding \$645.0 million to be drawn on a delayed basis under the Bank Credit Agreement, and an additional \$154.5 million of undrawn availability under the Revolver.

	26
• competit	we may be more vulnerable to adverse economic conditions than less leveraged competitors and thus, less able to withstand ive pressures; and
• (includin	if our cash flows were inadequate to make interest and principal payments, we might have to restructure or refinance our debt g the exchange notes), or sell one or more of our stations, to reduce debt service obligations;
•	the cost to borrow from lenders may increase;
• additiona	lenders to Sinclair and the Issuer may not be as willing to lend additional amounts to each of us for future working capital needs al acquisitions or other purposes;
• because a	the amount available for working capital, capital expenditures, dividends and other general corporate purposes may be limited a significant portion of cash flow is used to pay principal and interest on outstanding debt, including the exchange notes;
• come due	make it more difficult for the Issuer and Sinclair to pay their respective debts, including payments on the exchange notes as they e, especially during general negative economic and market industry conditions;
Sinclair	s and the Issuer s relatively high levels of debt pose the following risks, particularly in periods of declining revenue:

Table of Contents

• of the \$2,474.9 million of Sinclair s total debt outstanding as of September 30, 2013, \$453.0 million relates to the Bank Credit Agreement. The interest rate under the Bank Credit Agreement is a floating rate and will increase if interest rates increase or if the leverage increases. Any such increase will reduce the funds available to repay our and the Issuer s obligations, including obligations under the exchange notes, and for operations and future business opportunities and will make us more vulnerable to the consequences of each of our leveraged capital structure.

Any of these events could reduce our ability to generate cash available for investment, debt repayment or capital improvements or to respond to events that would enhance profitability.

We may not have sufficient cash flows from operating activities to service our indebtedness and meet our other cash needs, and may be forced to take other actions to satisfy our obligations under our indebtedness, which may not be successful.

Our ability to make payments on and to refinance our indebtedness will depend on our ability to generate cash in the future. This, to some extent, is subject to general economic, financial, competitive, legislative, regulatory and other factors that are beyond our control. Our future cash flow, cash on hand or available borrowings may not be sufficient to meet our obligations and commitments. If we are unable to generate sufficient cash flow from operations in the future to service our indebtedness and to meet our other commitments, we will be required to adopt one or more alternatives, such as refinancing or restructuring our indebtedness (including the exchange notes), selling material assets or operations or seeking to raise additional debt or equity capital. These actions may not be effected on a timely basis or on satisfactory terms or at all, or these actions may not enable us to continue to satisfy our capital requirements. In addition, our existing or future debt agreements contain and will contain restrictive covenants that may prohibit us from adopting any of these alternatives. In addition, pursuant to the Bank Credit Agreement, we are required to maintain certain financial ratios. If global macroeconomic conditions worsen or fail to improve sufficiently, we may in the future breach such covenants. Our failure to comply with these covenants could result in an event of default which, if not cured or waived, could result in the acceleration of all of our indebtedness, including the exchange notes. See Description of the Exchange Notes.

Recent global financial and economic conditions could adversely affect the availability of new financing and result in higher interest rates.

Recent global financial and economic conditions have been characterized by increased market volatility. Several financial institutions have either gone into bankruptcy or have had to be capitalized by governmental authorities. Access to public financing in recent years was negatively impacted by, among other things, both rapid decline in value of sub-prime mortgages and a liquidity crisis affecting the asset-backed commercial paper market. If global financial and economic conditions were to worsen, these factors may adversely affect our ability to obtain financing in the future on favorable terms.

In some instances, the disruptions in the capital and credit markets also resulted in higher interest rates on publicly issued debt securities and increased costs under credit facilities.

Continued market disruptions could cause broader economic downturns, which may lead to lower demand for our products and services, as well as lower levels of television advertising, and increased incidence of customers inability to pay for the services we provide. We have experienced some of the effects of this economic downturn. Events such as these adversely impact our results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

We must refinance existing indebtedness prior to the maturity of the exchange notes. Failure to do so could have a material adverse effect on us.

Even after the proceeds of the offering of the original notes were used to redeem the 9.25% Notes, Sinclair and the Issuer have substantial indebtedness that will mature prior to the exchange notes. The maturities of the 8.375% Notes, the 5.375% Notes and the Bank Credit Agreement are all before the maturity of the exchange notes. As of September 30, 2013, the aggregate principal amount of the outstanding debt under the 8.375% Notes, the 5.375% Notes and the Bank Credit Agreement was \$1,290.5 million, all of which will need to be refinanced prior to the maturity of the exchange notes offered hereby, and the Issuer could borrow an additional \$645.0 million of delayed draw term loans under the Bank Credit Agreement, all of which would need to be refinanced prior to the maturity of the exchange notes. We or the Issuer may not be able to refinance such indebtedness on commercially reasonable terms or at all. The financial terms or covenants of any future indebtedness incurred to refinance the 8.375% Notes, the 5.375% Notes and the Bank Credit Agreement may not be the same or as favorable as the terms under such debt.

Table of Contents

Our ability to complete a refinancing of the 8.375% Notes, the 5.375% Notes and the Bank Credit Agreement is subject to a number of conditions beyond our control. For example, if a disruption in the financial markets were to occur at the time that we intended to refinance such indebtedness, we might be restricted in our ability to access the financial markets. If we were unsuccessful, our ability to pay the principal of and interest on the Notes and any of our other indebtedness would be adversely affected. If we cannot access the capital markets in order to refinance all of our indebtedness, we would be forced to raise capital by selling material assets, restructure our indebtedness or take other adverse actions.

Despite current debt levels of each, the Issuer and Sinclair may be able to incur significantly more debt in the future, which could increase the foregoing risks related to each s indebtedness.

At September 30, 2013, on a pro forma basis after giving effect to the offering of the original notes, the application of the net proceeds therefrom to redeem the 9.25% Notes, and the Amendment to the Bank Credit Agreement, the Issuer would have had \$157.5 million available (subject to certain borrowing conditions) for additional borrowings under the Revolver, and we could draw approximately \$645.0 million of term loans on a delayed draw basis under term loan A. . Under the terms of the debt instruments to which the Issuer and Sinclair are subject, and provided each meets certain financial and other covenants, each may be able to incur substantial additional indebtedness in the future, including additional senior debt that would rank equally in right of payment with the exchange notes and in some cases, secured debt that would be effectively senior to the exchange notes. If the Issuer or Sinclair incurs additional indebtedness, the risks described in the risk factors in this prospectus and in Sinclair s reports filed with the SEC and incorporated by reference herein relating to having substantial debt could intensify.

Commitments the Issuer and Sinclair have made to lenders limit their ability to take actions that could increase the value of their respective securities and businesses or may require them to take actions that decrease the value of their respective securities and businesses.

The Issuer s and, to a more limited extent, Sinclair s existing financing agreements prevent them from taking certain actions and require them to meet certain tests. These restrictions and tests may require each to conduct its business in ways that make it more difficult for it to repay its debt or decrease the value of its securities or business. These restrictions and tests include the following:

- restrictions on additional debt;
- restrictions on the ability to pledge assets as security for indebtedness;
- restrictions on payment of dividends, the repurchase of stock and other payments relating to capital stock;
- restrictions on some sales of certain assets and the use of proceeds from asset sales;

- restrictions on mergers and other acquisitions, satisfaction of conditions for acquisitions and a limit on the total amount of acquisitions without the consent of bank lenders;
- restrictions on permitted indebtedness;
- restrictions on lines of business the Issuer, Sinclair and their subsidiaries may operate; and
- financial ratio and condition tests including the ratio of the Issuer s earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization, as adjusted (adjusted EBITDA) to interest expense, the ratio of the Issuer s first lien indebtedness to adjusted EBITDA and the ratio of the Issuer s total indebtedness to adjusted EBITDA.

Future financing arrangements may contain additional restrictions and tests. All of these restrictive covenants may limit the Issuer s and Sinclair s ability to pursue their business strategies, prevent them from taking action that could increase the value of their securities or may require them to take actions that decrease the value of their securities. In addition, either the Issuer or Sinclair may fail to meet the tests and thereby default on one or more of its respective obligations (particularly if the economy weakens and thereby reduces advertising revenues). If we default on our obligations, creditors could require immediate payment of the obligations or foreclose on collateral. If this happens, then either the Issuer or Sinclair could be forced to sell assets or take other actions that could significantly reduce the value of its respective securities and business and each may not have sufficient assets or funds to pay its respective debt obligations.

Table of Contents

A failure to meet covenants under our debt instruments could result in a default under the exchange notes or other existing debt, acceleration of amounts due under such debt and loss of assets securing loans.

Certain of our existing debt is cross-defaulted with other recourse debt, which means that a default under certain of the Issuer s and Sinclair s debt may cause a default under indentures governing their other debt, including the exchange notes or the Bank Credit Agreement.

If either the Issuer or Sinclair were to breach certain of its debt covenants, its lenders could require it to repay the debt immediately, and, if the debt is secured, could immediately take possession of the property securing the debt. In addition, if any other lender declared its loan due and payable as a result of a default, the holders of the Issuer s or Sinclair s outstanding notes, along with the lenders under the Bank Credit Agreement, might be able to require the Issuer or Sinclair, as the case may be, or any guarantors of such debt, to pay those debts immediately.

As a result, any default under our debt covenants could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and our ability to meet our obligations.

Any insolvency or bankruptcy proceeding relating to Cunningham Broadcasting Corporation (Cunningham), one of our LMA partners, would cause a default and potential acceleration under the Bank Credit Agreement and could, potentially, result in Cunningham s rejection of our seven LMAs with Cunningham, which would negatively affect our financial condition and results of operations.

Cunningham operates in the same industry as the Issuer and us and hence faces similar financial and economic pressures. Cunningham is our LMA partner in seven markets. Because the seven LMAs with Cunningham are material to our financial condition and results of operations, we are affected by the financial condition of Cunningham or any of its subsidiaries. Any insolvency or bankruptcy proceeding relating to Cunningham or any of its subsidiaries would materially negatively affect our financial condition and results of operations. In particular, any insolvency or bankruptcy proceeding related to Cunningham would constitute an event of default under our Bank Credit Agreement and allow the lenders thereunder to accelerate our indebtedness thereunder.

Rising interest rates could adversely affect our cash flow and the market price of the exchange notes.

Of our approximately \$2,474.9 million of debt outstanding as of September 30, 2013, approximately \$453.0 million recourse debt bears interest at variable rates and is unhedged. We also may borrow additional funds at variable interest rates in the future. Increases in interest rates, or the loss of the benefits of any interest rate hedging arrangements, would increase our interest expense on variable rate debt, which would adversely affect cash flow and our ability to service outstanding debt.

In addition, an increase in market interest rates may lead purchasers of our securities to demand a higher annual yield, which could adversely affect the market price of the Issuer s and Sinclair s outstanding debt securities, including the exchange notes.

Our strategic acquisitions could pose various risks and increase our leverage.

We have pursued and intend to selectively continue to pursue strategic acquisitions, subject to market conditions, our liquidity and the availability of attractive acquisition candidates, with the goal of improving our business. During 2012, we acquired certain assets related to, and began operating 29 television stations plus the license assets of WTTA-TV in Tampa / St. Petersburg, Florida, a television station which we programed pursuant to an LMA prior to December 1, 2012. Through October 31, 2013, we acquired certain assets related to, and began operating, 36 television stations. We also entered into agreements to purchase the assets described under Pending Acquisitions in Note 3 to our Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements filed with our Quarterly Report, including the acquisition of certain television stations from Barrington, which closed effective November 22, 2013.

We may not be able to identify other attractive acquisition targets or we may not be able to fund additional acquisitions in the future. Acquisitions involve inherent risks, such as increasing leverage and debt service requirements and combining company cultures and facilities, which could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and could strain our human resources. We may not be able to successfully implement effective costs controls or increase revenues as a result of any acquisition. In addition, future acquisitions may result in our assumption of unexpected liabilities and may result in the diversion of management s attention from the operation of our core business.

Table of Contents

Certain acquisitions, such as television stations, are subject to the approval of the FCC and potentially, other regulatory authorities. The need for FCC and other regulatory approvals could restrict our ability to consummate future transactions and potentially require us to divest of certain television stations if the FCC believes that a proposed acquisition would result in excessive concentration in a market, even if the proposed combinations may otherwise comply with FCC ownership limitations.

30

Table of Contents

SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

The following tables set forth our summary historical consolidated financial information for the periods indicated. We have derived the summary financial information for each of the years ended December 31, 2008 through December 31, 2012 from our audited consolidated financial statements. The audited consolidated financial statements included in our Annual Report are incorporated by reference herein. The summary financial information for each of the nine month periods ended September 30, 2012 and 2013 is unaudited and includes all adjustments (consisting of normal and recurring adjustments) which are, in our opinion, necessary for a fair presentation of our financial position as of such dates and results of operations for such periods. The results of operations for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 are not necessarily indicative of results for our full fiscal year ending December 31, 2013 or any future period. This summary financial information should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and related notes thereto contained in our Annual Report and Quarterly Report, which are incorporated herein by reference.

Summary Consolidated Financial Data (in thousands, except per share data)

	Nine months ended September 30,							Years ended December 31,						••••
	2	2013		2012		2012		2011		2010		2009		2008
Statements of operations data:	ф	025 222	ф	(22, 102	Ф	020 502	ф	640.000	ф	655.006	ф	555 110	ф	620 624
Net broadcast revenues (a) Revenues realized from station	\$	835,223	\$	633,493	\$	920,593	\$	648,002	\$	655,836	\$	555,110	\$	639,624
		(0.020		(0.0(0		06.005		70 770		75.010		50.102		50.077
barter arrangements		60,930		60,060		86,905		72,773		75,210		58,182		59,877
Other operating divisions		20.262		20.600		54 101		44.510		26.500		42.600		55 424
revenues		39,263		38,609		54,181		44,513		36,598		43,698		55,434
Total revenues		935,416		732,162		1,061,679		765,288		767,644		656,990		754,935
Station production expenses		265,066		184,098		255,556		178,612		154,133		142,415		158,965
Station selling, general and														
administrative expenses		171,350		120,462		171,279		123,938		127,091		122,833		136,142
Expenses recognized from station														
barter arrangements		53,478		55,119		79,834		65,742		67,083		48,119		53,327
Amortization of program contract														
costs and net realizable value														
adjustments		56,746		43,565		60,990		52,079		60,862		73,087		84,422
Depreciation and amortization (b)		95,835		60,406		85,172		51,103		55,141		65,247		63,105
Other operating divisions														
expenses		33,351		33,165		46,179		39,486		30,916		45,520		59,987
Corporate general and														
administrative expenses		38,806		25,166		33,391		28,310		26,800		25,632		26,285
Gain on asset exchange												(4,945)		(3,187)
Impairment of goodwill,														
intangible and other assets								398		4,803		249,799		463,887
Operating income (loss)		220,784		210,181		329,278		225,620		240,815		(110,717)		(287,998)
Interest expense and amortization														
of debt discount and deferred														
financing costs		(123,029)		(92,001)		(128,553)		(106,128)		(116,046)		(80,021)		(87,634)
(Loss) gain from extinguishment														
of debt		(16,283)		(335)		(335)		(4,847)		(6,266)		18,465		5,451
(Loss) income from equity and														
cost method investees		115		8,343		9,670		3,269		(4,861)		354		(2,703)
Gain on insurance settlement		137		37		47		1,742		344		11		
Other income, net		1,290		1,696		2,233		1,717		1,865		1,448		3,000

Edgar Filing: KDBC Licensee, LLC - Form S-4

Income (loss) from continuing							
operations before income taxes	83,014	127,921	212,340	121,373	115,851	(170,460)	(369,884)
Income tax (provision) benefit	(22,992)	(42,185)	(67,852)	(44,785)	(40,226)	32,512	121,362
Income (loss) from continuing							
operations	60,022	85,736	144,488	76,588	75,625	(137,948)	(248,663)
Discontinued operations:							
(Loss) income from discontinued							
operations, net of taxes	11,558	(178)	465	(411)	(577)	(81)	(141)
Net income (loss)	\$ 71,580	\$ 85,558	\$ 144,953	\$ 76,177	\$ 75,048	\$ (138,029)	\$ (248,663)
Net loss (income) attributable to							
noncontrolling interest	(415)	106	(287)	(379)	1,100	2,335	2,133
Net income (loss) attributable to							
Sinclair Broadcast Group	\$ 71,165	\$ 85,664	\$ 144,666	\$ 75,798	\$ 76,148	\$ (135,694)	\$ (246,530)
Basic and diluted earnings (loss)							
per common share attributable							
to Sinclair Broadcast Group:							
Basic earnings (loss) per share							
from continuing operations	\$ 0.66	\$ 1.06	\$ 1.78	\$ 0.95	\$ 0.96	\$ (1.70)	\$ (2.87)
Basic earnings (loss) per share	\$ 0.78	\$ 1.06	\$ 1.79	\$ 0.94	\$ 0.95	\$ (1.70)	\$ (2.87)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share							
from continuing operations	\$ 0.65	\$ 1.06	\$ 1.78	\$ 0.95	\$ 0.95	\$ (1.70)	\$ (2.87)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share	\$ 0.78	\$ 1.05	\$ 1.78	\$ 0.94	\$ 0.94	\$ (1.70)	\$ (2.87)
Dividends declared per share	\$ 0.45	\$ 0.39	\$ 1.54	\$ 0.48	\$ 0.43	\$	\$ 0.80
Balance sheet data:							
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 228,994	\$ 44,625	\$ 22,865	\$ 12,967	\$ 21,974	\$ 23,224	\$ 16,470
Total assets	\$ 3,617,673	\$ 2,245,536	\$ 2,729,697	\$ 1,571,417	\$ 1,485,924	\$ 1,590,029	\$ 1,816,407
Total debt (c)	\$ 2,474,897	\$ 1,726,789	\$ 2,273,379	\$ 1,206,025	\$ 1,212,065	\$ 1,366,308	\$ 1,362,278
Total (deficit) equity	\$ 416,238	\$ (52,384)	\$ (100,053)	\$ (111,362)	\$ (157,082)	\$ (202,222)	\$ (58,700)

Table of Contents

- (a) Net broadcast revenues is defined as broadcast revenues, net of agency commissions.
- (b) Depreciation and amortization includes amortization of property and equipment and amortization of definite-lived intangible broadcasting assets and other assets.
- (c) Total debt is defined as notes payable, capital leases and commercial bank financing, including the current and long-term portions.

Table of Contents

CAPITALIZATION

The following table sets forth our capitalization as of September 30, 2013 on an actual basis and as adjusted to give effect to the closing of the offering of the original notes and the application of the net proceeds therefrom, including cash on hand used to fund, in part, the redemption of the 9.25% Notes. The table should be read in conjunction with our historical financial statements and their notes incorporated by reference in this prospectus

	As of September 30, 2013 Actual	housands) As adjusted (a)			
Cash and cash equivalents (b)	\$ 228,994	\$	26,720		
Current portion of debt:					
Senior term loan A, current portion	\$	\$			
Senior term loan B, current portion	4,000		4,000		
Notes, capital leases payable to affiliates, commercial bank financing					
and other, current portion (b)	19,955		19,955		
Total current	23,955		23,955		
Long-term debt:					
Revolving credit facility (c)					
Senior term loan A, less current portion	55,000		55,000		
Senior term loan B, less current portion	394,000		394,000		
Capital leases and other, less current portion	38,870		38,870		
Notes and capital leases to affiliates, less current portion (b)	19,621		19,621		
3.0% convertible senior notes due 2027 (d)	5,400		5,400		
9.25% senior secured second lien notes due 2017	500,000				
8.375% convertible senior notes due 2018	237,530		237,530		
6.125% senior unsecured notes due 2022	500,000		500,000		
5.375% senior unsecured notes due 2021	600,000		600,000		
6.375% senior unsecured notes due 2021 (a)			350,000		
Other debt including discount and premium (b)	100,535		108,826		
Total long-term	2,450,956		2,309,247		
Total debt (b)	2,474,911		2,333,202		
Class A Common Stock	739		739		
Class B Common Stock	263		263		
Additional paid in capital	1,097,098		1,097,098		
Accumulated deficit	(684,470)		(729,038)(e)		
Accumulated other comprehensive loss	(5,109)		(5,109)		
Total Sinclair Broadcast Group Shareholders equity (deficit)	408,521		363,953		
Noncontrolling interest	7,717		7,717		
Total equity (deficit)	416,238		372,981		
Total capitalization	\$ 2,891,149	\$	2,704,872		

See footnotes on following page.

Table of Contents

- (a) As adjusted amounts reflect the application of the net proceeds from the offering of the original notes of approximately \$344 million (after deducting commissions, plus fees and expenses related to the offering), including the redemption of the 9.25% Notes and approximately \$202 million cash on hand used to fund such redemption. The total cash redemption price, including principal, accrued interest, and call premiums, totaled \$546.1 million. As adjusted amounts do not give effect to our pending acquisitions, the Barrington acquisition or the Amendment to the Bank Credit Agreement.
- (b) Total debt includes \$81.1 million of nonrecourse debt related to our consolidated variable interest entities (VIEs) and other operating division companies. In addition, cash includes \$17.6 million from VIEs and other operating division companies.
- (c) As of September 30, 2013, on a pro forma basis after giving effect to the offering of the original notes, the application of the net proceeds therefrom and the Amendment to our Bank Credit Agreement, the Issuer would have had \$157.5 million of undrawn availability under the Revolver. In connection with the Fisher acquisition in August 2013, we entered into a letter of credit that reduced our pro forma undrawn availability under the Revolver to \$154.5 million.
- (d) Prior to the commencement of the offering of the original notes, the holders of the 4.875% Notes and the 3.0% Notes exercised their conversion rights with respect thereto. As of the date of this prospectus, no 3.0% Notes or 4.875% Notes are outstanding.
- (e) The As adjusted accumulated deficit reflects \$26.7 million of call premium that would have been due if the 9.25% Notes were redeemed on September 30, 2013, as well as non-cash charges for the write-off of remaining unamortized deferred financing costs (\$9.6 million) and debt discount (\$8.3 million), as of September 30, 2013, related to the redemption of the 9.25% Notes.

Table of Contents

USE OF PROCEEDS

The Issuer will not receive any proceeds from the issuance of the exchange notes in the exchange offer. The exchange offer is intended to satisfy certain obligations under the registration rights agreement that the Issuer entered into in connection with the issuance of original notes.

We received net proceeds of approximately \$344.0 million, after deducting commissions and fees and expenses relating to the initial offering. Such net proceeds, together with cash on hand, were used to finance the redemption of the 9.25% Notes, including accrued interest and any redemption premiums. The 9.25% Notes were redeemed in full as of October 12, 2013. The total cash redemption price of \$546.1 million included \$500.0 million in principal amount of 9.25% Notes, approximately \$21.0 million of accrued interest and approximately \$25.4 million of call premiums pursuant to the applicable indenture. The 9.25% Notes would have matured on November 1, 2017.

Table of Contents

THE EXCHANGE OFFER

Original Issuance of the Original Notes

On October 11, 2013, the Issuer issued original notes in an aggregate principal amount of \$350,000,000 to the initial purchasers. Because such issuance of the original notes was not a transaction registered under the Securities Act, the original notes were offered by the initial purchasers only (i) in the United States, to qualified institutional buyers, as that term is defined in Rule 144A under the Securities Act, in a private transaction in reliance upon an exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act, and (ii) outside the United States, to persons other than U.S. persons in offshore transactions in reliance upon Regulation S under the Securities Act.

Registration Rights Agreement

The Issuer and the guarantors entered into a registration rights agreement with the initial purchasers on October 11, 2013. In that agreement, the Issuer agreed for the benefit of the holders of the original notes that the Issuer would use its reasonable best efforts to file with the SEC and cause to become effective a registration statement relating to an offer to exchange the original notes for an issue of SEC-registered notes with terms identical to the original notes (except that the exchange notes will not be subject to restrictions on transfer or to any increase in annual interest rate as described below).

When the SEC declares the exchange offer registration statement effective, the Issuer will offer the exchange notes in return for the original notes. The exchange offer will remain open for at least 20 business days after the date the Issuer mails notice of the exchange offer to noteholders. For each outstanding note surrendered to the Issuer under the exchange offer, the noteholder will receive an exchange note of equal principal amount. Interest on each exchange note will accrue from the last interest payment date on which interest was paid on the original notes or, if no interest has been paid on the original notes, from the closing date.

If applicable interpretations of the staff of the SEC do not permit the Issuer to effect the exchange offer, the Issuer will use its reasonable best efforts to cause to become effective a shelf registration statement relating to resales of the exchange notes and to keep that shelf registration statement effective during the time period specified in the registration rights agreement, or such shorter period that will terminate when all exchange notes covered by the shelf registration statement have been sold. The Issuer will, in the event of such a shelf registration, provide to each noteholder copies of the prospectus that is a part of the shelf registration statement, notify each noteholder when the shelf registration statement has become effective and take certain other actions to permit resales of the exchange notes. A noteholder that sells exchange notes under the shelf registration statement generally will be required to be named as a selling security holder in the related prospectus and to deliver a prospectus to purchasers, will be subject to certain of the civil liability provisions under the Securities Act in connection with those sales and will be bound by the provisions of the registration rights agreement that are applicable to such a noteholder (including certain indemnification obligations).

If the exchange offer is not completed (or, if required, the shelf registration statement is not declared effective) on or before the date that is 270 days after the closing date (the Target Registration Date), the annual interest rate borne by the exchange notes will be increased (i) 0.25% per annum for the first 90-day period immediately following the Target Registration Date and (ii) an additional 0.25% per annum with respect to each subsequent 90-day period, in each case until the earlier of the second anniversary of the issue date of the exchange notes and the date that

the exchange offer is completed or, if required, the shelf registration statement is declared effective, up to a maximum of 1.00% per annum of additional interest. All references to interest in the indenture that will govern the exchange notes and the section titled Description of the Exchange Notes of this prospectus shall include any additional interest that the Issuer is required to pay pursuant to the registration rights agreement.

If the Issuer effects the exchange offer, the Issuer will be entitled to close the exchange offer not earlier than 20 business days after its commencement, provided that the Issuer has accepted all exchange notes validly surrendered in accordance with the terms of the exchange offer. Original notes not tendered in the exchange offer shall bear interest at the rate set forth on the cover page of this prospectus and be subject to all the terms and conditions specified in the indenture, including transfer restrictions.

The preceding is a summary of the material terms and provisions of the registration rights agreement. A copy of the registration rights agreement is available from us upon request.

Table of Contents

Transferability of the Exchange Notes

Based on an interpretation of the Securities Act by the staff of the SEC in several no-action letters issued to third parties not related to the Issuer, the exchange notes would, in general, be freely tradable after the completion of the exchange offer without further compliance with the registration and prospectus delivery requirements of the Securities Act. However, any participant in the exchange offer described in this prospectus who is an affiliate of the Issuer or who intends to participate in the exchange offer for the purpose of distributing the exchange notes:

- will not be able to rely on the interpretations of the SEC staff;
- will not be entitled to participate in the exchange offer; and
- must comply with the registration and prospectus delivery requirements of the Securities Act in connection with any sale or transfer of the original notes unless such sale or transfer is made pursuant to an exemption from such requirement.

Each holder of original notes who wishes to exchange original notes for exchange notes pursuant to the exchange offer will be required to represent that:

- it is not an affiliate of the Issuer:
- the exchange notes are being acquired in the ordinary course of business of the person receiving the exchange notes, whether or not the person is the holder;
- at the time of the exchange offer, it has no arrangement with any person to participate in the distribution (within the meaning of the Securities Act) of the exchange notes; and
- at the time of the exchange offer, it is not engaged in and does not intend to engage in, a distribution of the exchange notes.

To participate in the exchange offer, you must represent as the holder of original notes that each of these statements is true.

In addition, in connection with any resales of the exchange notes, any broker-dealer that acquired exchange notes for its own account as a result of market-making or other trading activities, which is referred to as an exchanging broker-dealer, must deliver a prospectus meeting the requirements of the Securities Act. The SEC has taken the position that exchanging broker-dealers may fulfill their prospectus delivery requirements with respect to the exchange notes with the prospectus contained in the registration statement for the exchange offer. Under the registration rights agreements, exchanging broker-dealers and any other person, if any, subject to similar prospectus delivery requirements, will be allowed to use this prospectus in connection with the resale of exchange notes.

The Exchange Offer

Upon the terms and subject to the conditions in this prospectus and in the letter of transmittal, the Issuer will accept any and all original notes validly tendered and not withdrawn prior to 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on , 2013. The Issuer will issue \$1,000 principal amount of exchange notes in exchange for each \$1,000 principal amount of original notes accepted in the exchange offer. Holders may tender some or all of their original notes pursuant to the exchange offer. Original notes may be tendered only in minimum denominations of \$2,000 and integral multiples of \$1,000 in excess thereof.

The form and terms of the exchange notes are the same as the form and terms of the original notes except that:

- the exchange notes have been registered under the Securities Act and will not bear any legend restricting their transfer;
- the exchange notes bear a different CUSIP number from the original notes; and
- after consummation of the exchange offer, holders of the exchange notes will not be entitled to any rights under the registration rights agreement, including the provisions for an increase in the interest rate on the original notes in some circumstances relating to the timing of the exchange offer.

37

Table of Contents

The exchange notes will evidence the same debt as the original notes. Holders of exchange notes will be entitled to the benefits of the indenture under which the original notes were issued.

As of the date of this prospectus, \$350,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of original notes was outstanding. The exchange offer will be conducted in accordance with the applicable requirements of the Securities Act, the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act), and the rules and regulations of the SEC under the Securities Act and the Exchange Act.

Interest on the Exchange Notes

The exchange notes will bear interest from the most recent interest payment date to which interest has been paid on the original notes. Interest on the original notes accepted for exchange will cease to accrue upon the issuance of the exchange notes.

Interest on the exchange notes is payable semi-annually on May 1 and November 1 of each year, commencing May 1, 2014, to the Person in whose name the exchange note (or any predecessor note) is registered at the close of business on the April 15 or October 15 immediately preceding such interest payment date.

Conditions to the Exchange Offer

Notwithstanding any other provisions of the exchange offer, or any extension of the exchange offer, the Issuer will not be required to issue exchange notes, and the Issuer may terminate the exchange offer or, at its option, modify, extend or otherwise amend the exchange offer, if, prior to the expiration date of the exchange offer, as it may be extended from time to time:

- the exchange offer, or the making of any exchange by a holder, violates any applicable law, rule or regulation or any applicable interpretation of the staff of the SEC;
- any action or proceeding shall have been instituted or threatened with respect to the exchange offer which would materially impair the Issuer s ability to proceed with the exchange offer;
- not all governmental approvals that the Issuer deems necessary for the consummation of the exchange offer have been obtained; or

• the trustee with respect to the indenture for the original notes and exchange notes shall have (i) objected in any respect to, or taken any action that could, in the reasonable judgment of the Issuer, adversely affect the consummation of the exchange offer or the exchange of exchange notes for original notes under the exchange offer, or (ii) taken any action that challenges the validity or effectiveness of the procedures used in making the exchange offer or the exchange of the original notes under the exchange offer.
The foregoing conditions are for the sole benefit of the Issuer and may be waived by it in whole or in part in its absolute discretion. Any determination made by the Issuer concerning an event, development or circumstance described or referred to above shall be conclusive and binding.
If any of the foregoing conditions are not satisfied or waived on the expiration date of the exchange offer, the Issuer may:
• terminate the exchange offer and return all tendered original notes to the holders thereof;
 modify, extend or otherwise amend the exchange offer and retain all tendered original notes until the expiration date, as extended, subject, however, to the withdrawal rights of holders (See Withdrawal of Tenders and Expiration Date; Extensions; Amendments; Termination); or
 waive the unsatisfied conditions with respect to the exchange offer and accept all original notes tendered and not previously withdrawn.
The Issuer reserves the right, in its absolute discretion, to purchase or make offers to purchase any original notes that remain outstanding subsequent to the expiration date for the exchange offer and, to the extent permitted by applicable law, purchase original notes in the open market, in privately negotiated transactions or otherwise. The terms of any such purchases or offers could differ from
38

Table of Contents

the terms of the exchange offer. Any purchase or offer to purchase will not be made except in accordance with applicable law and will in no event be made prior to the expiration of ten business days after the expiration date.

Certain Consequences to Holders of Original Notes Not Tendering in the Exchange Offer

Consummation of the exchange offer may have adverse consequences to holders of original notes who elect not to tender their notes in the exchange offer. In particular, the trading market for unexchanged original notes could become more limited than the existing trading market for the original notes and could cease to exist altogether due to the reduction in the amount of original notes outstanding upon consummation of the exchange offer. A more limited trading market might adversely affect the liquidity, market price and price volatility of the original notes. If a market for unexchanged original notes exists or develops, the original notes may trade at a discount to the price at which they would trade if the amount outstanding were not reduced. There can, however, be no assurance that an active market in the unexchanged original notes will exist, develop or be maintained or as to the prices at which the unexchanged original notes may be traded. This would result in less protection for holders of unexchanged original notes. See Risk Factors If you do not properly tender your original notes, your ability to transfer them will be adversely affected.

Expiration Date; Extensions; Amendments; Termination

For purposes of the exchange offer, the term expiration date means 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on , 2013 subject to the right to extend such date and time for the exchange offer in the absolute discretion of the Issuer, in which case the expiration date means the latest date and time to which the exchange offer is extended.

The Issuer reserves the right, in its absolute discretion, to (i) extend the exchange offer, (ii) terminate the exchange offer if a condition to its obligation to deliver the exchange notes is not satisfied or waived on the expiration date, as extended, or (iii) amend the exchange offer by giving oral or written notice of such delay, extension, termination or amendment to the exchange agent. If the Issuer amends the exchange offer in a manner it determines constitutes a material change (including the waiver of a material condition), the Issuer will extend the exchange offer for a period of five to ten business days, depending upon the significance of the amendment and the manner of disclosure, if the exchange offer would otherwise expire during the five to ten business day period.

The Issuer will promptly announce any extension, amendment or termination of the exchange offer by issuing a press release. The Issuer will announce any extension of the expiration date no later than 9:00 a.m., New York City time, on the first business day after the previously scheduled expiration date. The notice of extension will disclose the aggregate principal amount of the original notes that have been tendered as of the date of such notice. The Issuer has no other obligation to publish, advertise or otherwise communicate any information about any extension, amendment or termination.

Settlement Date

The exchange notes will be issued in exchange for the original notes in the exchange offer on the settlement date, which will be promptly following the expiration date of the exchange offer. The Issuer will not be obligated to deliver exchange notes unless the exchange offer is consummated.

Effect of Tender

Any tender by a holder (and the subsequent acceptance of such tender) of original notes will constitute a binding agreement between that holder and the Issuer upon the terms and subject to the conditions of the exchange offer described herein and in the letter of transmittal. The acceptance of the exchange offer by a tendering holder of the original notes will constitute the agreement by that holder to deliver good and marketable title to the tendered original notes, free and clear of any and all liens, restrictions, charges, pledges, security interests, encumbrances or rights of any kind of third parties.

Letter of Transmittal; Representations, Warranties and Covenants of Holders of Original Notes

Upon the submission of a properly completed letter of transmittal, or agreement to the terms of the letter of transmittal pursuant to an agent s message, a holder, or the beneficial holder of such original notes on behalf of which the holder has tendered, will, subject to that holder s ability to withdraw its tender, and subject to the terms and conditions of the exchange offer generally, be deemed, among other things, to:

Table of Contents

• irrevocably sell, assign and transfer to or upon the Issuer s order or the order of its nominee all right, title and interest in and to, and any and all claims in respect of or arising or having arisen as a result of such holder s status as a holder of, all original notes tendered thereby, such that thereafter it shall have no contractual or other rights or claims in law or equity against the Issuer or any fiduciary, trustee, fiscal agent or other person connected with the original notes arising under, from or in connection with such original notes;
• waive any and all rights with respect to the original notes tendered thereby (including, without limitation, any existing or past defaults and their consequences in respect of such original notes); and
• release and discharge the Issuer and the trustee under the indenture governing the original notes from any and all claims such holder may have, now or in the future, arising out of or related to the original notes tendered thereby, including, without limitation, any claims that such holder is entitled to receive additional principal or interest payments with respect to the original notes tendered thereby or to participate in any redemption or defeasance of the original notes tendered thereby.
In addition, such holder of original notes will be deemed to represent, warrant and agree that:
• it has received and reviewed this prospectus;
• it is the beneficial owner (as defined below) of, or a duly authorized representative of one or more such beneficial owners of, the original notes tendered thereby and it has full power and authority to execute the letter of transmittal;
• the original notes being tendered thereby were owned as of the date of tender, free and clear of any liens, charges, claims, encumbrances, interests and restrictions of any kind, and the Issuer will acquire good, indefeasible and unencumbered title to such original notes, free and clear of all liens, charges, claims, encumbrances, interests and restrictions of any kind, when the Issuer accepts the same;
• it will not sell, pledge, hypothecate or otherwise encumber or transfer any original notes tendered thereby from the date of the letter of transmittal and agrees that any purported sale, pledge, hypothecation or other encumbrance or transfer will be void and of no effect;
• in evaluating the exchange offer and in making its decision whether to participate therein by submitting a letter of transmittal and tendering its original notes, such holder has made its own independent appraisal of the matters referred to herein and in any related communications and is not relying on any statement, representation or warranty, express or implied, made to such holder by the Issuer, the trustee or the exchange agent other than those contained in this prospectus (as amended or supplemented to the expiration date):

- the execution and delivery of the letter of transmittal shall constitute an undertaking to execute any further documents and give any further assurances that may be required in connection with any of the foregoing, in each case on and subject to the terms and conditions set out or referred to in this prospectus;
- the submission of the letter of transmittal to the exchange agent shall, subject to a holder s ability to withdraw its tender prior to the expiration date, and subject to the terms and conditions of the exchange offer, constitute the irrevocable appointment of the exchange agent as its attorney and agent, and an irrevocable instruction to such attorney and agent to complete and execute all or any form(s) of transfer and other document(s) at the discretion of such attorney and agent in relation to the original notes tendered thereby in favor of the Issuer or such other person or persons as it may direct and to deliver such form(s) of transfer and other document(s) in the attorney s and agent s discretion and/or the certificate(s) and other document(s) of title relating to such original notes registration and to execute all such other documents and to do all such other acts and things as may be in the opinion of such attorney or agent necessary or expedient for the purpose of, or in connection with, the acceptance of the exchange offer, and to vest in the Issuer or its nominees such original notes;
- it is acquiring the registered notes in its ordinary course of business and has no arrangement or understanding with any person to participate in the distribution of the registered securities to be received in the exchange offer;

Table of Contents

•	if it is a broker-dealer holding	g original notes acquired for its own account as a result of market-making or other trading activities, it
will	ill deliver a prospectus meeting the re	quirements of the Securities Act in connection with any resale of the registered notes received pursuant to
the e	ne exchange offer (provided, that, by s	agreeing and by delivering a prospectus, any such broker-dealer will not be deemed to admit that it is
an ı	n underwriter within the meaning o	the Securities Act); and

• the terms and conditions of the exchange offer shall be deemed to be incorporated in, and form a part of, the letter of transmittal which shall be read and construed accordingly.

The representations and warranties and agreements of a holder tendering original notes shall be deemed to be repeated and reconfirmed on and as of the expiration date and the settlement date. For purposes of this prospectus, the beneficial owner of any original notes shall mean any holder that exercises investment discretion with respect to such original notes.

Absence of Dissenters Rights

Holders of the original notes do not have any appraisal or dissenters rights in connection with the exchange offer.

Acceptance of Original Notes Tendered; Delivery of Exchange Notes

On the settlement date, exchange notes to be issued in partial or full exchange for original notes in the exchange offer, if consummated, will be delivered in book-entry form.

The Issuer will be deemed to have accepted validly tendered original notes that have not been validly withdrawn as provided in this prospectus when, and if, the Issuer has given oral or written notice thereof to the exchange agent. Subject to the terms and conditions of the exchange offer, delivery of the exchange notes through the settlement date will be made by the exchange agent on the settlement date upon receipt of such notice. The exchange agent will act as agent for tendering holders of the original notes for the purpose of receiving original notes and transmitting exchange notes as of the settlement date. If any tendered original notes are not accepted for any reason set forth in the terms and conditions of the exchange offer, such unaccepted original notes will be returned without expense to the tendering holder promptly after the expiration or termination of the exchange offer.

Procedures for Tendering Original Notes

A holder of original notes who wishes to accept the exchange offer, and whose original notes are held by a custodial entity such as a bank, broker, dealer, trust company or other nominee, must instruct this custodial entity to tender such holder s original notes on the holder s behalf pursuant to the procedures of the custodial entity.

To tender in the exchange offer, a holder of original notes must either (i) complete, sign and date the letter of transmittal (or a facsimile thereof) in accordance with its instructions (including guaranteeing the signature(s) to the letter of transmittal, if required), and mail or otherwise deliver such letter of transmittal or such facsimile, together with the certificates representing the original notes specified therein, to the exchange agent at the address set forth in the letter of transmittal for receipt on or prior to the expiration date or (ii) comply with the Automated Tender Offer Program (ATOP) procedures for book-entry transfer or guaranteed delivery procedures described below on or prior to the expiration date.

The letter of transmittal (or facsimile thereof), with any required signature guarantees, or (in the case of book-entry transfer) an agent s message in lieu of the letter of transmittal, and any other required documents, must be transmitted to and received by the exchange agent on or prior to the expiration date of the exchange offer at one of its addresses set forth in this prospectus. Original notes will not be deemed surrendered until the letter of transmittal and signature guarantees, if any, or agent s message, are received by the exchange agent.

The method of delivery of original notes, the letter of transmittal, and all other required documents to the exchange agent is at the election and risk of the holder. Instead of delivery by mail, holders should use an overnight or hand delivery service, properly insured. In all cases, sufficient time should be allowed to assure delivery to and receipt by the exchange agent on or before the expiration date. Do not send the letter of transmittal or any original notes to anyone other than the exchange agent.

If you are tendering your original notes in exchange for exchange notes and anticipate delivering your letter of transmittal and other documents other than through DTC, you are urged to contact promptly a bank, broker or other intermediary (that has the capability to

Table of Contents

hold notes custodially through DTC) to arrange for receipt of any exchange notes to be delivered pursuant to the exchange offer and to obtain the information necessary to provide the required DTC participant with account information in the letter of transmittal.

Book-Entry Delivery Procedures for Tendering Original Notes Held with DTC

If you wish to tender original notes held on your behalf by a nominee with DTC, you must (i) inform your nominee of your interest in tendering your original notes pursuant to the exchange offer, and (ii) instruct your nominee to tender all original notes you wish to be tendered in the exchange offer into the exchange agent s account at DTC on or prior to the expiration date. Any financial institution that is a nominee in DTC, including Euroclear and Clearstream, must tender original notes by effecting a book-entry transfer of the original notes to be tendered in the exchange offer into the account of the exchange agent at DTC by electronically transmitting its acceptance of the exchange offer through the ATOP procedures for transfer. DTC will then verify the acceptance, execute a book-entry delivery to the exchange agent s account at DTC, and send an agent s message to the exchange agent. An agent s message is a message, transmitted by DTC to and received by the exchange agent and forming part of a book-entry confirmation, which states that DTC has received an express acknowledgement from an organization that participates in DTC (a participant) tendering original notes that the participant has received and agrees to be bound by the terms of the letter of transmittal and that Issuer may enforce the agreement against the participant. A letter of transmittal need not accompany tenders effected through ATOP.

Holders of original notes who are unable to deliver confirmation of the book-entry tender of their original notes into the exchange agent s account at DTC or all other documents required by the letter of transmittal to the exchange agent on or prior to the expiration date must tender their original notes according to the guaranteed delivery procedures described below.

Guaranteed Delivery Procedures

Holders wishing to tender their original notes but whose original notes are not immediately available or who cannot deliver their original notes, the letter of transmittal or any other required documents to the exchange agent or comply with the applicable procedures under DTC s ATOP system prior to the expiration date may tender if:

- the tender is made through an eligible guarantor institution;
- prior to the expiration date, the exchange agent receives from such eligible guarantor institution either a properly completed and duly executed notice of guaranteed delivery, by facsimile transmission, mail or hand delivery, or a properly transmitted agent s message and notice of guaranteed delivery: (i) setting forth the name and address of the holder, the registered number(s) of such original notes and the principal amount of original notes tendered, (ii) stating that the tender is being made thereby; and (iii) guaranteeing that, within three (3) business days after the expiration date, the letter of transmittal, or facsimile of the letter of transmittal, together with the original notes or a book-entry confirmation, and any other documents required by the letter of transmittal will be deposited by the eligible institution with the exchange agent; and

• the exchange agent receives such properly completed and executed letter of transmittal, or facsimile of the letter of transmittal, as well as all tendered original notes in proper form for transfer or a book-entry confirmation, and all other documents required by the letter of transmittal, within such three (3) business days after the expiration date.

Upon request to the exchange agent, a notice of guaranteed delivery will be sent to holders who wish to tender their original notes according to the guaranteed delivery procedures set forth above.

Proper Execution and Delivery of Letter of Transmittal

Signatures on a letter of transmittal or notice of withdrawal described below (see Withdrawal of Tenders), as the case may be, must be guaranteed by an eligible institution unless the original notes tendered pursuant to the letter of transmittal are tendered (i) by a holder who has not completed the box entitled Special Delivery Instructions or Special Issuance and Payment Instructions on the letter of transmittal or (ii) for the account of an eligible institution. If signatures on a letter of transmittal, or notice of withdrawal, are required to be guaranteed, such guarantee must be made by an eligible institution.

If the letter of transmittal is signed by the holder(s) of original notes tendered thereby, the signature(s) must correspond with the name(s) as written on the face of the original notes without alteration, enlargement or any other change whatsoever. If any of the original notes tendered thereby are held by two or more holders, all such holders must sign the letter of transmittal. If any of the

Table of Contents

original notes tendered thereby are registered in different names on different original notes, it will be necessary to complete, sign and submit as many separate letters of transmittal, and any accompanying documents, as there are different registrations of certificates.

If original notes that are not tendered for exchange pursuant to the exchange offer are to be returned to a person other than the holder thereof, certificates for such original notes must be endorsed or accompanied by an appropriate instrument of transfer, signed exactly as the name of the registered owner appears on the certificates, with the signatures on the certificates or instruments of transfer guaranteed by an eligible institution.

If the letter of transmittal is signed by a person other than the holder of any original notes listed therein, such original notes must be properly endorsed or accompanied by a properly completed note power, signed by such holder exactly as such holder s name appears on such original notes. If the letter of transmittal or any original notes, note powers or other instruments of transfer are signed by trustees, executors, administrators, guardians, attorneys-in-fact, officers of corporations or others acting in a fiduciary or representative capacity, such persons should so indicate when signing, and, unless waived by the Issuer, evidence satisfactory to the Issuer of their authority to so act must be submitted with the letter of transmittal.

No alternative, conditional, irregular or contingent tenders will be accepted. By executing the letter of transmittal (or facsimile thereof), the tendering holders of original notes waive any right to receive any notice of the acceptance for exchange of their original notes. Tendering holders should indicate in the applicable box in the letter of transmittal the name and address to which payments, and/or substitute certificates evidencing original notes for amounts not tendered or not exchanged are to be issued or sent, if different from the name and address of the person signing the letter of transmittal. If no such instructions are given, original notes not tendered or exchanged will be returned to such tendering holder.

All questions as to the validity, form, eligibility (including time of receipt), and acceptance and withdrawal of tendered original notes will be determined by the Issuer in its absolute discretion, which determination will be final and binding. The Issuer reserves the absolute right to reject any and all tendered original notes determined by it not to be in proper form or not to be tendered properly or any tendered original notes the acceptance of which would, in the opinion of its counsel, be unlawful. The Issuer also reserves the right to waive, in its absolute discretion, any defects, irregularities or conditions of tender as to particular original notes, whether or not waived in the case of other original notes. The Issuer s interpretation of the terms and conditions of the exchange offer (including the instructions in the letter of transmittal) will be final and binding on all parties. Unless waived, any defects or irregularities in connection with tenders of original notes must be cured within such time as the Issuer shall determine. Although the Issuer intends to notify holders of defects or irregularities with respect to tenders of original notes, none of the Issuer, the exchange agent nor any other person will be under any duty to give such notification or shall incur any liability for failure to give any such notification. Tenders of original notes will not be deemed to have been made until such defects or irregularities have been cured or waived.

Any holder whose original notes have been mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed will be responsible for obtaining replacement securities or for arranging for indemnification with the trustee of the original notes. Holders may contact the exchange agent for assistance with such matters.

Withdrawal of Tenders

You may withdraw tenders of original notes at any time prior to 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on , 2013. Tenders of original notes may not be withdrawn after that time unless the exchange offer is extended with changes in the terms of the exchange offer that are, in the Issuer s reasonable judgment, materially adverse to the tendering holders of the original notes.

For a withdrawal of a tender to be effective, a written or facsimile transmission notice of withdrawal must be received by the exchange agent prior to the deadline described above at one of its addresses set forth in this prospectus. The withdrawal notice must specify the name of the person who tendered the original notes to be withdrawn, must contain a description of the original notes to be withdrawn, the certificate numbers shown on the particular certificates evidencing such original notes, if applicable, and the aggregate principal amount represented by such original notes; and must be signed by the holder of such original notes in the same manner as the original signature on the letter of transmittal (including any required signature guarantees) or be accompanied by evidence satisfactory to the Issuer that the person withdrawing the tender has succeeded to the beneficial ownership of the original notes. In addition, the notice of withdrawal must specify, in the case of original notes tendered by delivery of certificates for such original notes, the name of the registered holder (if different from that of the tendering holder) or, in the case of original notes tendered by book-entry transfer, the name and number of the account at DTC to be credited with the withdrawn original notes. The signature on the notice of withdrawal must be guaranteed by an eligible institution unless the original notes have been tendered for the account of an eligible institution.

Table of Contents

Withdrawal of tenders of original notes may not be rescinded, and any original notes properly withdrawn will thereafter be deemed not validly tendered for purposes of the exchange offer. Properly withdrawn original notes may, however, be retendered by the holder again following one of the procedures described in Procedures for Tendering Original Notes prior to the expiration date.

Accounting Treatment

The exchange notes will be recorded at the same carrying value as the original notes. The carrying value is the face value. Accordingly, the Issuer will recognize no gain or loss for accounting purposes. The expenses of the exchange offer will be expensed over the term of the exchange notes.

Exchange Agent

U.S. Bank National Association, a national banking association organized under the laws of the United States of America, has been appointed the exchange agent for the exchange offer. Letters of transmittal and all correspondence in connection with the exchange offer should be sent or delivered by each holder of original notes, or a beneficial owner s commercial bank, broker, dealer, trust company or other nominee, to the exchange agent at the following address and telephone number:

U.S. Bank National Association

60 Livingston Ave.

Saint Paul, Minnesota 55107 Attention: Corporate Trust Services/Specialized Finance

Phone: 804-934-6802

Additionally, any questions concerning tender procedures and requests for additional copies of this prospectus or the letter of transmittal should be directed to the exchange agent. Holders of original notes may also contact their commercial bank, broker, dealer, trust company or other nominee for assistance concerning the exchange offer.

DELIVERY TO AN ADDRESS OTHER THAN AS SET FORTH ABOVE WILL NOT CONSTITUTE A VALID DELIVERY.

Other Fees and Expenses

The Issuer will bear the expenses of soliciting tenders of the original notes. The principal solicitation is being made by mail; additional solicitations may, however, be made by telegraph, facsimile transmission, telephone or in person by the exchange agent, as well as by the Issuer s officers and other employees and those of their affiliates.

Tendering holders of original notes will not be required to pay any fee or commission. If, however, a tendering holder handles the transaction through its broker, dealer, commercial bank, trust company or other institution, such holder may be required to pay brokerage fees or commissions.

Table of Contents

DESCRIPTION OF THE EXCHANGE NOTES

We will issue the exchange notes pursuant to an Indenture (the Indenture) dated as of October 11, 2013, among the Issuer, the guarantors and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee. The terms of the exchange notes include those stated in the Indenture and those made a part of the Indenture by reference to the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended (the Trust Indenture Act).

The following summary of the material provisions of the Indenture does not purport to be complete, and where reference is made to particular provisions of the Indenture, such provisions, including the definitions of certain terms, are qualified in their entirety by reference to all of the provisions of the Indenture and those terms made a part of the Indenture by reference to the Trust Indenture Act. For definitions of certain capitalized terms used in the following summary, see Certain Definitions. References in this section to Company mean Sinclair Broadcast Group, Inc., a Maryland corporation, and do not include any of its subsidiaries, and references to the Issuer, we, us and our refer to Sinclair Television Group, Inc., a Maryland corporation, and do not include any of its subsidiaries or the Company, unless the context otherwise requires. For purposes of this description, references to Notes include the original notes, the exchange notes and an additional notes subsequently issued under the Indenture. A copy of the form of indenture will be made available to prospective purchasers of the Notes upon request.

General

The Notes will mature on November 1, 2021 and will be general unsecured senior obligations of the Issuer. Each Note will bear interest at 6.375% per annum from October 11, 2013 or from the most recent interest payment date to which interest has been paid, payable semiannually on May 1 and November 1 of each year, commencing May 1, 2014, to the Person in whose name the Note (or any predecessor Note) is registered at the close of business on the April 15 or October 15 immediately preceding such interest payment date.

Payment of the Notes is guaranteed by the Guarantors, jointly and severally, on a senior unsecured basis. The Guarantors are comprised of all of the Subsidiaries that have issued guarantees under our Bank Credit Agreement and our Existing Secured Notes, which includes all but one of our Subsidiaries, the Company and two subsidiaries of the Company. See Guarantees.

Principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Notes will be payable, and the Notes will be exchangeable and transferable, at our office or agency maintained for such purposes (which initially will be the trustee under the indenture); provided, however, that payment of interest may be made at our option by check mailed to the Person entitled to such interest as shown on the security register.

The Notes will be issued only in fully registered form without coupons, in denominations of \$2,000 and any integral multiple of \$1,000 in excess thereof. See Book-Entry Securities; The Depository Trust Company; Delivery and Form. No service charge will be made for any registration of transfer, exchange or redemption of Notes, except in certain circumstances for any tax or other governmental charge that may be imposed.

We may from time to time, without notice to or the consent of the holders of Notes, create and issue further Notes (the Additional Notes) ranking equally with the Notes in all respects, subject to the limitations described under Certain Covenants Limitations on Indebtedness. Such Additional Notes may be consolidated and form a single series with the Notes, vote together with the Notes and have the same terms as to status,

redemption or otherwise as the Notes. References to Notes in this Description of the Exchange Notes include these Additional Notes if they are in the same series, unless the context requires otherwise. Such Additional Notes may not be fungible with the Notes for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

Optional Redemption

Except as described below, the Notes are not redeemable until November 1, 2016. The Notes will be subject to redemption at any time on or after November 1, 2016, at our option, in whole or in part, on not less than 15 nor more than 60 days prior notice in amounts of \$2,000 or an integral multiple of \$1,000 in excess thereof at the following redemption prices (expressed as percentages of the principal amount), if redeemed during the 12-month period beginning April 1 of the years indicated below:

Year		Redemption price
2016		104.781%
2017		103.188%
2018		101.594%
2019 and thereafter		100.000%
	45	

Table of Contents

in each case together with accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the redemption date (subject to the right of holders of record on relevant record dates to receive interest due on an interest payment date).

In addition, at any time on or prior to November 1, 2016, we may redeem up to 35% of the principal amount of Notes issued under the Indenture with the net proceeds of an Equity Offering of the Issuer or the Company at 106.375% of the aggregate principal amount, together with accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the redemption date (subject to the right of holders of record on relevant record dates to receive interest due on an interest payment date); provided that

- (1) at least 65% of the principal amount of Notes issued under the Indenture remains outstanding after each such redemption; and
- (2) the redemption occurs within 90 days after the closing of such Equity Offering.

If the optional redemption date is on or after an interest record date and on or before the related interest payment date, the accrued and unpaid interest, if any, will be paid to the Person in whose name the Note is registered at the close of business on such record date, and no additional interest will be payable to holders whose Notes will be subject to redemption by the Issuer.

If less than all of the Notes are to be redeemed, the Trustee shall select the Notes or portions thereof to be redeemed pro rata, by lot or by any other method the Trustee shall deem fair and reasonable, subject to the requirements of The Depository Trust Company (DTC).

Notices of redemption may be given prior to the completion of any event or transaction related to such redemption, and any redemption or notice may, at our discretion, be subject to one or more conditions precedent, including, but not limited to, completion of an Equity Offering. In addition, if such redemption or notice is subject to satisfaction of one or more conditions precedent, such notice shall state that, in the Company s discretion, the redemption date may be delayed until such time as any or all such conditions shall be satisfied, or such redemption may not occur, and such notice may be rescinded in the event that any or all such conditions shall not have been satisfied by the redemption date, or by the redemption date so delayed.

In addition, at any time prior to November 1, 2016, upon not less than 15 nor more than 60 days prior notice, we may redeem the Notes, in whole or in part, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof plus the Applicable Premium plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the redemption date (subject to the right of holders of record on the relevant record date to receive interest due on the relevant interest payment date).

Mandatory Redemption; Offers to Purchase; Open Market Purchases

The Issuer is not required to make any mandatory redemption or sinking fund payments with respect to the Notes. However, under certain circumstances, the Issuer may be required to offer to purchase the Notes as described under the captions. Certain Covenants. Purchase of Notes upon a Change of Control and Certain Covenants. Limitation on Sale of Assets. We may at any time and from time to time purchase Notes in the open market, in privately negotiated transaction, through tender or exchange offers or otherwise.

Ranking

The Notes will be general senior unsecured obligations of the Issuer that rank senior in right of payment to all of the Issuer s existing and future Indebtedness that is expressly subordinated in right of payment to the Notes. The Notes will rank equally in right of payment with all of the Issuer s existing and future Indebtedness that is not so subordinated. The Notes will be effectively subordinated to any obligations of the Issuer that are secured by assets to the extent of the value of the assets securing such obligations. In the event of bankruptcy, liquidation, reorganization or other winding up of the Issuer or the Guarantors or upon a default in payment with respect to, or the acceleration of any Indebtedness under, the Bank Credit Agreement, the assets of the Issuer and the Guarantors that secure such Indebtedness will be available to pay obligations on the Notes and the Guarantees only after all Indebtedness under the Bank Credit Agreement has been repaid in full from such assets and there may not be sufficient assets remaining to pay amounts due on any or all of the Guarantees then outstanding.

Table of Contents
Guarantees
The Guarantors will, jointly and severally, unconditionally guarantee on a senior unsecured basis the due and punctual payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on, the Notes.
Under certain circumstances described under Certain Covenants Limitation on Issuances of Guarantees of and Pledges for Indebtedness, we are required to cause the execution and delivery of additional Guarantees by Restricted Subsidiaries.
In addition, upon any sale, exchange or transfer, to any Person not an Affiliate of ours, of all of our Equity Interest in, or all or substantially all of the assets of, any Guarantor, which is in compliance with the Indenture, such Guarantor shall be released from all its obligations under its Guarantee.
The Guarantors initially consist of the Company, all but one of our existing Subsidiaries, and two Subsidiaries of the Company (which Subsidiaries of the Company own or operate television stations).
Certain Covenants
The Indenture contains, among others, the following covenants:
Limitation on Indebtedness
We will not, and will not permit any Restricted Subsidiary to, create, incur, assume or directly or indirectly guarantee or in any other manner become directly or indirectly liable for (incur) any Indebtedness (including Acquired Indebtedness), except that we may incur Indebtedness and a Guarantor may incur Permitted Subsidiary Indebtedness if, in each case, the Debt to Operating Cash Flow Ratio of the Issuer and its Restricted Subsidiaries at the time of the incurrence of such Indebtedness, after giving pro forma effect thereto, is 7:1 or less.
The foregoing limitation will not apply to the incurrence of any of the following (collectively, Permitted Indebtedness):
(1) (A) our Indebtedness under the Bank Credit Agreement and (B) any Indebtedness incurred to refinance, restructure, replace or substitute our Indebtedness under the Bank Credit Agreement, in an aggregate principal amount at any one time outstanding not to exceed an aggregate principal amount equal to (1) prior to the date of the Amendment to the Bank Credit Agreement (the Refinancing Date), (a) the term loans outstanding under the Bank Credit Agreement as of the date of the Indenture plus (b) delayed draw term loans that may be drawn under the

Bank Credit Agreement as of the date of the Indenture plus (c) amounts committed as of the date of the Indenture under any revolving credit facility thereunder plus (d) additional borrowings we may request under the Bank Credit Agreement as of the date of the Indenture in accordance with the accordion feature thereof and (2) on and after the Refinancing Date, (a) the term loans outstanding under the Bank Credit Agreement as of the Refinancing Date plus (b) delayed draw term loans that may be drawn under the Bank Credit Agreement as of the Refinancing Date plus (c) amounts committed as of the Refinancing Date under any revolving credit facility thereunder plus (d) additional borrowings we may request under the Bank Credit Agreement as of the Refinancing Date in accordance with the accordion feature thereof;

- (2) our Indebtedness pursuant to the Notes (other than any Additional Notes) and Indebtedness of any Guarantor pursuant to a Guarantee;
- (3) Indebtedness of any Guaranter consisting of a guarantee of our Indebtedness under the Bank Credit Agreement, the Existing Secured Notes and the Existing Senior Notes;
- (4) Indebtedness of the Issuer or any Restricted Subsidiary outstanding on the date of the Indenture other than any Indebtedness incurred pursuant to clause (1);
- Indebtedness of the Issuer owing to a Restricted Subsidiary; provided that any Indebtedness of the Issuer owing to a Restricted Subsidiary that is not a Guarantor is made pursuant to an intercompany note in the form attached to the Indenture and is subordinated in right of payment from and after such time as the Notes shall become due and payable (whether at Stated Maturity, acceleration or otherwise) to the payment and performance of our obligations under the Notes; provided, further, that any disposition, pledge or transfer of any such Indebtedness to a Person (other than a disposition, pledge or transfer to a Wholly Owned Restricted Subsidiary or a pledge to or for the benefit of the lenders under the Bank Credit Agreement) shall be deemed to be an incurrence of such Indebtedness by the obligor not permitted by this clause (5);

Table of Contents

- Indebtedness of a Wholly Owned Restricted Subsidiary owing to the Issuer or another Wholly Owned Restricted Subsidiary; provided that, with respect to Indebtedness owing to a Wholly Owned Restricted Subsidiary that is not a Guarantor, (x) any such Indebtedness is made pursuant to an intercompany note in the form attached to the Indenture and (y) any such Indebtedness shall be subordinated in right of payment from and after such time as the obligations under the Guarantee by such Wholly Owned Restricted Subsidiary shall become due and payable to the payment and performance of such Wholly Owned Restricted Subsidiary s obligations under its Guarantee; provided, further, that (a) any disposition, pledge or transfer of any such Indebtedness to a Person (other than a disposition, pledge or transfer to the Issuer or a Wholly Owned Restricted Subsidiary or pledge to or for the benefit of the lenders under the Bank Credit Agreement) shall be deemed to be an incurrence of such Indebtedness by the obligor not permitted by this clause (6) and (b) any transaction pursuant to which any Wholly Owned Restricted Subsidiary, which has Indebtedness owing to the Issuer or any other Wholly Owned Restricted Subsidiary, ceases to be a Wholly Owned Restricted Subsidiary shall be deemed to be the incurrence of Indebtedness by such Wholly Owned Restricted Subsidiary that is not permitted by this clause (6);
- (7) (a) guarantees of any Restricted Subsidiary made in accordance with the provisions of Limitation on Issuances of Guarantees of and Pledges for Indebtedness and (b) guarantees by the Issuer or any Restricted Subsidiary of Indebtedness of third parties substantially all of the operations of which are pursuant to one or more Local Marketing Agreements with one or more of Sinclair, the Issuer or any Restricted Subsidiary;
- (8) our obligations entered into in the ordinary course of business and not for speculative purposes pursuant to Interest Rate Agreements designed to protect us against fluctuations in interest rates in respect of our Indebtedness;
- Indebtedness incurred pursuant to any refinancing, replacement, redemption or repurchase of the Existing Convertible Notes, including Indebtedness incurred to pay a dividend or make a distribution or loan to the Company to fund such refinancing, replacement, redemption or repurchase, in an aggregate principal amount (or if issued with original issue discount, an aggregate issue price) not in excess of the aggregate principal amount of Existing Convertible Notes so refinanced, replaced, redeemed or repurchased, plus the lesser of (I) the stated amount of any premium, interest or other payment required to be paid in connection with such refinancing, replacement, redemption or repurchase pursuant to the terms of the Existing Convertible Notes or (II) the amount of premium, interest or other payment actually paid at such time to refinance, replace, redeem or repurchase the Existing Convertible Notes plus, in either case, the amount of expenses of the Issuer incurred in connection with such refinancing, replacement, redemption or repurchase, provided that such Indebtedness (A) does not mature and is not subject to mandatory redemption at the option of the holder thereof (other than pursuant to change of control provisions or asset sale offers) prior to the 91st day after the Stated Maturity of the Notes, (B) is unsecured or is secured by property that also secures the Notes and the Guarantees on an equal and ratable basis or on a basis that is senior in priority to such Indebtedness, (C) does not have restrictive covenants or other terms that are more stringent in any material respect than the covenants set forth in the Indenture after giving effect to any amendment to the Indenture and the Notes made in compliance with the Indenture and (D) is not directly or indirectly guaranteed by any entity that does not also guarantee the Notes:
- any renewals, extensions, substitutions, refundings, refinancings or replacements (collectively, a refinancing) of any Indebtedness described in the first paragraph of this covenant or clauses (2), (3), (4), (5), and (9) above, including any successive refinancings in an aggregate principal amount (or if issued with original issue discount, an aggregate issue price) not in excess of the aggregate principal amount of such Indebtedness so refinanced, plus the lesser of (I) the stated amount of any premium, interest or other payment required to be paid in connection with such a refinancing pursuant to the terms of the Indebtedness being refinanced or (II) the amount of premium, interest or other payment actually paid at such time to refinance the Indebtedness, plus, in either case, the amount of expenses of the Issuer incurred in connection with such refinancing and (A) in the case of Subordinated Indebtedness such new Indebtedness is expressly subordinated in right of payment to the Notes or the Guarantees, as the case may be, at least to the same extent as the Subordinated Indebtedness to be refinanced and (B) in the case of Pari Passu Indebtedness or Subordinated Indebtedness, such refinancing does not reduce the Average Life to Stated Maturity or the Stated Maturity of such Indebtedness;

(11) Indebtedness created due to a change in generally accepted accounting principles of the United States, as applied to the Issuer and the Restricted Subsidiaries, or international financial reporting standards, should such standards become applicable to the Issuer and the Restricted Subsidiaries;

Table of Contents

(5)

Indebtedness represented by Capital Lease Obligations, mortgage financings or purchase money obligations, in each case, incurred for the purpose of financing all or any part of the purchase price, or cost of construction or improvement, of property (real or personal), plant or equipment used in the business of the Issuer or any of its Restricted Subsidiaries, and any renewals, extensions, substitutions, refinancings, or replacements of such Indebtedness, in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed \$150,000,000 at any time outstanding; and
(13) Indebtedness of the Issuer in addition to that described in clauses (1) through (12) above, and any renewals, extensions, substitutions, refinancings, or replacements of such Indebtedness, so long as the aggregate principal amount of all such Indebtedness shall not exceed \$200,000,000 at any time outstanding.
In the event that Indebtedness meets the criteria of more than one of the types of Indebtedness described in the first and second paragraphs of this covenant, the Issuer, in its sole discretion, will classify such item of Indebtedness on the date of incurrence and may later reclassify such item of Indebtedness in any manner that complies with this covenant and only be required to include the amount and type of such Indebtedness in one of such clauses; provided that all Indebtedness outstanding on the date of the Indenture under the Bank Credit Agreement shall be deemed incurred under clause (1) of the second paragraph of this covenant and not the first paragraph or clause (4) of the second paragraph of this covenant and may not later be reclassified.
Limitation on Restricted Payments
(a) We will not, and will not permit any Restricted Subsidiary to, directly or indirectly:
(1) declare or pay any dividend on, or make any distribution to holders of, any of the Issuer s Equity Interests (other than dividends or distributions payable solely in its Qualified Equity Interests);
(2) purchase, redeem or otherwise acquire or retire for value, directly or indirectly, any Equity Interest of the Issuer or any Affiliate thereof including any Subsidiary (except Equity Interests held by the Issuer or a Wholly Owned Restricted Subsidiary that is a Guarantor);
(3) make any principal payment on, or repurchase, redeem, defease, retire or otherwise acquire for value, prior to any scheduled principal payment, sinking fund or maturity, any Subordinated Indebtedness;
(4) declare or pay any dividend or distribution on any Equity Interests of any Restricted Subsidiary to any Person (other than the Issuer or any of its Wholly Owned Restricted Subsidiaries that are Guarantors);

incur, create or assume any guarantee of Indebtedness of any Affiliate (other than a Wholly Owned Restricted Subsidiary); or

(6) make any Investment in any Person (other than any Permitted Investments);
(any of the foregoing payments described in clauses (1) through (6), other than any such action that is a Permitted Payment, collectively, Restricted Payments) unless after giving effect to the proposed Restricted Payment (the amount of any such Restricted Payment, if other that cash, as determined by our Board of Directors, whose determination shall be conclusive and evidenced by a Board resolution),
(1) no Default or Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing and such Restricted Payment shall not be an event which is, or after notice or lapse of time or both, would be, an event of default under the terms of any Indebtedness of the Issuer or its Restricted Subsidiaries;
(2) immediately after giving effect to such transaction on a pro forma basis, the Issuer could incur \$1.00 of additional Indebtedness (other than Permitted Indebtedness) under the first paragraph of Limitation on Indebtedness; and
(3) the aggregate amount of all such Restricted Payments declared or made after the date of the Indenture does not exceed the sum of:
(A) an amount equal to our Cumulative Operating Cash Flow less 1.4 times our Cumulative Consolidated Interest Expense;
49

Table of Contents

(B) the aggregate Net Cash Proceeds received after October 29, 2009 by us from capital contributions (other than from a Subsidiary) or from the issuance or sale (other than to the Company or any of our Subsidiaries) of Qualified Equity Interests of us or, to the extent such net cash proceeds are actually contributed to us as equity, the Company (except, in each case, to the extent such proceeds are used to purchase, redeem or otherwise retire Equity Interests or Subordinated Indebtedness as set forth below);
(C) (i) to the extent that any Investment constituting a Restricted Payment (including an Investment in an Unrestricted Subsidiary) that was made after October 29, 2009 is sold or is otherwise liquidated or repaid, 100% of the amount (to the extent not included in Cumulative Operating Cash Flow) equal to the Net Cash Proceeds or Fair Market Value of marketable securities received with respect to such Investment (less the cost of the disposition of such Investment and net of taxes) and (ii) any cash contribution received by the Issuer from the Company as a result of any Investment constituting a Restricted Payment (including an Investment in an Unrestricted Subsidiary) that was made after October 29, 2009 (to the extent not included in Cumulative Operating Cash Flow); and
(D) \$150,000,000.
(b) Notwithstanding the foregoing, and in the case of clauses (2) through (9) below, so long as there is no Default or Event of Default continuing, the foregoing provisions shall not prohibit the following actions (clauses (1) through (9) being referred to as Permitted Payments):
(1) the payment of any dividend within 60 days after the date of declaration thereof, if at such date of declaration such payment would be permitted by the provisions of paragraph (a) of this covenant and such payment shall be deemed to have been paid on such date of declaration for purposes of the calculation required by paragraph (a) of this covenant;
(2) any transaction with an officer or director of the Company or the Issuer entered into in the ordinary course of business (including compensation or employee benefit arrangements with any officer or director of the Company or the Issuer, including the payment of longevity bonuses in accordance therewith);
(3) the repurchase, redemption, or other acquisition or retirement of any of our or the Company s Equity Interests in exchange for (including any such exchange pursuant to the exercise of a conversion right or privilege where in connection therewith cash is paid in lieu of the issuance of fractional shares or scrip), or out of the Net Cash Proceeds of, a substantially concurrent issue and sale for cash (other than to a Subsidiary of the Issuer) of our or the Company s Qualified Equity Interests or from substantially concurrent contributions to the equity capital of the Issuer; provided that the Net Cash Proceeds from the issuance of such Qualified Equity Interests are excluded from clause (3)(B) of paragraph (a) of this covenant;
(4) any repurchase, redemption, defeasance, retirement, refinancing or acquisition for value or payment of principal of any Subordinated Indebtedness in exchange for, or out of the net proceeds of, a substantially concurrent issuance and sale for cash (other than to the Company or any of our Subsidiaries) of any of our or the Company s Qualified Equity Interests or from substantially concurrent contributions to the equity capital of the Issuer, provided that the Net Cash Proceeds from the issuance of such Qualified Equity Interests are excluded from clause (3)(B) of paragraph (a) of this covenant;

the repurchase, redemption, defeasance, retirement, refinancing or acquisition for value or payment of principal of any Subordinated Indebtedness (other than Disqualified Equity Interests) (a refinancing) through the issuance of new Subordinated Indebtedness of the Issuer, provided that any such new Indebtedness (A) shall be in a principal amount that does not exceed the principal amount so refinanced or, if such Subordinated Indebtedness provides for an amount less than the principal amount thereof to be due and payable upon a declaration or acceleration thereof, then such lesser amount as of the date of determination), plus the lesser of (I) the stated amount of any premium, interest or other payment required to be paid in connection with such a refinancing pursuant to the terms of the Indebtedness being refinanced or (II) the amount of premium, interest or other payment actually paid at such time to refinance the Indebtedness, plus, in either case, the amount of expenses we incurred in connection with such refinancing; (B) has an Average Life to Stated Maturity greater than the remaining Average Life to Stated Maturity of the Notes; (C) has a Stated Maturity for its final scheduled principal payment later than the Stated Maturity for the final scheduled principal payment of the Notes; and (D) is expressly subordinated in right of payment to the Notes and the Guarantees, as the case may be, at least to the same extent as the Subordinated Indebtedness to be refinanced;

Table of Contents

- payments of cash dividends or other cash distributions or payments to the Company in an amount sufficient to enable the Company to make payments of cash interest required to be made in respect of the Existing Convertible Notes of any Indebtedness which refinances, replaces, redeems or repurchases the Existing Convertible Notes in accordance with clauses (9) and (10) of the second paragraph under Limitation on Indebtedness (but not to exceed such required amount) in accordance with the terms thereof in effect on the date of the Indenture, provided the Company is otherwise unable to pay such interest and such dividends are applied directly to the payment of such interest;
- (i) payments of cash dividends or other cash distributions or payments to the Company in an amount sufficient to enable the Company to repurchase, redeem, defease, retire, refinance or acquire for value or pay the principal of any Existing Convertible Notes in accordance with the terms thereof as in effect on the date of the Indenture and any reasonable fees and expenses incurred by the Company therewith, provided that such payments are applied directly to the repurchase, redemption, defeasance, retirement, refinancing or acquisition for value or payment of the principal of any Existing Convertible Notes and (ii) any repurchase, redemption, defeasance, retirement, refinancing or acquisition for value or payment of principal of any Existing Convertible Notes and the distribution or transfer of any such Existing Convertible Notes to the Company for retirement or cancellation;
- the distribution, dividend or other transfer of notes receivable (reflecting Indebtedness owed by any non-Designated SBG Subsidiary to the Issuer) in existence as of the date of the Indenture by the Issuer to the Company or any Unrestricted Subsidiary in connection with a Separation Transaction; provided that immediately after giving effect to such distribution, dividend or other transfer, on a pro forma basis the Issuer could incur \$1.00 of additional Indebtedness under the first paragraph of Certain Covenants Limitation on Indebtedness (other than Permitted Indebtedness); and
- (9) payments of cash dividends, distributions, loans or other transfers by the Issuer to the Company in amounts required (but not in excess thereof) for the Company to pay, in each case without duplication:
- (a) foreign, federal, state and local incomes taxes; to the extent such income taxes are either (1) attributable to the income of the Issuer and its Restricted Subsidiaries and, to the extent of the amount actually received from its Unrestricted Subsidiaries, in amounts required to pay such taxes to the extent attributable to the income of such Unrestricted Subsidiaries or (2) attributable to the income of the Company but not any of its subsidiaries, provided that in the case of clause (1) above, the amount of such payments in any fiscal year does not exceed the amount that the Issuer and its Restricted Subsidiaries would be required to pay in respect of foreign, federal, state and local taxes for such fiscal year were the Issuer, its Restricted Subsidiaries and its Unrestricted Subsidiaries (to the extent described above) to pay such taxes separately from any such parent entity;
- (b) fees and expenses (including franchise or similar taxes) required to maintain its corporate existence, customary salary, bonus and other benefits payable to, and indemnities provided on behalf of, officers, directors and employees of any direct or indirect parent of the Issuer, if applicable, and general corporate overhead expenses of any direct or indirect parent of the Issuer in each case to the extent such fees and expenses are attributable to the ownership or operation of the Issuer, if applicable, and its Restricted Subsidiaries (provided, that for so long as such direct or indirect parent owns no assets other than the Equity Interests in the Issuer or another direct or indirect parent of the Issuer, such fees and expenses shall be deemed for purposes of this clause (9) to be so attributable to such ownership or operation);
- (c) amounts payable on the Company s lease(s) for the corporate headquarters;

- (d) general and administrative overhead (except for longevity bonuses) of subsidiaries of the Company (other than Restricted Subsidiaries) so long as the aggregate payments pursuant to this clause (d) shall not in any fiscal year exceed an amount equal to \$30,000,000 minus any payments made pursuant to clause (12) of the definition of Permitted Investments;
- (e) capital expenditures of the Company so long as the amount of all payments pursuant to this clause (e) shall not exceed \$25,000,000 in the aggregate;

51

Table of Contents

(f) unfunded commitments relating to operating divisions other than broadcast, so long as the amount of all payments pursuant to this clause (f) shall not exceed in the aggregate an amount equal to \$100,000,000 minus any payments made pursuant to clause (13) of the definition of Permitted Investments;
(g) cash dividends on the Company s shares of common stock in the aggregate amount per fiscal quarter not to exceed \$0.20 per share for each share of common stock of the Company outstanding as of the one record date for dividends payable in respect of such fiscal quarter (as such amount shall be appropriately adjusted for any stock splits, stock dividends, reverse stock splits, stock consolidations and similar transactions); and
(h) repurchases of the Company s shares of common stock pursuant to open market or privately negotiated transactions in an aggregate amount not to exceed \$100,000,000.
provided that, notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, no Designated SBG Subsidiary shall be permitted to make any dividend or other distributions, in cash or property (other than in its additional ownership interests), to the Company or any subsidiary of the Company that directly owns the ownership interests of such Designated SBG Subsidiary, including any sinking fund or similar deposit, on account of the purchase, redemption, retirement, acquisition, cancellation or termination of any such ownership interests or any option, warrant or other right to acquire any such ownership interests.
Limitation on Transactions with Affiliates
We will not, and will not permit any of our Restricted Subsidiaries to, directly or indirectly, enter into or suffer to exist any transaction or series of related transactions (including, without limitation, the sale, purchase, exchange or lease of assets, property or services) with any Affiliate of ours (other than us or a Wholly Owned Restricted Subsidiary) unless:
(1) such transaction or series of transactions is in writing and on terms that are no less favorable to us or such Restricted Subsidiary, as the case may be, than would be available in a comparable transaction in arm s-length dealings with an unrelated third party and
(2) with respect to any transaction or series of transactions involving aggregate payments in excess of \$5,000,000, we deliver an officers certificate to the Trustee certifying that such transaction or series of related transactions complies with clause (1) above and such transaction or series of related transactions has been approved by a majority of the members of the Company s Board of Directors (and approved by a majority of Independent Directors or, in the event there is only one Independent Director, by such Independent Director), and

with respect to any transaction or series of transactions involving aggregate payments in excess of \$10,000,000, an opinion to us or

such Restricted Subsidiary from an independent investment banking, accounting or appraisal firm of nationally recognized standing that the terms of such transaction are not materially less favorable than those that might reasonably have been obtained in a comparable transaction at

such time on an arm s-length basis from a Person that is not an Affiliate.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, this provision will not apply to (A) any transaction with an officer or director of the Issuer or the Company entered into in the ordinary course of business (including compensation or employee benefit arrangements with any officer or director of the Issuer or the Company), (B) any transaction entered into by us or one of our Wholly Owned Restricted Subsidiaries with a Wholly Owned Restricted Subsidiary of ours, (C) transactions in existence on the date of the Indenture and (D) any Restricted Payment permitted by the covenant described under Limitations on Restricted Payments.

Limitation on Liens

We will not, and will not permit any Restricted Subsidiary to, directly or indirectly, create, incur or affirm any Lien of any kind upon any of its property or assets (including any intercompany notes), now owned or acquired after the date of the indenture, or any income or profits therefrom, except if the Notes are directly secured equally and ratably with (or prior to in the case of Liens with respect to Subordinated Indebtedness) the obligation or liability secured by such Lien, excluding, however, from the operation of the foregoing any of the Permitted Liens.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, any Lien securing the Notes granted pursuant to this covenant shall be automatically and unconditionally released and discharged upon (a) the release by the holders of the Indebtedness described above of their Lien on the

Table of Contents

property or assets of the Issuer or any Restricted Subsidiary (including any deemed release upon payment in full of all obligations under such
Indebtedness), (b) any sale, exchange or transfer to any person other than the Issuer or any Restricted Subsidiary of all or substantially all the
assets of any Restricted Subsidiary creating such Lien in each case in accordance with the terms of the Indenture, (c) payment in full of the
principal of, and accrued and unpaid interest, if any, on the Notes, or (d) a defeasance or discharge of the Notes in accordance with the
procedures described below under Defeasance or Covenant Defeasance of the Indenture or Satisfaction and Discharge.

The following, collectively, shall constitute the Permitted Liens:		
(a) an	by Lien existing as of the date of the Indenture (other than Liens permitted under clause (c) below);	
is adequatel shall not have delinquent of deposits in of licenses, respect to lee by, through of any parce such business encumbrance purposes or of its Subsicion of business	by Lien arising by reason of (1) any judgment, decree or order of any court not constituting an Event of Default, so long as such Lien by bonded and any appropriate legal proceedings which may have been duly initiated for the review of such judgment, decree or order we been finally terminated or the period within which such proceedings may be initiated shall not have expired; (2) taxes not yet or which are being contested in good faith; (3) security for payment of workers compensation or other insurance; (4) good faith connection with tenders, leases, contracts (other than contracts for the payment of money); (5) zoning restrictions, easements, servations, provisions, covenants, conditions, waivers, restrictions on the use of property or minor irregularities of title (and with easehold interests, mortgages, obligations, liens and other encumbrances incurred, created, assumed or permitted to exist and arising or under a landlord or owner of the leased property, with or without consent of the lessee), none of which materially impairs the use led of property material to the operation of the business of the Issuer or any Subsidiary or the value of such property for the purpose of sss; (6) deposits to secure public or statutory obligations, or in lieu of surety or appeal bonds; (7) surveys, exceptions, title defects, zes, reservations of, or rights of others for, rights of way, sewers, electric lines, telegraph or telephone lines and other similar zoning or other restrictions as to the use of real property not interfering with the ordinary conduct of the business of the Issuer or any diaries; or (8) operation of law in favor of mechanics, materialmen, laborers, employees or suppliers, incurred in the ordinary course for sums which are not yet delinquent or are being contested in good faith by negotiations or by appropriate proceedings which collection thereof;	

- (c) any Lien now or hereafter existing on our property or any of our Restricted Subsidiaries securing Indebtedness incurred pursuant to clause (1) of the second paragraph under Limitation on Indebtedness and provided that the provisions described under Limitation on Issuances of Guarantees of and Pledges for Indebtedness are complied with;
- (d) any Lien securing Acquired Indebtedness created prior to (and not created in connection with, or in contemplation of) the incurrence of such Indebtedness by us or any Restricted Subsidiary, in each case which Indebtedness is permitted under the provisions of Limitation on Indebtedness; provided that any such Lien only extends to the assets that were subject to such Lien securing such Acquired Indebtedness prior to the related transaction by the Issuer or its Subsidiaries;
- (e) any Lien securing Permitted Subsidiary Indebtedness;
- (f) Liens securing the Notes and Guarantees and any obligations owing to the Trustee under the Indenture;

(g) Liens or outstanding;	n property of the Issuer or any Restricted Subsidiary with respect to obligations that do not exceed \$50,000,000 at any one time
paragraph under	n on property of the Issuer or any Restricted Subsidiary securing Indebtedness incurred pursuant to clause (2) of the second Limitation on Indebtedness, provided that the provisions described under Limitation on Issuance of Guarantees of and Pledges are complied with;
` '	ension, renewal, refinancing or replacement, in whole or in part, of any Lien described in the foregoing clauses (a) and long as the Lien is limited to the same property and assets that secured the original Lien; and
Ratio of the Issuer	n securing Indebtedness of the Issuer and any Restricted Subsidiary; provided, that the Secured Debt to Operating Cash Flow r and its Restricted Subsidiaries at the time of the incurrence of such Indebtedness, after giving pro forma effect thereto and to the proceeds, is 6.0:1 or less.
	53

Table of Contents

Limitation on Sale of Assets

- (a) We will not, and will not permit any of our Restricted Subsidiaries to, directly or indirectly, consummate an Asset Sale unless (1) at least 75% of the consideration from such Asset Sale (exclusive of assumed senior Indebtedness to which we and our Restricted Subsidiaries have received a full and unconditional release from such liability in connection with such Asset Sale) is received in cash and (2) we or such Restricted Subsidiary receives consideration at the time of such Asset Sale at least equal to the Fair Market Value of the shares or assets sold (other than in the case of an involuntary Asset Sale, as determined by our Board of Directors and evidenced in a Board resolution or in connection with an Asset Swap, as determined in writing by a nationally recognized investment banking or appraisal firm); provided, however, that in the event we or any Restricted Subsidiary engage in an Asset Sale with any third party and receives in consideration therefor, or simultaneously with such Asset Sale enters into, a Local Marketing Agreement with such third party or any Affiliate thereof, the Fair Market Value of such Local Marketing Agreement (as determined in writing by a nationally recognized investment banking or appraisal firm) shall be deemed cash and considered when determining whether such Asset Sale complies with the foregoing clauses (1) and (2). Notwithstanding the foregoing, clause (1) of the preceding sentence shall not be applicable to any Asset Swap. Any Designated Noncash Consideration received by us or any of our Restricted Subsidiaries in an Asset Sale shall be deemed cash for purposes of clause (1) of this provision.
- If all or a portion of the Net Cash Proceeds of any Asset Sale are required to be applied (by the terms of such secured Indebtedness) to permanently repay any secured Indebtedness that is secured by a Permitted Lien, the Issuer and the Restricted Subsidiaries may apply such Net Cash Proceeds to the repayment thereof within 12 months of the Asset Sale. If all or a portion of the Net Cash Proceeds of any Asset Sale are not required to be applied to repay permanently any secured Indebtedness that is secured by a Permitted Lien then outstanding as required by the terms thereof, or we determine not to apply such Net Cash Proceeds to the permanent prepayment of such secured Indebtedness that is secured by a Permitted Lien or if no such secured Indebtedness that is secured by a Permitted Lien that by its terms requires the repayment thereof is then outstanding, then we may within 12 months of the Asset Sale, (1) invest the Net Cash Proceeds in properties and assets that (as determined by our Board of Directors) replace the properties and assets that were the subject of the Asset Sale or in properties and assets that will be used in any businesses conducted or proposed to be conducted (as described in this prospectus or any document incorporated herein) by us or our Restricted Subsidiaries on the date of the Indenture or reasonably related thereto or (2) permanently repay any secured Indebtedness that is secured by a Permitted Lien; provided, however, that the Issuer or the applicable Restricted Subsidiary will be deemed to have complied with this clause (b) if, within 12 months of such Asset Sale, the Issuer or the applicable Restricted Subsidiary shall have commenced and not completed or abandoned an expenditure or Investment, or a binding agreement with respect to an expenditure or Investment, in compliance with this clause (b), and that expenditure or Investment is substantially completed within a date that is 12 months and 180 days after the date of such Asset Sale. The amount of such Net Cash Proceeds not used or invested as set forth in the first two sentences of this clause (b) constitutes Excess Proceeds. Pending the final application of any Net Cash Proceeds pursuant to this clause (b), the Issuer or the applicable Restricted Subsidiary may apply such Net Cash Proceeds temporarily to reduce Indebtedness outstanding under a revolving credit facility or otherwise invest such Net Cash Proceeds in any manner not prohibited by the Indenture.
- (c) Within 30 days after the aggregate amount of Excess Proceeds exceeds \$25,000,000, we shall apply the Excess Proceeds to the repayment of the Notes and, at the option of the Issuer, any Pari Passu Indebtedness required to be repurchased under the instrument governing such Pari Passu Indebtedness as follows:
- (A) we shall make an offer to purchase (an Offer) from all holders of the Notes in accordance with the procedures set forth in the Indenture in the maximum principal amount (expressed as a multiple of \$1,000) of Notes that may be purchased out of an amount (the Note Amount) equal to the product of such Excess Proceeds multiplied by a fraction, the numerator of which is the outstanding principal amount of the Notes, and the denominator of which is the sum of the outstanding principal amount of the Notes and such Pari Passu Indebtedness (subject to proration in the event such amount is less than the aggregate Offered Price of all Notes tendered), and

(B) to the extent required by such Pari Passu Indebtedness to permanently reduce the principal amount of such Pari Passu Indebtedness, we shall make an offer to purchase or otherwise repurchase or redeem Pari Passu Indebtedness (a Pari Passu Offer) in an amount (the Pari Passu Debt Amount) equal to the excess of the Excess Proceeds over the Note Amount; provided that in no event shall the Pari Passu Debt Amount exceed the principal amount of such Pari Passu Indebtedness plus the amount of any premium required to be paid to repurchase such Pari Passu Indebtedness.

Table of Contents

The offer price shall be payable in cash in an amount equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Notes plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the date (the Offer Date) such Offer is consummated (the Offered Price), in accordance with the procedures set forth in the Indenture. To the extent that the aggregate Offered Price of the Notes tendered pursuant to the Offer is less than the Note Amount relating thereto or the aggregate amount of Pari Passu Indebtedness that is purchased is less than the Pari Passu Debt Amount (the amount of such shortfall, if any, constituting a Deficiency), we shall use such Deficiency in our business and that of our Restricted Subsidiaries. Upon completion of the purchase of all the Notes tendered pursuant to an Offer and repurchase of the Pari Passu Indebtedness pursuant to a Pari Passu Offer, the amount of Excess Proceeds, if any, shall be reset at zero. The Issuer may make an Offer before the end of the 366 days and/or in an amount of less than

\$25,000,000. Whenever the Excess Proceeds we receive exceed \$25,000,000, such Excess Proceeds shall be set aside by us in a separate account pending (i) deposit with the depositary or a paying agent of the amount required to purchase the Notes or Pari Passu Indebtedness tendered in an Offer or a Pari Passu Offer, (ii) delivery by us of the Offered Price to the holders of the Notes or Pari Passu Indebtedness tendered in an Offer or a Pari Passu Offer and (iii) application, as set forth above, of Excess Proceeds in our business and that of our Restricted Subsidiaries. Such Excess Proceeds may be invested in Temporary Cash Investments, provided that the maturity date of any such investment made after the amount of Excess Proceeds exceeds \$25,000,000 shall not be later than the Offer Date. We shall be entitled to any interest or dividends accrued, earned or paid on such Temporary Cash Investments, provided that we shall not withdraw such interest from the separate account if an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing. If we become obligated to make an Offer pursuant to clause (c) above, the Notes shall be purchased by us, at the option of the holder thereof, in whole or in part in amounts of \$2,000 or an integral multiple of \$1,000 in excess thereof, on a date that is not earlier than 45 days and not later than 60 days from the date the notice is given to holders, or such later date as may be necessary for us to comply with the requirements under the Exchange Act, subject to proration in the event the Note Amount is less than the aggregate Offered Price of all Notes tendered. (f) We shall comply with the applicable tender offer rules, including Rule 14e-1 under the Exchange Act, and any other applicable securities laws or regulations in connection with an Offer, provided that to the extent that the provisions of any such securities laws or regulations conflict with any provisions of such an Offer, the Issuer will comply with those securities laws and regulations and will not be deemed to have breached its obligations under any provisions of such an Offer by virtue of such conflict. (g) We will not, and will not permit any Restricted Subsidiary to, create or permit to exist or become effective any restriction (other than restrictions existing under Indebtedness as in effect on the date of the Indenture as such Indebtedness may be refinanced from time to time, provided that such restrictions are no less favorable to the holders of the Notes than those existing on the date of the Indenture) that would materially impair our ability to make an Offer to purchase the Notes or, if such Offer is made, to pay for the Notes tendered for purchase.

Limitation on Issuances of Guarantees of and Pledges for Indebtedness

(a) We will not permit any Restricted Subsidiary, other than the Guarantors, directly or indirectly, to guarantee, assume or in any other manner become liable with respect to any of our Indebtedness (other than guarantees in existence on the date of the Indenture) unless such guarantee is otherwise permitted under the Indenture and such Restricted Subsidiary simultaneously executes and delivers a supplemental indenture to the Indenture providing for a guarantee of payment of the Notes by such Restricted Subsidiary, which guarantee shall be on the same terms as the guarantee of such Indebtedness, except that the guarantee of the Notes need not be secured; provided that if such Indebtedness

is Subordinated Indebtedness, any such assumption, guarantee or other liability of such Restricted Subsidiary with respect to such Indebtedness shall be subordinated to such Restricted Subsidiary s guarantee of the Notes at least to the same extent as such Indebtedness is subordinated to the Notes.

(b) Each guarantee created pursuant to the provisions described in the foregoing paragraph is referred to as a Guarantee and the issuer of each such Guarantee is referred to as a Guarantor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any Guarantee by a Restricted Subsidiary of the Notes shall provide by its terms that it shall be automatically and unconditionally released and discharged upon

(1) any sale, exchange or transfer, to any Person not an Affiliate of the Issuer, of all of the Company s or the Issuer s Equity Interest in, or all or substantially all the assets of, such Restricted Subsidiary, which is in compliance with the Indenture or

(2) with respect to any Guarantees created after the date of the Indenture, the release by the holders of our Indebtedness described in clause (a) above of their guarantee by such Restricted Subsidiary (including any deemed release upon payment

55

Table of Contents

in full of all obligations under such Indebtedness), at a time when (A) no other of our Indebtedness has been secured or guaranteed by such Restricted Subsidiary, as the case may be, or (B) the holders of all such other Indebtedness which is secured or guaranteed by such Restricted Subsidiary also release their Guarantee by such Restricted Subsidiary (including any deemed release upon payment in full of all obligations under such Indebtedness).

Restriction on Transfer of Assets

We and the Guarantors will not sell, convey, transfer or otherwise dispose of our respective assets or property to any of our Restricted Subsidiaries (other than any Guarantor), except for sales, conveyances, transfers or other dispositions made in the ordinary course of business and except for capital contributions to any Restricted Subsidiary, the only material assets of which are Broadcast Licenses, in each case subject to compliance with Limitation on Sale of Assets. For purposes of this provision, any sale, conveyance, transfer, lease or other disposition of property or assets, having a Fair Market Value in excess of (a) \$1,000,000 for any sale, conveyance, transfer, lease or disposition or series of related sales, conveyances, transfers, leases and dispositions and (b) \$10,000,000 in the aggregate for all such sales, conveyances, transfers, leases or dispositions in any fiscal year of the Issuer shall not be considered in the ordinary course of business.

Purchase of Notes upon a Change of Control

If a Change of Control shall occur at any time, then each holder of Notes shall have the right to require that we purchase such holder s Notes in whole or in part in amounts of \$2,000 and integral multiples of \$1,000 thereof, at a purchase price (the Change of Control Purchase Price) in cash in an amount equal to 101% of the principal amount of such Notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the date of purchase (the Change of Control Purchase Date), pursuant to the offer described below (the Change of Control Offer) and the other procedures set forth in the Indenture.

Within 30 days following any Change of Control, unless we have exercised our right to redeem all of the Notes as described under Optional Redemption, we shall notify the Trustee thereof and give written notice of such Change of Control to each holder of Notes, by first-class mail, postage prepaid, at the address appearing in the security register, stating, among other things, the purchase price and that the purchase date shall be a Business Day no earlier than 30 days nor later than 60 days from the date such notice is mailed, or such later date as is necessary to comply with requirements under the Exchange Act; that any Note not tendered will continue to accrue interest; that, unless we default in the payment of the purchase price, any Notes accepted for payment pursuant to the Change of Control Offer shall cease to accrue interest after the Change of Control Purchase Date; and certain other procedures that a holder of Notes must follow to accept a Change of Control Offer or to withdraw such acceptance.

If a Change of Control Offer is made, there can be no assurance that we will have available funds sufficient to pay the Change of Control Purchase Price for all of the Notes that might be delivered by holders of the Notes seeking to accept the Change of Control Offer. A Change of Control will also result in an event of default under the Bank Credit Agreement and could result in the acceleration of all indebtedness under the Bank Credit Agreement. See Description of Other Indebtedness Sinclair Television Group, Inc. Bank Credit Agreement. Moreover, the Bank Credit Agreement prohibits the repurchase of the Notes by us. Our failure to make or consummate the Change of Control Offer or pay the Change of Control Purchase Price when due will result in an Event of Default under the Indenture.

The Change of Control provisions described below may deter certain mergers, tender offers and other takeover attempts involving the Company or the Issuer by increasing the capital required to effectuate such transactions. In addition, the term all or substantially all as used in the definition of Change of Control has not been interpreted under New York law (which is the governing law of the Indenture) to represent a specific quantitative test. As a consequence, in the event the holders of the Notes elected to exercise their rights under the Indenture and we elected to contest such election, there could be no assurance as to how a court interpreting New York law would interpret the phrase.

The Issuer will not be required to make a Change of Control Offer if a third party makes an offer in the manner, at the times and otherwise in compliance with the requirements for a Change of Control Offer to be made by the Issuer and such third party purchases all the Notes properly tendered and not withdrawn under its offer.

The existence of a holder s right to require us to repurchase such holder s Notes upon a Change of Control may deter a third party from acquiring us in a transaction which constitutes a Change of Control. Change of Control means the occurrence of any of the following events:

Table of Contents

of such Change of Control clause.

any person or group (as such terms are used in Sections 13(d) and 14(d) of the Exchange Act), other than Permitted Holders, is or becomes the beneficial owner (as defined in Rules 13d-3 and 13d-5 under the Exchange Act, except that a Person shall be deemed to have beneficial ownership of all shares that such Person has the right to acquire, whether such right is exercisable immediately or only after the passage of time), directly or indirectly, of more than 50% of the total outstanding Voting Stock of the Company or the Issuer, provided that in the case of the Company, the Permitted Holders beneficially own (as so defined) a lesser percentage of such Voting Stock than such other Person and do not have the right or ability by voting power, contract or otherwise to elect or designate for election a majority of the Board of Directors of the Company or the Issuer;
during any period of two consecutive years, individuals who at the beginning of such period constituted the Board of Directors of the Company or the Issuer (together with any new directors whose election to such Board, or whose nomination for election by the shareholders of the Company or the Issuer, was approved by a vote of at least 662/3% of the directors then still in office who were either directors at the beginning of such period or whose election or nomination for election was previously so approved) cease for any reason to constitute a majority of such Board of Directors then in office;
(3) the Company or the Issuer consolidates with or merges with or into any Person or conveys, transfers or leases all or substantially all of its assets to any Person, or any corporation consolidates with or merges into or with the Company or the Issuer, in any such event pursuant to a transaction in which the outstanding Voting Stock of the Company or the Issuer is changed into or exchanged for cash, securities or other property, other than any such transaction where the outstanding Voting Stock of the Company or the Issuer is not changed or exchanged at all (except to the extent necessary to reflect a change in the jurisdiction of incorporation of the Company or the Issuer) or where (A) the outstanding Voting Stock of the Company or the Issuer is changed into or exchanged for (x) Voting Stock of the surviving corporation which is not Disqualified Equity Interests or (y) cash, securities and other property (other than Equity Interests of the surviving corporation) in an amount which could be paid by the Company or the Issuer as a Restricted Payment as described under Limitation on Restricted Payments (and such amount shall be treated as a Restricted Payment subject to the provisions in the Indenture described under Limitation on Restricted Payments) and (B) no person or group other than Permitted Holders owns immediately after such transaction, directly or indirectly, more than the greater of (1) 50% of the total outstanding Voting Stock of the surviving corporation and (2) the percentage of the outstanding Voting Stock of the surviving corporation owned, directly or indirectly, by Permitted Holders immediately after such transaction; or
(4) the Company or the Issuer is liquidated or dissolved or adopts a plan of liquidation or dissolution other than in a transaction which complies with the provisions described under Consolidation, Merger, Sale of Assets.
A Change of Control would be triggered at such time as, during any period of two consecutive years, individuals who at the beginning of such period constituted the Board of Directors of the Company or the Issuer (together with any new directors whose election to such Board or whose nomination for election by the shareholders of the Company or the Issuer, was approved by a vote of at least 662/3% of the directors then still in office who were either directors at the beginning of such period or whose election or nomination for election was previously so approve) cease for any reason to constitute a majority of such Board of Directors then in office. You should note, however, that recent case law suggest that, in the event that incumbent directors are replaced as a result of a contested election, issuers may nevertheless avoid triggering a Change of Control under a clause similar to the provision described in the prior sentence if the outgoing directors were to approve the new directors for the purpose

Permitted Holders means as of the date of determination (1) any of David D. Smith, Frederick G. Smith, J. Duncan Smith and Robert E. Smith; (2) family members or the relatives of the Persons described in clause (1); (3) any trusts created for the benefit of the Persons described in clauses (1), (2) or (4) or any trust for the benefit of any such trust; or (4) in the event of the incompetence or death of any of the Persons described in clauses (1) and (2), such Person s estate, executor, administrator, committee or other personal representative or beneficiaries, in each

case who at any particular date shall beneficially own or have the right to acquire, directly or indirectly, Equity Interests of the Company or the Issuer. With respect to the Issuer, the Company and each Wholly Owned Restricted Subsidiary shall be a Permitted Holder.

The provisions of the Indenture will not afford holders of Notes the right to require us to repurchase the Notes in the event of a highly leveraged transaction or certain transactions with the Company s or the Issuer s management or its Affiliates, including a reorganization, restructuring, merger or similar transaction (including, in certain circumstances, an acquisition of the Company or the Issuer by management or its Affiliates) involving the Company or the Issuer that may adversely affect holders of the Notes, if such transaction is not a transaction defined as a Change of Control. A transaction involving the Company s or the Issuer s management or

Table of Contents

its Affiliates, or a transaction involving a recapitalization of the Company or the Issuer, will only result in a Change of Control if it is the type of transaction specified by such definition.

We will comply with the applicable tender offer rules, including Rule 14e-1 under the Exchange Act, and any other applicable securities laws or regulations in connection with a Change of Control Offer, provided that to the extent that the provisions of any such securities laws or regulations conflict with the Change of Control Offer provisions of the Notes, the Issuer will comply with those securities laws and regulations and will not be deemed to have breached its obligations under the Change of Control Offer provisions of the Notes by virtue of any such conflict.

Limitation on Subsidiary Equity Interests

We will not permit any Restricted Subsidiary of ours to issue any Equity Interests, except for (1) Equity Interests issued to and held by us or a Wholly Owned Restricted Subsidiary, and (2) Equity Interests issued by a Person prior to the time (A) such Person becomes a Restricted Subsidiary, (B) such Person merges with or into a Restricted Subsidiary or (C) a Restricted Subsidiary merges with or into such Person; provided that such Equity Interests were not issued or incurred by such Person in anticipation of the type of transaction contemplated by subclause (A), (B) or (C).

Limitation on Dividends and Other Payment Restrictions Affecting Subsidiaries

We will not, and will not permit any of our Restricted Subsidiaries to, directly or indirectly, create or otherwise cause or suffer to exist or become effective any encumbrance or restriction on the ability of any Restricted Subsidiary of ours to

- (1) pay dividends or make any other distribution on its Equity Interests,
- (2) pay any Indebtedness owed to us or a Restricted Subsidiary,
- (3) make any Investment in us or a Restricted Subsidiary or
- (4) transfer any of its properties or assets to us or any Restricted Subsidiary of ours.

However, this covenant will not prohibit

- ·	ncumbrance or restriction pursuant to an agreement in effect on the date of the Indenture or contained in any other verning debt or preferred securities that are no more restrictive than those contained in the Indenture;
Indenture, in existence at the of, such Person becoming a	ncumbrance or restriction, with respect to a Restricted Subsidiary that is not a Subsidiary of ours on the date of the ne time such Person becomes a Restricted Subsidiary of ours and not incurred in connection with, or in contemplation a Restricted Subsidiary, provided that such encumbrances and restrictions are not applicable to the Issuer or any reproperties or assets of the Issuer or any Restricted Subsidiary other than such Subsidiary which is becoming a
Subsidiary of ours; provide	ncumbrance or restriction existing under, by reason of or with respect to any agreement of us or any Restricted d that (a) such encumbrances or restrictions are ordinary and customary in light of the type of agreement involved will not affect in any material respect our or any Guarantor s ability to make principal and interest payments on the od faith by us;
containing the encumbrance of any such encumbrances of	ncumbrance or restriction existing under any agreement that extends, renews, refinances or replaces the agreements es or restrictions in the foregoing clauses (1), (2) and (3), or in this clause (4), provided that the terms and conditions or restrictions are not materially less favorable to the holders of the Notes than those under or pursuant to the indebtedness so extended, renewed, refinanced or replaced or are not more restrictive than those set forth in the
(5) any er pursuant to which an Asset	ncumbrance or restriction created pursuant to an asset sale agreement, stock sale agreement or similar instrument Sale permitted under Limitation on Sale of Assets is to be consummated, so long
	58

Table of Contents

as such restriction or encumbrance shall be effective only for a period from the execution and delivery of such agreement or instrument through a termination date not later than 270 days after such execution and delivery.

Limitation on Unrestricted Subsidiaries

We will not make, and will not permit any of our Restricted Subsidiaries to make, any Investments in Unrestricted Subsidiaries if, at the time thereof, the aggregate amount of such Investments would exceed the amount of Restricted Payments then permitted to be made pursuant to the Limitation on Restricted Payments covenant. Any Investments in Unrestricted Subsidiaries permitted to be made pursuant to this covenant (1) will be treated as the payment of a Restricted Payment in calculating the amount of Restricted Payments made by us and (2) may be made in cash or property.

Provision of Financial Statements

The Indenture provides that, whether or not the Company is subject to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, it will, to the extent permitted under the Exchange Act, file with the Commission the annual reports, quarterly reports and other documents which it would have been required to file with the Commission pursuant to such Section 13(a) or 15(d) if it were so subject, such documents to be filed with the Commission on or prior to the respective dates by which it would have been required so to file such documents if it were so subject (the Required Filing Dates); provided, however, that if the Company is not permitted by the Commission to file such reports with the Commission, it shall post the annual reports, quarterly reports and other documents that it would have been required to file with the Commission pursuant to such Section 13(a) or 15(d) if it were so subject on its website accessible to each holder of Notes by the applicable Required Filing Date.

The Company will also in any event (x) within 15 days of each Required Filing Date (1) transmit by mail to all holders, as their names and addresses appear in the Note register, without cost to such holders and (2) file with the Trustee copies of the annual reports, quarterly reports and other documents which the Company would have been required to file with the Commission pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act if it were subject to such Sections and (y) if the Company s filing such documents with the Commission is not permitted under the Exchange Act, promptly upon written request and payment of the reasonable cost of duplication and delivery, supply copies of such documents to any prospective holder at its expense. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company will be deemed to have furnished such reports referred to above to the holders if it has filed such reports with the Commission via the Commission s Electronic Data Gathering, Analysis, and Retrieval Filing System (EDGAR) and such reports are publicly available.

In addition, the Indenture will provide that if at any time the financial statements of the Company do not include the consolidated balance sheets, consolidated statements of operations and consolidated statements of cash flows of the Issuer and the Guarantors presented in accordance with Rule 3-10 of Regulation S-X under the Securities Act, then the Issuer will furnish to each holder of Notes (including by posting on a website accessible to each holder of Notes) (a) within 120 days after the end of each fiscal year of the Issuer, the audited consolidated balance sheet and related statements of operations, stockholders—equity and cash flows of the Issuer and its Subsidiaries (excluding Unrestricted Subsidiaries) as of the end of and for such year, setting forth in comparative form the figures for the previous fiscal year, all reported on by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP or other independent public accountants of recognized national standing and (b) within 60 days after the end of each of the first three quarters of each fiscal year of the Issuer, the unaudited consolidated balance sheet and related statements of operations, stockholder—sequity and cash flows of the Issuer and its Subsidiaries (excluding Unrestricted Subsidiaries) as of the end of and for such fiscal quarter and then elapsed portion of such fiscal year, setting forth in comparative form the figures for the corresponding period or periods of the previous fiscal year, all certified by a financial officer of the Issuer.

The Indenture will also provide that, so long as any of the Notes remain outstanding, we will make available to any prospective purchaser of Notes or beneficial owner of Notes in connection with any sale of Notes the information required by Rule 144A(d)(4) under the Securities Act so long as such Notes are not freely transferable under the Securities Act.

Effectiveness of Covenants upon an Investment Grade Rating Event

- (a) Upon and after the occurrence of an Investment Grade Rating Event, the covenants under the foregoing sections of this prospectus will be suspended:
- (1) Limitation on Indebtedness;
- (2) Limitation on Restricted Payments;

59

Table of Contents

(3) Limitation on Transactions with Affiliates; Limitation on Sale of Assets: (4) (5) Limitation on Issuances of Guarantees of and Pledges for Indebtedness; Restrictions on Transfer of Assets: (6)Limitation on Subsidiary Equity Interests; (7) Limitation on Dividends and other Payment Restrictions Affecting Subsidiaries; (8) (9) Limitation on Unrestricted Subsidiaries; and (10)Provision of Financial Statements. (b) Upon and after the occurrence of an Investment Grade Rating Event, the provision set forth in clause (3) of the covenant described below Consolidation, Merger, Sale of Assets will be suspended.

During any period that the foregoing covenants have been suspended, the Issuer s Board of Directors may not designate any of the Issuer s Subsidiaries as Unrestricted Subsidiaries pursuant to the covenant described below under the caption Limitation on Unrestricted Subsidiaries.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the rating assigned by either Rating Agency should subsequently decline to below an Investment Grade Rating, the foregoing covenants will be reinstituted as of and from the date of such rating decline; provided, however, no Default, Event of Default or breach of any kind shall be deemed to exist or have occurred under the Indenture, the Notes or the Guarantees with respect to the foregoing suspended covenants based on, and none of the Issuer or any of the Restricted Subsidiaries or Guarantors shall bear any liability for, any actions taken or events occurring during the period the foregoing covenants were suspended, or any actions taken at any time pursuant to any contractual obligation arising prior to the date the foregoing covenants were reinstated, regardless of whether such actions or events would have been permitted if the applicable suspended covenants remained in effect during such period. On the date the foregoing covenants are reinstated, all Indebtedness incurred during the suspension period will be deemed to have been outstanding on the date of the Indenture, so that it is classified as permitted under clause (4) of Limitation on Indebtedness. Calculations under the reinstated Limitation on Restricted Payments covenant will be made as if the Limitation on Restricted Payments covenant had been in effect since the date of the indenture except that no Default or Event of Default will be deemed to have occurred solely by reason of a Restricted Payment made while that covenant was suspended.

Additional Covenants

The Indenture also contains covenants with respect to the following matters: (i) payment of principal, premium and interest; (ii) maintenance of an office or agency; (iii) arrangements regarding the handling of money held in trust; (iv) maintenance of corporate existence; (v) payment of taxes and other claims; (vi) maintenance of properties; and (vii) maintenance of insurance.

Consolidation, Merger, Sale of Assets

We shall not, in a single transaction or a series of related transactions, consolidate with or merge with or into any other Person or sell, assign, convey, transfer, lease or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of our properties and assets to any Person or group of affiliated Persons, or permit any of our Subsidiaries to enter into any such transaction or transactions if such transaction or transactions, in the aggregate, would result in a sale, assignment, conveyance, transfer, lease or disposition of all or substantially all of the properties and assets of us and our Subsidiaries on a Consolidated basis to any other Person or group of affiliated Persons, unless at the time and after giving effect thereto:

- either (a) we shall be the continuing corporation or (b) the Person (if other than the Issuer) formed by such consolidation or into which we are merged or the Person which acquires by sale, assignment, conveyance, transfer, lease or disposition of all or substantially all of the properties and assets of us and our Subsidiaries on a Consolidated basis (the Surviving Entity) shall be a corporation duly organized and validly existing under the laws of the United States of America, any state thereof or the District of Columbia and such Person assumes, by a supplemental indenture in a form reasonably satisfactory to the Trustee, all of our obligations under the Notes and the Indenture and the Registration Rights Agreement, and the Indenture and the Registration Rights Agreement shall remain in full force and effect;
- (2) immediately before and immediately after giving effect to such transaction, no Default or Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing;

60

transaction occurred on the first day of the four-quarter period immediately prior to the consummation of such transaction with the appropriate

immediately before and immediately after giving effect to such transaction on a pro forma basis (on the assumption that the

Table of Contents

adjustments with respect to the transaction being included in such pro forma calculation), we (or the Surviving Entity if we are not the continuing obligor under the Indenture) could incur \$1.00 of additional Indebtedness under the provisions of Indebtedness (other than Permitted Indebtedness);
(4) each Guarantor, if any, unless it is the other party to the transactions described above, shall have by supplemental indenture confirmed that its Guarantee shall apply to such Person s obligations under the Indenture and the Notes;
(5) if any of our property or assets or any of our Subsidiaries would thereupon become subject to any Lien, the provisions of Certain Covenants Limitation on Liens are complied with; and
(6) we or the Surviving Entity shall have delivered, or caused to be delivered, to the Trustee, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Trustee, an officers certificate and an opinion of counsel, each to the effect that such consolidation, merger, transfer, sale, assignment, lease or other transaction and the supplemental indenture in respect thereto comply with the provisions of the Indenture and that all conditions precedent provided for in the Indenture relating to such transaction have been complied with.
Each Guarantor will not, and we will not permit a Guarantor to, in a single transaction or series of related transactions merge or consolidate with or into any other corporation (other than us or any other Guarantor) or other entity, or sell, assign, convey, transfer, lease or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of its properties and assets on a Consolidated basis to any entity (other than us or any other Guarantor) unless at the time and giving effect thereto:
(1) either (a) such Guarantor shall be the continuing corporation or (b) the entity (if other than such Guarantor) formed by such consolidation or into which such Guarantor is merged or the entity which acquires by sale, assignment, conveyance, transfer, lease or disposition the properties and assets of such Guarantor shall be a corporation duly organized and validly existing under the laws of the United States, any state thereof or the District of Columbia and shall expressly assume by a supplemental indenture, executed and delivered to the Trustee, in a form reasonably satisfactory to the Trustee, all the obligations of such Guarantor under the Notes and the Indenture and the Registration Rights Agreement;
(2) immediately before and immediately after giving effect to such transaction, no Default or Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing; and
(3) such Guarantor shall have delivered to the Trustee, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Trustee, an officers certificate and an opinion of counsel, each stating that such consolidation, merger, sale, assignment, conveyance, transfer, lease or disposition and such supplemental indenture comply with the Indenture, and thereafter all obligations of the predecessor shall terminate.

The provisions of this paragraph shall not apply to any transaction (including an Asset Sale made in accordance with Certain Covenants Limitation on Sale of Assets) with respect to any Guarantor if the Guarantee of such Guarantor is released in connection with such transaction in accordance with paragraph (b) of Certain Covenants Limitation on Issuances of Guarantees of and Pledges for Indebtedness.

In the event of any transaction (other than a lease) described in and complying with the conditions listed in the immediately preceding paragraphs in which we or any Guarantor is not the continuing corporation, the successor Person formed or remaining shall succeed to, and be substituted for, and may exercise every right and power of, us or such Guarantor, as the case may be, and we or such Guarantor, as the case may be, would be discharged from its obligations under the Indenture, the Notes or its Guarantee, as the case may be, and the Registration Rights Agreement.

Events of Default

An Event of Default will occur under the Indenture if:

(1) there shall be a default in the payment of any interest on any Note when it becomes due and payable, and such default shall continue for a period of 30 days;

61

Table of Contents

(2) there shall be a default in the payment of the principal of (or premium, if any, on) any Note at its Maturity (upon acceleration, optional or mandatory redemption, required repurchase or otherwise);
(a) there shall be a default in the performance, or breach, of any covenant or agreement of ours or any Guarantor under the Notes, the Guarantees or the Indenture (other than a default in the performance, or breach, of a covenant or agreement which is specifically dealt with in clause (1) or (2) or in clause (b), (c) or (d) of this clause (3)) and such default or breach shall continue for a period of 30 days after written notice has been given, by certified mail, (x) to us by the Trustee or (y) to us and the Trustee by the holders of at least 25% in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding Notes; (b) there shall be a default in the performance or breach of the provisions described in Consolidation Merger, Sale of Assets; (c) we shall have failed to make or consummate an Offer in accordance with the provisions of Certain Covenants Limitation on Sale of Assets; or (d) we shall have failed to make or consummate a Change of Control Offer in accordance with the provisions of Certain Covenants Purchase of Notes upon a Change of Control;
one or more defaults shall have occurred under any agreements, indentures or instruments under which we, any Guarantor or any Restricted Subsidiary then has outstanding Indebtedness in excess of \$50,000,000 in the aggregate and, if not already matured at its final maturity in accordance with its terms, such Indebtedness shall have been accelerated;
(5) any Guarantee shall for any reason cease to be, or be asserted in writing by any Guarantor or us not to be, in full force and effect, enforceable in accordance with its terms, except to the extent contemplated by the Indenture and any such Guarantee;
one or more judgments, orders or decrees for the payment of money in excess of \$50,000,000, either individually or in the aggregate (net of amounts covered by insurance, bond, surety or similar instrument) shall be entered against us, any Guarantor or any Restricted Subsidiary or any of their respective properties and shall not be discharged and either (a) any creditor shall have commenced an enforcement proceeding upon such judgment, order or decree or (b) there shall have been a period of 60 consecutive days during which a stay of enforcement of such judgment or order, by reason of an appeal or otherwise, shall not be in effect;
there shall have been the entry by a court of competent jurisdiction of (a) a decree or order for relief in respect of the Company, the Issuer or any Significant Subsidiary in an involuntary case or proceeding under any applicable Bankruptcy Law or (b) a decree or order adjudging the Company, the Issuer or any Significant Subsidiary bankrupt or insolvent, or seeking reorganization, arrangement, adjustment or composition of or in respect of the Company, the Issuer or any Significant Subsidiary under any applicable federal or state law, or appointing a custodian, receiver, liquidator, assignee, trustee, sequestrator (or other similar official) of the Company, the Issuer or any Significant Subsidiary or of any substantial part of their respective properties, or ordering the winding up or liquidation of their affairs, and any such decree or order for relief shall continue to be in effect, or any such other decree or order shall be unstayed and in effect, for a period of 60 consecutive days; or
(8) (a) the Company, the Issuer or any Significant Subsidiary commences a voluntary case or proceeding under any applicable Bankruptcy Law or any other case or proceeding to be adjudicated bankrupt or insolvent,

	the Company, the Issuer or any Significant Subsidiary consents to the entry of a decree or order for relief in respect of the or any Significant Subsidiary in an involuntary case or proceeding under any applicable Bankruptcy Law or to the my bankruptcy or insolvency case or proceeding against it,
(c) under any applicable	the Company, the Issuer or any Significant Subsidiary files a petition or answer or consent seeking reorganization or relief federal or state law,
Significant Subsidia	the Company, the Issuer or any Significant Subsidiary (x) consents to the filing of such petition or the appointment of, or a custodian, receiver, liquidator, assignee, trustee, sequestrator or other similar official of the Company, the Issuer or any y or of any substantial part of their respective property, (y) makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors or (z) admits in a pay its debts generally as they become due or
	62

Table of Contents

(e) the Company, the Issuer or any Significant Subsidiary takes any corporate action in furtherance of any such actions in this paragraph (8).

If an Event of Default (other than as specified in clauses (7) and (8) of the prior paragraph) shall occur and be continuing, the Trustee or the holders of not less than 25% in aggregate principal amount of the Notes outstanding may, and the Trustee at the request of such holders shall, declare all unpaid principal of, premium, if any, and accrued interest on, all the Notes to be due and payable immediately by a notice in writing to us (and to the Trustee if given by the holders of the Notes); provided that so long as the Bank Credit Agreement is in effect, such declaration shall not become effective until the earlier of (a) five business days after receipt of such notice of acceleration from the holders or the Trustee by the agent under the Bank Credit Agreement or (b) acceleration of the Indebtedness under the Bank Credit Agreement. Thereupon the Trustee may, at its discretion, proceed to protect and enforce the rights of the holders of Notes by appropriate judicial proceeding. If an Event of Default specified in clause (7) or (8) of the prior paragraph occurs and is continuing, then all the Notes shall ipso facto become and be immediately due and payable, in an amount equal to the principal amount of the Notes, together with accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the date the Notes become due and payable, without any declaration or other act on the part of the Trustee or any holder. The Trustee or, if notice of acceleration is given by the holders of the Notes, the holders of the Notes shall give notice to the agent under the Bank Credit Agreement of such acceleration.

After a declaration of acceleration, but before a judgment or decree for payment of the money due has been obtained by the Trustee, the holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of Notes outstanding, by written notice to us and the Trustee, may rescind and annul such declaration if (a) we have paid or deposited with the Trustee a sum sufficient to pay (1) all sums paid or advanced by the Trustee under the Indenture and the reasonable compensation, expenses, disbursements and advances of the Trustee, its agents and counsel, (2) all overdue interest on all Notes, (3) the principal of and premium, if any, on any Notes which have become due otherwise than by such declaration of acceleration and interest thereon at a rate borne by the Notes and (4) to the extent that payment of such interest is lawful, interest upon overdue interest at the rate borne by the Notes; and (b) all Events of Default, other than the non-payment of principal of the Notes which have become due solely by such declaration of acceleration, have been cured or waived.

The holders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Notes outstanding may on behalf of the holders of all the Notes waive any past default under the Indenture and its consequences, except a default in the payment of the principal of, premium, if any, or interest on any Note, or in respect of a covenant or provision which under the Indenture cannot be modified or amended without the consent of the holder of each Note outstanding.

We are also required to notify the Trustee within five Business Days of the occurrence of any Default. We are required to deliver to the Trustee, on or before a date not more than 60 days after the end of each fiscal quarter and not more than 120 days after the end of each fiscal year, a written statement as to compliance with the Indenture, including whether or not any default has occurred. The Trustee is under no obligation to exercise any of the rights or powers vested in it by the Indenture at the request or direction of any of the holders of the Notes unless such holders offer to the Trustee security or indemnity satisfactory to the Trustee against the costs, expenses and liabilities which might be incurred thereby.

The Trust Indenture Act contains limitations on the rights of the Trustee, should it become a creditor of ours or any Guarantor, to obtain payment of claims in certain cases or to realize on certain property received by it in respect of any such claims, as security or otherwise. The Trustee is permitted to engage in other transactions, provided that if it acquires any conflicting interest it must eliminate such conflict upon the occurrence of an Event of Default or else resign.

Defeasance or Covenant Defeasance of the Indenture

We may, at our option, at any time, elect to have our obligations, each of the Guarantors and any other obligor upon the Notes discharged with respect to the outstanding Notes and the Indenture (defeasance). Such defeasance means that we, each of the Guarantors and any other obligor under the Indenture shall be deemed to have paid and discharged the entire Indebtedness represented by the outstanding Notes, except for
the rights of holders of outstanding Notes to receive payments in respect of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on such Notes when such payments are due,
our obligations with respect to the Notes concerning issuing temporary Notes, registration of Notes, mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen Notes, and the maintenance of an office or agency for payment and money for security payments held in trust,
63

Table of Contents

(3)	the rights, powers, trusts, duties and immunities of the Trustee, and
(4)	the defeasance provisions of the Indenture.
covenants that are de Default or an Event	at our option and at any time, elect to have the obligations of the Issuer and any Guarantor released with respect to certain escribed in the Indenture (covenant defeasance) and any omission to comply with such obligations shall not constitute a of Default with respect to the Notes. In the event covenant defeasance occurs, certain events (not including non-payment, Guarantee, bankruptcy and insolvency events) described under Events of Default will no longer constitute an Event of to the Notes.
In order to exercise e	either defeasance or covenant defeasance,
opinion of a national written certification to on the Stated Maturit outstanding Notes (s	we must irrevocably deposit with the Trustee, in trust, for the benefit of the holders of the Notes, cash in United States ment Obligations (as defined in the Indenture), or a combination thereof, in such amounts as will be sufficient, in the ly recognized firm of independent public accountants or a nationally recognized investment banking firm expressed in a thereof delivered to the Trustee, to pay and discharge the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the outstanding Note ty of such principal or installment of principal or interest (or on any date after the initial redemption date, if any, for such uch date being referred to as the Defeasance Redemption Date), if when exercising either defeasance or covenant delivered to the Trustee an irrevocable notice to redeem all of the outstanding Notes on the Defeasance Redemption Date);
Indenture, there has lindependent counsel income, gain or loss	in the case of defeasance, we shall have delivered to the Trustee an opinion of independent counsel in the United States are received from, or there has been published by, the Internal Revenue Service a ruling or (B) since the date of the been a change in the applicable federal income tax law, in either case to the effect that, and based thereon such opinion of in the United States shall confirm that, the holders and beneficial owners of the outstanding Notes will not recognize for federal income tax purposes as a result of such defeasance and will be subject to federal income tax on the same manner and at the same times as would have been the case if such defeasance had not occurred;
purposes as a result of	in the case of covenant defeasance, we shall have delivered to the Trustee an opinion of independent counsel in the United hat the holders and beneficial owners of the outstanding Notes will not recognize income, gain or loss for federal income tax of such covenant defeasance and will be subject to federal income tax on the same amounts, in the same manner and at the have been the case if such covenant defeasance had not occurred;
(4)(8) under the first pardeposit;	no Default or Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing on the date of such deposit or insofar as clause (7) or ragraph under Events of Default are concerned, at any time during the period ending on the 91st day after the date of

(5)	such defeasance or covenant defeasance shall not cause the Trustee for the Notes to have a conflicting interest with respect
to any securities of	the Issuer or any Guarantor;
(6) Indenture or any otl	such defeasance or covenant defeasance shall not result in a breach or violation of, or constitute a Default under, the her material agreement or instrument to which we or any Guarantor is a party or by which it is bound;
arising under the In	we shall have delivered to the Trustee an opinion of independent counsel to the effect that (A) the trust funds will not be so of holders of Indebtedness that ranks <i>pari passu</i> with the Notes or the Guarantees, including, without limitation, those identure and (B) after the 91st day following the deposit, the trust funds will not be subject to the effect of any applicable ency, reorganization or similar laws affecting creditors—rights generally;
	we shall have delivered to the Trustee an officers certificate stating that the deposit was not made by us with the intent of ers of the Notes or any Guarantee over the other creditors of the Issuer or any Guarantor with the intent of defeating, or defrauding creditors of the Issuer, any Guarantor or others;
	64

Table of Contents

(9) interest on the Notes	no event or condition shall exist that would prevent us from making payments of the principal of, premium, if any, and on the date of such deposit or at any time ending on the 91st day after the date of such deposit; and
	e shall have delivered to the Trustee an officers certificate and an opinion of independent counsel, each stating that all provided for relating to either the defeasance or the covenant defeasance, as the case may be, have been complied with.
Satisfaction and Di	scharge
	ease to be of further effect (except as to surviving rights of registration of transfer or exchange of Notes, as expressly indenture) as to all outstanding Notes when:
(a)	either:
(1) have been delivered	all Notes theretofore authenticated and delivered (except lost, stolen or destroyed Notes which have been replaced or paid) to the Trustee for cancellation; or
Trustee for the givin irrevocably deposite	all Notes not theretofore delivered to the Trustee for cancellation (a) have become due and payable, or (b) will become due Stated Maturity within one year, or (c) are to be called for redemption within one year under arrangements satisfactory to the g of notice of redemption by the Trustee in the name, and at the expense, of the Issuer and we or any Guarantor has d or caused to be deposited with the Trustee funds in an amount sufficient to pay and discharge the entire indebtedness on fore delivered to the Trustee for cancellation, including principal of, premium, if any, and accrued interest at such Stated ion date;
(b) any Guarantor; and	we or any Guarantor has paid or caused to be paid all other sums payable under the Indenture relating to the Notes by us or
satisfaction and disc	we have delivered to the Trustee an officers certificate and an opinion of counsel stating that (1) all conditions precedent relating to the satisfaction and discharge of the Indenture relating to the Notes have been complied with and (2) such harge will not result in a breach or violation of, or constitute a default under, the Indenture relating to the Notes or any other or instrument to which we or any Guarantor is a party or by which we or any Guarantor is bound.

Modifications and amendments of the Indenture relating to the Notes may be made by us, any Guarantor and the Trustee with the consent of the holders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding Notes; <i>provided, however</i> , that no such modification or amendment may, without the consent of the holder of each outstanding Note affected thereby:
change the Stated Maturity of the principal of, or any installment of interest on, any Note or reduce the principal amount thereof or the rate of interest thereon or any premium payable upon the redemption thereof, or change the coin or currency in which the principal of any Note or any premium or the interest thereon is payable, or impair the right to institute suit for the enforcement of any such payment after the Stated Maturity thereof (or in the case of redemption, on or after the redemption date) (other than provisions relating to the covenants set forth under Certain Covenants Limitation on Sale of Assets);
(2) amend, change or modify our obligation to make and consummate a Change of Control Offer in the event of a Change of Control in accordance with Certain Covenants Purchase of Notes upon a Change of Control, including amending, changing or modifying any definitions with respect thereto;
(3) reduce the percentage in principal amount of outstanding Notes, the consent of whose holders is required for any supplemental indenture, or the consent of whose holders is required for any waiver or compliance with certain provisions of the Indenture or certain defaults or with respect to any Guarantee;
65

Table of Contents

(4) modify any of the provisions relating to supplemental indentures requiring the consent of holders or relating to the waiver of past defaults or relating to the waiver of certain covenants, except to increase the percentage of outstanding Notes required for such actions or to provide that certain other provisions of the Indenture relating to the Notes cannot be modified or waived without the consent of the holder of each Note affected thereby;
(5) except as otherwise permitted under Consolidation, Merger, Sale of Assets, consent to the assignment or transfer by us of any Guarantor of any of its rights and obligations under the Indenture; or
(6) amend or modify any of the provisions of the Indenture relating to the ranking of the Notes or any Guarantee in any manner adverse to the holders of the Notes or any Guarantee;
provided further, that no such modification or amendment may, without the consent of the holders of 662/3% of the outstanding Notes affected thereby, amend, change or modify our obligation to make and consummate an Offer with respect to any Asset Sale or Asset Sales in accordance with Certain Covenants Limitation on Sale of Assets including amending, changing or modifying any definitions with respect thereto.
Without the consent of any holders, we and the Guarantors, when authorized by a resolution of the board of directors and upon delivery of an Opinion of Counsel to the effect that such supplemental indentures or agreements are permitted under the Indenture, and the Trustee, at any time and from time to time, may enter into one or more supplemental indentures or agreements, or other instruments with respect to any Guarantee, in form and substance satisfactory to the Trustee, for any of the following purposes:
(1) to evidence the succession of another Person to us, any Guarantor or any other obligor upon the Notes, and the assumption by any such successor of our covenants or such Guarantor or obligor under the Indenture and in the Notes and in any Guarantee, in each case in compliance with the provisions of the Indenture;
(2) to add to the covenants of the Issuer, any Guarantor or any other obligor upon the Notes for the benefit of the holders, or to surrender any right or power conferred in the Indenture upon us, any Guarantor or any other obligor upon the Notes, as applicable, in the Indenture, in the Notes or in any Guarantee;
(3) to cure any ambiguity, to correct or supplement any provision in the Indenture which may be defective or inconsistent with any other provision in the Indenture or in any Guarantee, or to make any other provisions with respect to matters or questions arising under the Indenture, the Notes or any Guarantee; provided that, in each case, such provisions shall not adversely affect the interests of the holders;
(4) to comply with the requirements of the Commission in order to effect or maintain the qualification of the Indenture under the Trust Indenture Act, as contemplated by the Indenture or otherwise;

(5) Pledges for Indebted	to add a Guarantor pursuant to the requirements under Certain Covenants Limitation on Issuances of Guarantees of and Iness ;
(6)	to evidence and provide the acceptance of the appointment of a successor trustee under the Indenture;
	to mortgage, pledge, hypothecate or grant a security interest in favor of the Trustee for the benefit of the holders as or the payment and performance of the Indenture obligations, in any property or assets, including any which are required to ged or hypothecated, or in which a security interest is required to be granted to the Trustee pursuant to this Indenture or
(8)	to provide for uncertificated Notes in place of or in addition to certificated Notes.
	jority in aggregate principal amount of the Notes outstanding may waive compliance with certain restrictive covenants and denture relating to the Notes.
Governing Law	
	Notes and the Guarantees will be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of New York, without conflicts of law principles thereof.
	66

Table of Contents

Payment and Paying Agent

Payments in respect of the Notes shall be made to DTC, which shall credit the relevant accounts at DTC on the applicable payment dates or, if the Notes are not held by DTC, such payments shall be made at the office or agency of the Paying Agent maintained for such purpose, or at our option, by check mailed to the address of the holder entitled thereto as such address shall appear on the Notes Register. The Paying Agent shall initially be U.S. Bank National Association. The Paying Agent shall be permitted to resign as Paying Agent upon 30 days written notice to us. In the event that U.S. Bank National Association chooses no longer to be the Paying Agent, we shall appoint a successor (which shall be a bank or trust company) acceptable to us to act as Paying Agent.

Registrar and Transfer Agent

U.S. Bank National Association will act as registrar and transfer agent for the Notes (the Notes Registrar).

As described under Book-Entry Securities; The Depository Trust Company; Delivery and Form, so long as the Notes are in book-entry form, registration of transfers and exchanges of Notes will be made through direct participants and indirect participants in DTC. If physical certificates representing the Notes are issued, registration of transfers and exchanges of Notes will be effected without charge by us or on our behalf, but, in the case of a transfer, upon payment (with the giving of such indemnity as we may require) in respect of any tax or other governmental charges which may be imposed in relation to it.

We will not be required to register or cause to be registered any transfer of Notes during a period beginning 15 days prior to the mailing of notice of redemption of Notes and ending on the day of such mailing.

Certain Definitions

Acquired Indebtedness means Indebtedness of a Person (1) existing at the time such Person becomes a Subsidiary or (2) assumed in connection with the acquisition of assets from such Person, in each case, other than Indebtedness incurred in connection with, or in contemplation of, such Person becoming a Subsidiary or such acquisition. Acquired Indebtedness shall be deemed to be incurred on the date of the related acquisition of assets from any Person or the date the acquired Person becomes a Subsidiary.

Affiliate means, with respect to any specified Person, (1) any other Person directly or indirectly controlling or controlled by or under direct or indirect common control with such specified Person, (2) any executive officer or director of such Person or (3) any other Person 10% or more of the voting Equity Interests of which are beneficially owned or held directly or indirectly by such specified Person. For the purposes of this definition, control when used with respect to any specified Person means the power to direct the management and policies of such Person directly or indirectly, whether through ownership of voting securities, by contract or otherwise; and the terms controlling and controlled have meanings correlative to the foregoing.

Applicable Premium means, with respect to a Note on any date of redemption, the greater of:

(1)	1.0% of the principal amount of such Note; and
Note through Novem	the excess, if any, of (a) the present value as of such date of redemption of (1) the redemption price of such Note on (each such redemption price being described under Optional Redemption) plus (2) all required interest payments due on such other 1, 2016 (excluding accrued but unpaid interest to the date of redemption), computed using a discount rate equal to the such date of redemption plus 50 basis points, over (b) the then-outstanding principal of such Note.
	any sale, issuance, conveyance, transfer, lease or other disposition (including, without limitation, by way of merger, e and Leaseback Transaction) (collectively, a transfer), directly or indirectly, in one or a series of related transactions, of
(1)	any Equity Interest of any Restricted Subsidiary;
(2) Subsidiary; or	all or substantially all of the properties and assets of any division or line of business of the Issuer or any Restricted
	67

Table of Contents

(3) any other properties or assets of the Issuer or any Restricted Subsidiary, other than in the ordinary course of business.

For the purposes of this definition, the term Asset Sale shall not include any transfer of properties and assets (A) that is governed by the provisions described under Consolidation, Merger, Sale of Assets, (B) that is by the Issuer to any Wholly Owned Restricted

Subsidiary that is a Guarantor, or by any Restricted Subsidiary to the Issuer or any Wholly Owned Restricted Subsidiary that is a Guarantor in accordance with the terms of the Indenture or (C) that aggregates not more than \$25,000,000 in gross proceeds.

Asset Swap means an Asset Sale by the Issuer or any Restricted Subsidiary in exchange for properties or assets that will be used in the business of the Issuer and its Restricted Subsidiaries existing on the date of the Indenture or reasonably related thereto.

Average Life to Stated Maturity means, as of the date of determination with respect to any Indebtedness, the quotient obtained by dividing (1) the sum of the products of (a) the number of years from the date of determination to the date or dates of each successive scheduled principal payment of such Indebtedness multiplied by (b) the amount of each such principal payment by (2) the sum of all such principal payments.

Bank Credit Agreement means the Fifth Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of April 9, 2013, between the Issuer, the guarantors party thereto, the lenders named therein and J.P. Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., as agent, J.P. Morgan Securities LLC, as sole lead arranger and bookrunner, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, Wells Fargo Securities, LLC and SunTrust Robinson Humphrey, Inc., as joint lead arrangers and joint bookrunners, Deutsche Bank Securities Inc. and RBC Capital Markets, as co-arrangers, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as syndication agent, and SunTrust Bank as documentation agent, as such agreement may be amended, renewed, extended, substituted, refinanced, restructured, replaced, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time (including, without limitation, any successive renewals, extensions, substitutions, refinancings, restructurings, replacements, supplementations or other modifications of the foregoing and including, for the avoidance of doubt, any renewals, extensions, substitutions, refinancing, restructurings, replacements, supplements or any other modifications through any indenture, note purchase agreement or similar instrument). For all purposes under the Indenture, Bank Credit Agreement shall include any amendments, renewals, extensions, substitutions, refinancings, restructurings, replacements, supplements or any other modifications that increase the principal amount of the Indebtedness or the commitments to lend thereunder and have been made in compliance with Certain Covenants Limitation on Indebtedness; provided that, for purposes of the definition of Permitted Indebtedness set forth in Certain Covenants Limitation on Indebtedness, no such increase may result in the principal amount of Indebtedness of the Company under the Bank Credit Agreement exceeding the amount permitted by clause (1) of the definition of Permitted Indebtedness. References herein to the Amendment to the Bank Credit Agreement refer to the Second Amendment to the Bank Credit Agreement dated as of October 23, 2013.

Bankruptcy Law means Title 11, United States Bankruptcy Code of 1978, as amended, or any similar United States federal or state law relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership, winding-up, liquidation, reorganization or relief of debtors or any amendment to, succession to or change in any such law.

Broadcast Licenses means (a) the licenses, permits, authorizations or certificates to construct, own or operate the Stations granted by the FCC, and all extensions, additions and renewals thereto or thereof, and (b) the licenses, permits, authorizations or certificates which are necessary to construct, own or operate the Stations granted by administrative law courts or any state, county, city, town, village or other local government

authority, and all extensions, additions and renewals thereto or thereof.

Business Day means any day that is not a Saturday, Sunday or other day on which commercial banks in New York City are authorized or required by law to remain closed.

Capital Lease Obligation means any obligation of the Issuer and the Restricted Subsidiaries on a Consolidated basis under any capital lease of real or personal property which, in accordance with GAAP, has been recorded as a capitalized lease obligation.

Commission means the Securities and Exchange Commission, as from time to time constituted, created under the Exchange Act, or if at any time after the execution of the Indenture such Commission is not existing and performing the duties now assigned to it under the Trust Indenture Act, then the body performing such duties at such time.

68

Table of Contents

	Sinclair Broadcast Group, Inc., a corporation incorporated under the laws of the State of Maryland, until a successor Person uch pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Indenture, and thereafter Company shall mean such successor Person.
Consolidated Interes	est Expense means, without duplication, for any period, the sum of
(a) including, without li	the cash interest expense of the Issuer and its Consolidated Restricted Subsidiaries for such period, on a Consolidated basis, mitation,
(1)	amortization of debt discount,
(2)	the net cost under interest rate contracts (including amortization of discounts),
(3)	the interest portion of any deferred payment obligation, and
(4)	accrued interest, plus
(b) during such period, a	the interest component of the Capital Lease Obligations paid, accrued and/or scheduled to be paid or accrued by the Issuer and all capitalized interest of the Issuer and its Consolidated Restricted Subsidiaries, minus
(c)	cash interest income of the Issuer and its Consolidated Restricted Subsidiaries for such period, on a Consolidated basis,
	mined in accordance with GAAP consistently applied; provided that, for the avoidance of doubt, Consolidated Interest clude any cash interest expense associated with the Existing Convertible Notes.
Subsidiaries for such	ncome (Loss) means, for any period, the Consolidated net income (or loss) of the Issuer and its Consolidated Restricted a period as determined in accordance with GAAP consistently applied, adjusted, to the extent included in calculating such (a) by excluding, without duplication,

(1)	all extraordinary gains but not losses (less all fees and expenses relating thereto),
	the portion of net income (or loss) of the Issuer and its Consolidated Restricted Subsidiaries allocable to interests in ons or Unrestricted Subsidiaries, except to the extent of the amount of dividends or distributions actually paid to the Issuer or stricted Subsidiaries by such other Person during such period,
(3)	any gain or loss, net of taxes, realized upon the termination of any employee pension benefit plan,
(4) ordinary course of b	net gains but not losses (less all fees and expenses relating thereto) in respect of dispositions of assets other than in the usiness,
terms of its charter of	the net income of the Issuer or any Restricted Subsidiary to the extent that the declaration of dividends or similar Issuer or that Restricted Subsidiary of that income is not at the time permitted, directly or indirectly, by operation of the or any agreement, instrument, judgment, decree, order, statute, rule or governmental regulation applicable to the Issuer, that y or its shareholders,
(6) assets or any deprece	any impairment charge or asset write-off, in each case, pursuant to GAAP and the amortization of intangibles and other iation expense, in each case, pursuant to GAAP, or
(7)	expenses relating to the issuance of the Notes and the Initial Debt Transactions;
-	, to the extent excluded in calculating such net income (or loss), without duplication, any cash contributions to the Issuer or idiary by Unrestricted Subsidiaries.
• • •	of the calculation of Consolidated Net Income (Loss) Any cash amounts dividended, distributed, loaned or otherwise impany by the Issuer or its Restricted Subsidiaries pursuant to clause (9) of the second paragraph of the
	69

Table of Contents

covenant described under Certain Covenants Limitation on Restricted Payments, without duplication of any amounts otherwise deducted in calculating Consolidated Net Income (Loss), the funds for which are provided by the Issuer and/or the Restricted Subsidiaries shall be deducted in calculating the Consolidated Net Income of the Issuer and the Restricted Subsidiaries.

Consolidation means, with respect to any Person, the consolidation of the accounts of such Person and each of its subsidiaries (other than any Unrestricted Subsidiaries) if and to the extent the accounts of such Person and each of its subsidiaries (other than any Unrestricted Subsidiaries) would normally be consolidated with those of such Person, all in accordance with GAAP consistently applied. The term Consolidated shall have a similar meaning.

Contract Stations means (a) each television or radio station identified as such in a schedule to the Indenture, (b) each television or radio station that is the subject of an acquisition referred to in clause (b) of the definition of Acquisitions in the Bank Credit Agreement consummated by the Issuer or any Subsidiary on or after the date hereof and (c) any television or radio station with which the Issuer or any Subsidiary has entered into any Local Marketing Agreement on or after the date hereof, in each case until such time, if any, as the Issuer or any Subsidiary acquires the Broadcast License of such television or radio station and such station becomes an Owned Station.

Cumulative Consolidated Interest Expense means, as of any date of determination, Consolidated Interest Expense from October 29, 2009 to the end of the Issuer s most recently ended full fiscal quarter prior to such date, taken as a single accounting period.

Cumulative Operating Cash Flow means, as of any date of determination, Operating Cash Flow from October 29, 2009 to the end of the Issuer s most recently ended full fiscal quarter prior to such date, taken as a single accounting period.

Cunningham means Cunningham Broadcasting Corporation, a Maryland corporation.

Debt to Operating Cash Flow Ratio means, as of any date of determination, the ratio of

(a) the aggregate principal amount of all outstanding Indebtedness of the Issuer and its Restricted Subsidiaries as of such date on a Consolidated basis plus the aggregate liquidation preference or redemption amount of all Disqualified Equity

Interests of the Issuer (excluding any such Disqualified Equity Interests held by the Issuer or a Wholly Owned Restricted Subsidiary of the Issuer) to

(b) Operating Cash Flow of the Issuer and its Restricted Subsidiaries on a Consolidated basis for the four most recent full fiscal quarters ending immediately prior to such date, determined on a pro forma basis (and after giving pro forma effect to

	ne incurrence of such Indebtedness and (if applicable) the application of the net proceeds therefrom, including to refinance if such Indebtedness was incurred, and the application of such proceeds occurred, at the beginning of such four-quarter
first day of such four-qu that, in making such co	ne incurrence, repayment or retirement of any other Indebtedness by the Issuer and its Restricted Subsidiaries since the quarter period as if such Indebtedness was incurred, repaid or retired at the beginning of such four-quarter period (except omputation, the amount of Indebtedness under any revolving credit facility shall be computed based upon the average edness at the end of each month during such four-quarter period);
(3) in four-quarter period; and	n the case of Acquired Indebtedness, the related acquisition as if such acquisition had occurred at the beginning of such d
of the ordinary course of	ny acquisition or disposition by the Issuer and its Restricted Subsidiaries of any company or any business or any assets our of business, or any related repayment of Indebtedness, in each case since the first day of such four-quarter period, tion or disposition had been consummated on the first day of such four-quarter period).
Default means any e	event which is, or after notice or passage of any time or both would be, an Event of Default.
	70

Table of Contents

Designated Noncash Consideration means the Fair Market Value of non-cash consideration (other than any Local Marketing Agreement valuation treated as cash) received by the Issuer or any of its Restricted Subsidiaries in connection with an Asset Sale (other than an Asset Swap) that is conclusively designated pursuant to an Officers Certificate. The aggregate fair market value of the Designated Noncash Consideration, taken together with the fair market value at the time of receipt of all other Designated Noncash Consideration then held by the Issuer or its Restricted Subsidiaries, may not exceed \$25,000,000 at any time outstanding.

Designated SBG Subsidiary means (a) KDSM, LLC and KDSM Licensee, LLC and (b) each other Subsidiary of the Company that is designated as a Designated SBG Subsidiary after the date of the Indenture pursuant to the Indenture, in each case so long as such Subsidiary remains a Designated SBG Subsidiary.

Disqualified Equity Interests means any Equity Interests that, either by their terms or by the terms of any security into which they are convertible or exchangeable or otherwise, are, or upon the happening of an event or passage of time would be required to be, redeemed prior to any Stated Maturity of the principal of the Notes or are redeemable at the option of the holder thereof at any time prior to any such Stated Maturity (other than upon a change of control of or sale of assets by the Issuer in circumstances where the holders of the Notes would have similar rights), or are convertible into or exchangeable for debt securities at any time prior to any such Stated Maturity at the option of the holder thereof.

Equity Interest of any Person means any and all shares, interests, rights to purchase, warrants, options, participations or other equivalents of or interests in (however designated) corporate stock or other equity participations, including partnership interests, whether general or limited, of such Person, including any Preferred Equity Interests.

Equity Offering means a public or private offering for cash by the Issuer or the Company, as the case may be, of its Equity Interests, other than (x) public offerings with respect to the Issuer s or the Company s Equity Interests registered on Form S-4 or S-8, (y) an issuance to any Subsidiary or (z) any offering of Equity Interests issued in connection with a transaction that constitutes a Change of Control.

Exchange Act means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Existing Convertible Notes means the Company s existing 3.0% Convertible Senior Notes due 2027 and 4.875% Convertible Senior Notes due 2018.

Existing Secured Notes means the Issuer s 9.25% Senior Secured Second Lien Notes due 2017.

Existing Senior Notes means the Issuer s 8.375% Senior Notes due 2018, 6.125% Senior Notes due 2022 and 5.375% Senior Notes due 2021.

Fair Market Value	means, with respect to any asset or property, the sale value that would be obtained in an arm s-length transaction between an
informed and willing	seller under no compulsion to sell and an informed and willing buyer under no compulsion to buy.

Film Contract means contracts with suppliers that convey the right to broadcast specified films, videotape motion pictures, syndicated television programs or sports or other programming.

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles or GAAP means generally accepted accounting principles in the United States, consistently applied, which are in effect on the date of the Indenture.

Guarantee means the guarantee by any Guarantor of the Issuer s Indenture Obligations pursuant to a guarantee given in accordance with the Indenture.

Guaranteed Debt of any Person means, without duplication, all Indebtedness of any other Person referred to in the definition of Indebtedness guaranteed directly or indirectly in any manner by such Person, or in effect guaranteed directly or indirectly by such Person through an agreement

(1) to pay or purchase such Indebtedness or to advance or supply funds for the payment or purchase of such Indebtedness,

Table of Contents

- (2) to purchase, sell or lease (as lessee or lessor) property, or to purchase or sell services, primarily for the purpose of enabling the debtor to make payment of such Indebtedness or to assure the holder of such Indebtedness against loss,
- (3) to supply funds to, or in any other manner invest in, the debtor (including any agreement to pay for property or services without requiring that such property be received or such services be rendered),
- (4) to maintain working capital or equity capital of the debtor, or otherwise to maintain the net worth, solvency or other financial condition of the debtor or
- (5) otherwise to assure a creditor against loss;

provided that the term guarantee shall not include endorsements for collection or deposit, in either case in the ordinary course of business.

Guarantor means (1) initially the Company, the subsidiaries of the Issuer listed as guarantors in the Indenture, each SBG Guarantor and any other guarantor of the Indenture Obligations. The Guarantors include WLFL, Inc., a Maryland corporation, Sinclair Media I, Inc., a Maryland corporation, WSMH, Inc., a Maryland corporation, WSTR Licensee, Inc., a Maryland corporation, WGME, Inc., a Maryland corporation, Sinclair Media III, Inc., a Maryland corporation, WTTO, Inc., a Maryland corporation, WTVZ, Inc., a Maryland corporation, KOCB, Inc., an Oklahoma corporation, WDKY, Inc., a Delaware corporation, WYZZ Licensee, Inc., a Delaware corporation, WSYX Licensee, Inc., a Maryland corporation, WTWC, Inc., a Maryland corporation, Sinclair Television of Nashville, Inc., a Tennessee corporation, Sinclair Acquisition VII, Inc., a Maryland corporation, Sinclair Acquisition VIII, Inc., a Maryland corporation, Sinclair Acquisition IX, Inc., a Maryland corporation, Sinclair Acquisition X, Inc., a Maryland corporation, Montecito Broadcasting Corporation, a Delaware corporation, Channel 33, Inc., a Nevada corporation, New York Television, Inc., a Maryland corporation, Sinclair Properties, LLC, a Virginia limited liability company, KBSI Licensee L.P., a Virginia limited partnership, KOKH, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, WMMP Licensee L.P., a Virginia limited partnership, WSYT Licensee L.P., a Virginia limited partnership, WKEF Licensee L.P., a Virginia limited partnership, WGME Licensee, LLC, a Maryland limited liability company, WICD Licensee, LLC, a Maryland limited liability company, WICS Licensee, LLC, a Maryland limited liability company, KGAN Licensee, LLC, a Maryland limited liability company, WSMH Licensee, LLC, a Maryland limited liability company, WPGH Licensee, LLC, a Maryland limited liability company, KDNL Licensee, LLC, a Maryland limited liability company, WCWB Licensee, LLC, a Maryland limited liability company, WTVZ Licensee, LLC, a Maryland limited liability company, Chesapeake Television Licensee, LLC, a Maryland limited liability company, KABB Licensee, LLC, a Maryland limited liability company, WLOS Licensee, LLC, a Maryland limited liability company, KLGT Licensee, LLC, a Maryland limited liability company, WCGV Licensee, LLC, a Maryland limited liability company, KUPN Licensee, LLC, a Maryland limited liability company, WEAR Licensee, LLC, a Maryland limited liability company, Illinois Television, LLC, a Maryland limited liability company, WLFL Licensee, LLC, a Maryland limited liability company, WTTO Licensee, LLC, a Maryland limited liability company, WTWC Licensee, LLC, a Maryland limited liability company, KOCB Licensee, LLC, a Maryland limited liability company, WDKY Licensee, LLC, a Maryland limited liability company, KOKH Licensee, LLC, a Maryland limited liability company, WUPN Licensee, LLC, a Maryland limited liability company, WUXP Licensee, LLC, a Maryland limited liability company, WCHS Licensee, LLC, a Maryland limited liability company, Birmingham (WABM-TV) Licensee, Inc., a Maryland corporation, Raleigh (WRDC-TV) Licensee, Inc., a Maryland corporation, San Antonio (KRRT-TV) Licensee, Inc., a Maryland corporation, WVTV Licensee, Inc., a Maryland corporation, WUHF Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, Milwaukee Television, LLC, a Wisconsin limited liability company, WMSN Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, WRLH Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, WUTV Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, WXLV Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, WZTV Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, WVAH Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, WTAT Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, WRGT Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, KSAS Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, WHP Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, WKRC Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, WOAI Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, WTTA

Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, KDSM Licensee, LLC, a Maryland limited liability company, KDSM, LLC, a Maryland limited liability company, KFXA Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, San Antonio Television, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, Sinclair Communications, LLC, a Maryland limited liability company, Sinclair Programming Company, LLC, a Maryland limited liability company, WDKA Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, WFGX Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, WTVC Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, KEYE Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, WTVX Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, WPEC Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, WWMT Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, WRGB Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, WLAJ Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, KTVL Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company,

Table of Contents

liability company, KFDM Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, WUCW, LLC, a Maryland limited liability company, WWHO Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, WNAB Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, WNYS Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, WRDC, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, KFOX Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, KRXI Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, WTOV Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, WJAC Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, WFXL Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, KVII Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, KXRM Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, WACH Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, KGBT Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, KTVO Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, WPDE Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, KHOA Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, WSTO Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, WPBN Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, KRCG Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, WLUC Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, WHOI Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, WNWO Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, Chesapeake Television, Inc., a Maryland corporation, Sinclair Television of Illinois, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, Chesapeake Media I, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, Fisher Mills, Inc., a Washington corporation, Fisher Properties, Inc., a Washington Corporation, KPTH Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, Sinclair Bakersfield Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, Sinclair Boise Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, Sinclair Broadcasting of Seattle, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, Sinclair Eugene Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, Sinclair Idaho Falls Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, Sinclair Interactive Media, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, Sinclair Kennewick Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, Sinclair La Grande Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, Sinclair Lewiston Licensee, a Nevada limited liability company, Sinclair Media of Boise, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, Sinclair Media of Idaho, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, Sinclair Media of Seattle, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, Sinclair Media of Washington, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, Sinclair Media Services Company, a Washington corporation, Sinclair Portland Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, Sinclair Radio of Seattle, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, Sinclair Radio of Seattle Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, Sinclair Seattle Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, Sinclair Television Media, Inc., a Washington corporation, Sinclair Television of Bakersfield, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, Sinclair Television of Oregon, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, Sinclair Television of Portland, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, Sinclair Television of Seattle, Inc., a Washington corporation, Sinclair Television of Washington, Inc., a Washington corporation, Sinclair Yakima Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, WJAC, Inc., a Pennsylvania corporation, Sinclair Television of Omaha, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, Sinclair Television of Fresno, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, Sinclair Television of El Paso, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, KFRE Licensee, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, KMPH Licensee, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, KPTM Licensee, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, KDBC Licensee, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, WOLF Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, WGFL Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, and WOMY Licensee, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company and (2) each of the Issuer s Subsidiaries and each Designated SBG Subsidiary which becomes a Guarantor of the Notes pursuant to the provisions of the Indenture, and their successors, in each case, until released from its respective Guarantee pursuant to the Indenture.

Hedging Agreement means any swap agreement, cap agreement, collar agreement, put or call, future contract, forward contract or similar agreement or arrangement entered into to protect against or mitigate the effect of fluctuations in the price of the Issuer spublicly issued common stock or in interest rates, foreign exchange rates or prices of commodities used in the business of the Issuer and its Subsidiaries and any master agreement relating to any of the foregoing.

Indebtedness means, with respect to any Person, without duplication,

all indebtedness of such Person for borrowed money or for the deferred purchase price of property or services, excluding any trade payables and other accrued current liabilities arising in the ordinary course of business, but including, without limitation, all obligations, contingent or otherwise, of such Person in connection with any letters of credit issued under letter of credit facilities, acceptance facilities or other similar facilities and in connection with any agreement to purchase, redeem, exchange, convert or otherwise acquire for value any Equity Interests of such Person, or any warrants, rights or options to acquire such Equity Interests, now or hereafter outstanding,

 all indebtedness created or arising under any conditional sale or other title retention agreement with respect to property rson (even if the rights and remedies of the seller or lender under such agreement in the event of default are limited to of such property), but excluding trade payables arising in the ordinary course of business,

all obligations of such Person evidenced by bonds, notes, debentures or other similar instruments,

(2)

Table of Contents

(4)	all obligations under Interest Rate Agreements of such Person (but excluding any terminated derivatives being amortized),
(5)	all Capital Lease Obligations of such Person,
any Lien, upon or w	all Indebtedness referred to in clauses (1) through (5) above of other Persons and all dividends of other Persons, the secured by (or for which the holder of such Indebtedness has an existing right, contingent or otherwise, to be secured by) ith respect to property (including, without limitation, accounts and contract rights) owned by such Person, even though such ned or become liable for the payment of such Indebtedness,
(7)	all Guaranteed Debt of such Person,
(8) plus accrued and un	all Disqualified Equity Interests valued at the greater of their voluntary or involuntary maximum fixed repurchase price paid dividends, and
(9) types referred to in o	any amendment, supplement, modification, deferral, renewal, extension, refunding or refinancing of any liability of the clauses (1) through (8) above;
Contracts entered in principal amount that determinable liabilit Subsidiaries shall not Restricted Subsidiar repurchase price shat were purchased on a or measured by, the Board of Directors of accreted value there case of Indebtedness	that the term Indebtedness shall not include any obligations of the Issuer and its Restricted Subsidiaries with respect to Film to in the ordinary course of business. The amount of Indebtedness of any Person at any date shall be, without duplication, the at would be shown on a balance sheet of such Person prepared as of such date in accordance with GAAP and the maximum y of any Guaranteed Debt referred to in clause (7) above at such date. The Indebtedness of the Issuer and its Restricted at include any Indebtedness of Unrestricted Subsidiaries so long as such Indebtedness is non-recourse to the Issuer and the ies. For purposes hereof, the maximum fixed repurchase price of any Disqualified Equity Interests which do not have a fixed Il be calculated in accordance with the terms of such Disqualified Equity Interests as if such Disqualified Equity Interests my date on which Indebtedness shall be required to be determined pursuant to the Indenture, and if such price is based upon, Fair Market Value of such Disqualified Equity Interests, such Fair Market Value to be determined in good faith by the of the issuer of such Disqualified Equity Interests. The amount of any Indebtedness outstanding as of any date shall be (1) the of in the case of any Indebtedness issued with original issue discount or the aggregate principal amount outstanding in the issued with interest payable in kind and (2) the principal amount or liquidation preference thereof, together with any is more than 30 days past due, in the case of any other Indebtedness.

Indenture Obligations means the obligations of the Issuer and any other obligor under the Indenture or under the Notes, including any Guarantor, to pay principal, premium, if any, and interest when due and payable, and all other amounts due or to become due under or in connection with the Indenture, the Notes and the performance of all other obligations to the Trustee and the holders under the Indenture and the Notes, according to the terms thereof.

Independent Director means a director of the Company other than a director (1) who (apart from being a director of the Company or any Subsidiary) is an employee, insider, associate or Affiliate of the Company or a Subsidiary or has held any such position during the previous five years or (2) who is a director, an employee, insider, associate or Affiliate of another party to the transaction in question.

Initial Debt Transactions means (1) the issuance of the Notes by the Issuer and the Guarantees by the Guaranters, and (2) the amendment of the Bank Credit Agreement, in each case as described in this prospectus.

Interest Rate Agreements means one or more of the following agreements which shall be entered into from time to time by one or more financial institutions: interest rate protection agreements (including, without limitation, interest rate swaps, caps, floors, collars and similar agreements) and any obligations in respect of any Hedging Agreements.

Investment Grade Rating means a rating equal to or higher than Baa3 by Moody s (or the equivalent rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating agency or agencies, as the case may be, selected by the Issuer (as certified by a resolution of the Board of Directors) which shall be substituted for Moody s) or BBB- by S&P (or the equivalent rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating agency or agencies, as the case may be, selected by the Issuer (as certified by a resolution of the Board of Directors) which shall be substituted for S&P).

Table of Contents

Investment Grade Rating Event means the first day on which the Notes are assigned an Investment Grade Rating by both Rating Agencies and no Default or Event of Default has occurred and is continuing.

Investments means, with respect to any Person, directly or indirectly, any advance, loan (including guarantees), or other extension of credit or capital contribution to (by means of any transfer of cash or other property to others or any payment for property or services for the account or use of others), or any purchase, acquisition or ownership by such Person of any Equity Interests, bonds, notes, debentures or other securities or assets issued or owned by any other Person and all other items that would be classified as investments on a balance sheet prepared in accordance with GAAP.

Lien means any mortgage, charge, pledge, lien (statutory or otherwise), privilege, security interest, hypothecation or other encumbrance upon or with respect to any property of any kind (including any conditional sale or other title retention agreement, any leases in the nature thereof, and any agreement to give any security interest), real or personal, movable or immovable, now owned or hereafter acquired.

Local Marketing Agreement means a local marketing arrangement, sale agreement, time brokerage agreement, management agreement, outsourcing agreement, joint sale agreement, shared services agreement, program services agreement or similar arrangement pursuant to which a Person

- (1) obtains the right to sell at least a majority of the advertising inventory of a television station on behalf of a third party,
- (2) purchases at least a majority of the air time of a television station to exhibit programming and sell advertising time,
- (3) manages the selling operations of a television station with respect to at least a majority of the advertising inventory of such station,
- (4) manages or controls the acquisition of programming for a television station,
- (5) acts as a program consultant for a television station,
- (6) manages the operation of a television station generally,

(7)	obtains the right to negotiate retransmission consent on behalf of a third party,
(8)	provides non-programming related management and/or consulting services to a television station,
(9)	consults, manages, sells or negotiates uses of excess spectrum, or
	y put or option agreement entered into in connection with any agreement referred to in clauses (1) through (9) above that quire or sell the license or non-license assets of a television station.
Note or as provided i	ed with respect to any Note, means the date on which the principal of such Note becomes due and payable as provided in the Indenture, whether at Stated Maturity, the offer date, or the redemption date and whether by declaration of respect of excess proceeds, Change of Control, call for redemption or otherwise.
Moody s means M	Moody s Investors Service Inc. and any successor to the rating agency business thereto.
Net Cash Proceeds	means
including payments i	with respect to any Asset Sale by any Person, the proceeds thereof in the form of cash or Temporary Cash Investments in respect of deferred payment obligations when received in the form of, or stock or other assets when disposed of for, cash investments (except to the extent that such obligations are financed or sold with recourse to the Issuer or any Restricted
(1) bankers) related to su	brokerage commissions and other reasonable fees and expenses (including fees and expenses of counsel and investment ach Asset Sale,
	75

the

Table of Contents

(2)	provisions for all taxes payable as a result of such Asset Sale,
(3) subject of such Asse	payments made to retire Indebtedness where payment of such Indebtedness is secured by the assets or properties the t Sale,
(4) in the assets subject	amounts required to be paid to any Person (other than the Issuer or any Restricted Subsidiary) owning a beneficial interest to the Asset Sale and
case may be, after su	appropriate amounts to be provided by the Issuer or any Restricted Subsidiary, as the case may be, as a reserve, in AP, against any liabilities associated with such Asset Sale and retained by the Issuer or any Restricted Subsidiary, as the ach Asset Sale, including, without limitation, pension and other post-employment benefit liabilities, liabilities related to ears and liabilities under any indemnification obligations associated with such Asset Sale, all as reflected in an Officers to the Trustee and
sale in the form of conform of, or stock or or sold with recourse	with respect to any issuance or sale of Equity Interests, or debt securities or Equity Interests that have been converted into uity Interests, as referred to under — Certain Covenants—Limitation on Restricted Payments,—the proceeds of such issuance or ash or Temporary Cash Investments, including payments in respect of deferred payment obligations when received in the other assets when disposed for, cash or Temporary Cash Investments (except to the extent that such obligations are financed to to the Issuer or any Restricted Subsidiary), net of attorney—s fees, accountant—s fees and brokerage, consultation, her fees and expenses actually incurred in connection with such issuance or sale and net of taxes paid or payable as a result
plus (a) extraordinar losses were deducted provision for taxes v losses under clause ((d) depreciation, am deducted in computi and write-downs of Initial Debt Transact	means, for any period, the Consolidated Net Income (Loss) of the Issuer and its Restricted Subsidiaries for such period, y net losses and net losses on sales of assets outside the ordinary course of business during such period, to the extent such din computing Consolidated Net Income (Loss), plus (b) provision for taxes based on income or profits, to the extent such was included in computing such Consolidated Net Income (Loss), and any provision for taxes utilized in computing the net (a) hereof, plus (c) Consolidated Interest Expense of the Issuer and its Restricted Subsidiaries for such period, plus ortization and all other non-cash charges, to the extent such depreciation, amortization and other non-cash charges were ng such Consolidated Net Income (Loss)(including amortization of goodwill and other intangibles, including Film Contracts Film Contracts), plus (e) to the extent deducted from Consolidated Net Income (Loss), all transaction costs relating to the tions, plus (f) cash distributions received from Unrestricted Subsidiaries, minus (g) any cash payments contractually required sect to Film Contracts (to the extent not previously included in computing such Consolidated Net Income (Loss)).

Pari Passu Indebtedness means any Indebtedness of the Issuer or any Guarantor that is pari passu in right of payment to the Notes or any Guarantees, as the case may be.

the Broadcast Licenses of which are owned or held by the Issuer or any of its Subsidiaries on or after the date hereof.

Owned Stations means (a) each television or radio station identified as such in a schedule to the Indenture and (b) any television or radio station

Permitted Investment means	
(1)	Investments in the Issuer or any Wholly Owned Restricted Subsidiary;
(2) Indebtedness set fo	Indebtedness of the Issuer or a Restricted Subsidiary described under clauses (5) and (6) of the definition of Permitted orth in Certain Covenants Limitation on Indebtedness;
(3)	Temporary Cash Investments;
(4) Covenants Limitation	Investments acquired by the Issuer or any Restricted Subsidiary in connection with an Asset Sale permitted under on on Sale of Assets, to the extent such Investments are non-cash proceeds as permitted under such covenant;
(5)	guarantees of Indebtedness otherwise permitted by the Indenture;
	76

Table of Contents

(6)	Investments in existence on the date of this Indenture;
(7) employees	loans up to an aggregate of \$1,000,000 outstanding at any time to employees pursuant to benefits available to the of the Issuer or any Restricted Subsidiary from time to time in the ordinary course of business;
(8)	any Investments in the Notes;
(9) accordance	a Guarantee by any Guarantor and any other guarantee given by a Guarantor of any Indebtedness of the Issuer in e with this Indenture;
	Investments by the Issuer or any Restricted Subsidiary in a Person, if as a result of such Investment (I) such Person becomes a Subsidiary or (II) such Person is merged, consolidated with or into, or transfers or conveys substantially all of its assets to, or is into, the Issuer or a Restricted Subsidiary;
(11)	other Investments relating to broadcast divisions that do not exceed \$200,000,000 at any time outstanding
	any Investments in any subsidiary of the Company (other than Restricted Subsidiaries) to allow for the payment of general istrative overhead of subsidiaries of the Company so long as the aggregate payments pursuant to this clause (12) shall not in any fiscal d an amount equal to \$30,000,000 minus any payments made pursuant to clause (9)(d) of the definition of Permitted Payments set Certain Covenants Limitation on Restricted Payments;
clause (13)	any Investments in any subsidiary of the Company (other than Restricted Subsidiaries) that allow for the payment of commitments relating to operating divisions other than broadcast divisions, so long as the amount of all payments pursuant to this) shall not exceed an amount equal to \$100,000,000 in the aggregate minus any payments made pursuant to clause (9)(f) of the of Permitted Payments set forth in Certain Covenants Limitation on Restricted Payments;
up to \$200	(a) Investments in Local Marketing Agreement purchase options (other than Local Marketing Agreement purchase options ingham or a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cunningham or purchase options in existence as of the date of the Indenture) in an amount of 1,000,000 in the aggregate plus customary closing fees and expenses and (b) Investments in Local Marketing Agreement purchase th Cunningham or a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cunningham;

if otherwise permitted pursuant to FCC rules and regulations and the terms and conditions of the Bank Credit Agreement, the

(15)

acquisition of any television station which is subject to an option agreement, merger agreement or any similar agreement existing between the Company, the Issuer and any of their respective subsidiaries and the owners of such television station; and
(16) any Investments in the Existing Convertible Notes or any Investments which refinance, replace, redeem or repurchase the Existing Convertible Notes in accordance with clauses (9) and (10) of the second paragraph under Limitation on Indebtedness.
Permitted Subsidiary Indebtedness means: (1) Indebtedness of any Guarantor under Capital Lease Obligations incurred in the ordinary course of business; and (2) Indebtedness of any Guarantor (a) issued to finance or refinance the purchase or construction of any assets of such Guarantor or (b) secured by a Lien on any assets of such Guarantor where the lender s sole recourse is to the assets so encumbered, in either case (x) to the extent the purchase or construction prices for such assets are or should be included in property and equipment in accordance with GAAP and (y) if the purchase or construction of such assets is not part of any acquisition of a Person or business unit.
Person means any individual, corporation, limited liability company, partnership, joint venture, association, joint-stock company, trust, unincorporated organization or government or any agency or political subdivisions thereof.

т	ah'	la.	of i	Contents	

Qualified Equity Interests of any Person means any and all Equity Interests of such Person other than Disqualified Equity Interests.
Rating Agency means each of S&P and Moody s, or if S&P or Moody s or both shall not make a rating on the Notes publicly available, a nationally recognized statistical rating agency or agencies, as the case may be, selected by the Issuer (as certified by a resolution of the Board of Directors) which shall be substituted for S&P and Moody s, or both, as the case may be.
Restricted Subsidiary means a Subsidiary of the Issuer (including, for the avoidance of doubt, any Designated SBG Subsidiary) other than an Unrestricted Subsidiary.
S&P means Standard & Poor s Ratings Services, a division of Standard & Poor s Financial Services LLC, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc., and any successor to the rating agency business thereto.
Sale and Leaseback Transaction means any transaction or series of related transactions pursuant to which the Company or a Restricted Subsidiary sells or transfers any property or asset in connection with the leasing, or the resale against installment payments, of such property or asset to the seller or transferor.
SBG Guarantor means each Designated SBG Subsidiary and each other Subsidiary of the Company that becomes a Guarantor after the date of the Indenture pursuant to the terms of the Indenture, in each case, so long as such Subsidiary remains an SBG Guarantor under the Indenture.
Secured Debt to Operating Cash Flow Ratio means, as of the date of determination, the ratio of
(a) the aggregate principal amount of all outstanding secured Indebtedness of the Issuer and the Restricted Subsidiaries as of such date on a Consolidated basis to
(b) Operating Cash Flow of the Issuer and the Restricted Subsidiaries on a Consolidated basis for the four most recent full fiscal quarters ending immediately prior to such date, determined on a pro forma basis (and after giving pro forma effect to
(1) the incurrence of such Indebtedness and (if applicable) the application of the net proceeds therefrom, including to refinance other Indebtedness, as if such Indebtedness was incurred, and the application of such proceeds occurred, at the beginning of such four-quarter period;

that, in making such	the incurrence, repayment or retirement of any other Indebtedness by the Issuer and the Restricted Subsidiaries since the ur-quarter period as if such Indebtedness was incurred, repaid or retired at the beginning of such four-quarter period (except a computation, the amount of Indebtedness under any revolving credit facility shall be computed based upon the average ebtedness at the end of each month during such four-quarter period);
(3) four-quarter period;	in the case of Acquired Indebtedness, the related acquisition as if such acquisition had occurred at the beginning of such and
	any acquisition or disposition by the Issuer and the Restricted Subsidiaries of any company or any business or any assets course of business, or any related repayment of Indebtedness, in each case since the first day of such four-quarter period, isition or disposition had been consummated on the first day of such four-quarter period).
Separation Transa whether by asset sal	ction means the sale or separation of the non-television business of the Company and its Subsidiaries in whole or in part, le or otherwise.
constitute Restricted of the Company and	tiary means, at any date of determination: (1) each Guarantor or Restricted Subsidiary that, together with its Subsidiaries that a Subsidiaries, (A) for the most recent fiscal year of the Company accounted for more than 10% of the consolidated revenues at the Restricted Subsidiaries or (B) as of the end of such fiscal year, owned more than 10% of the consolidated assets of the estricted Subsidiaries, all as set forth on the consolidated financial statements
	78

Table of Contents

of the Company and the Restricted Subsidiaries for such year in conformity with GAAP; and (2) any Restricted Subsidiary which, when aggregated with all other Restricted Subsidiaries that are not otherwise Significant Subsidiaries and as to which any event described in clause (7) or (8) of the section Events of Default has occurred, would constitute a Significant Subsidiary under clause (1) of this definition.
Stated Maturity, when used with respect to any Indebtedness or any installment of interest thereon, means the date specified in such Indebtedness as the fixed date on which the principal of such Indebtedness or such installment of interest is due and payable.
Stations means the Owned Stations and the Contracted Stations.
Subordinated Indebtedness means Indebtedness of the Issuer or any Guarantor subordinated in right of payment to the Notes or any Guarantee, as the case may be.
Subsidiary means any Person a majority of the equity ownership or the Voting Stock of which is at the time owned, directly or indirectly, by the Issuer or by one or more other Subsidiaries, or by the Issuer and one or more other Subsidiaries; provided that each Designated SBG Subsidiary shall be deemed to be a Subsidiary of the Issuer for all purposes of the Notes and the Indenture (unless the context requires otherwise).
Temporary Cash Investments means
(1) any evidence of Indebtedness, maturing not more than one year after the date of acquisition, issued by the United States of America, or an instrumentality or agency thereof and guaranteed fully as to principal, premium, if any, and interest by the United States of America,
any certificate of deposit, maturing not more than one year after the date of acquisition, issued by, or time deposit of, a commercial banking institution that is a member of the Federal Reserve System and that has combined capital and surplus and undivided profits of not less than \$500,000,000, whose debt has a rating, at the time as of which any investment therein is made, of P-1 (or higher) according to Moody s or any successor rating agency or A-1 (or higher) according to S&P or any successor rating agency,
(3) commercial paper, maturing not more than one year after the date of acquisition, issued by a corporation (other than an Affiliate or Subsidiary of the Issuer) organized and existing under the laws of the United States of America with a rating, at the time as of which any investment therein is made, of P-1 (or higher) according to Moody s or A-1 (or higher) according to S&P and
(4) any money market deposit accounts issued or offered by a domestic commercial bank having capital and surplus in excess of \$500,000,000.

Treasury Rate means the yield to maturity at the time of computation of United States Treasury securities with a constant maturity (as compiled and published in the most recent Federal Reserve Statistical Release H.15 (519) that has become publicly available at least two Business Days prior to the redemption date (or, if such Statistical Release is no longer published, any publicly available source or similar market data)) most nearly equal to the period from the redemption date to November 1, 2016; provided, however, that if the period from the redemption date to November 1, 2016 is not equal to the constant maturity of a United States Treasury security for which a weekly average yield is given, the Treasury Rate shall be obtained by linear interpolation (calculated to the nearest one-twelfth of a year) from the weekly average yields of United States Treasury securities for which such yields are given, except that if the period from the redemption date to November 1, 2016 is less than one year, the weekly average yield on actually traded United States Treasury securities adjusted to a constant maturity of one year will be used.

Trustee means U.S. Bank National Association, a national banking association organized under the laws of the United States of America, or any successor trustee that shall have become such pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Indenture.

Trust Indenture Act means the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended.

Unrestricted Subsidiary means (1) any Subsidiary of the Issuer that at the time of determination shall be an Unrestricted Subsidiary (as designated by the Board of Directors of the Issuer, as provided below) and (2) any Subsidiary of an Unrestricted Subsidiary. The Board of Directors of the Issuer may designate any Subsidiary of the Issuer (including any newly acquired or newly formed

Table of Contents

Subsidiary) to be an Unrestricted Subsidiary (and remove any Designated SBG Subsidiary as a Restricted Subsidiary and a Subsidiary) if all of the following conditions apply: (a) such Subsidiary is not liable, directly or indirectly, with respect to any Indebtedness other than Unrestricted Subsidiary Indebtedness and (b) any Investment in such Subsidiary made as a result of designating such Subsidiary an Unrestricted Subsidiary shall not violate the provisions of the Certain Covenants Limitation on Unrestricted Subsidiaries covenant. Any such designation by the Board of Directors of the Issuer shall be evidenced to the Trustee by filing with the Trustee a Board resolution giving effect to such designation and an Officers Certificate certifying that such designation complies with the foregoing conditions. The Board of Directors of the Issuer may designate any Unrestricted Subsidiary as a Restricted Subsidiary; provided that immediately after giving effect to such designation, the Issuer could incur \$1.00 of additional Indebtedness (other than Permitted Indebtedness) pursuant to the restrictions under the Certain Covenants Limitation on Indebtedness covenant.

Unrestricted Subsidiary Indebtedness of any Unrestricted Subsidiary means Indebtedness of such Unrestricted Subsidiary (1) as to which neither the Issuer nor any Restricted Subsidiary is directly or indirectly liable (by virtue of the Issuer or any such Restricted Subsidiary being the primary obligor on, guarantor of, or otherwise liable in any respect to, such Indebtedness), except Guaranteed Debt of the Issuer or any Restricted Subsidiary to any Affiliate, in which case (unless the incurrence of such Guaranteed Debt resulted in a Restricted Payment at the time of incurrence) the Issuer shall be deemed to have made a Restricted Payment equal to the principal amount of any such Indebtedness to the extent guaranteed at the time such Affiliate is designated an Unrestricted Subsidiary and (2) which, upon the occurrence of a default with respect thereto, does not result in, or permit any holder of any indebtedness of the Issuer or any Restricted Subsidiary to declare, a default on such Indebtedness of the Issuer or any Restricted Subsidiary or cause the payment thereof to be accelerated or payable prior to its Stated Maturity.

Voting Stock means stock of the class or classes pursuant to which the holders thereof have the general voting power under ordinary circumstances to elect at least a majority of the board of directors, managers or trustees of a corporation (irrespective of whether or not at the time stock of any other class or classes shall have or might have voting power by reason of the happening of any contingency).

Wholly Owned Restricted Subsidiary means a Restricted Subsidiary all the Equity Interest of which is owned by the Issuer or another Wholly Owned Restricted Subsidiary. The Wholly Owned Restricted Subsidiaries of the Issuer currently consist of all the Issuer s Restricted Subsidiaries.

Book-Entry Securities; The Depository Trust Company; Delivery and Form

The Notes will be issued only in fully registered form, without interest coupons, in denominations of \$2,000 and integral multiples of \$1,000 thereof. Notes will not be issued in bearer form.

Rule 144A and Regulation S Global Notes

Notes issued in accordance with Rule 144A are represented by one or more Notes in registered, global form without interest coupons (collectively, the Rule 144A Global Note). Notes issued in accordance with Regulation S are represented by one or more Notes in registered, global form without interest coupons (collectively, the Regulation S Global Note and, together with the Rule 144A Global Note, the Global Notes). The Global Notes have been deposited with the Trustee as custodian for DTC, in New York, New York, and registered in the name of DTC or its nominee, in each case for credit to an account of a direct or indirect participant in DTC as described below.

Exchanges between the Rule 144A Global Note and the Regulation S Global Note

Beneficial interests in one Global Note may be exchanged for beneficial interests in another Global Note, subject to compliance with the certification requirements of the Trustee. Any beneficial interest in one of the Global Notes that is exchanged for an interest in the other Global Note will cease to be an interest in such Global Note and will become an interest in the other Global Note. Accordingly, such interest will thereafter be subject to all transfer restrictions and other procedures applicable to beneficial interests in such other Global Note for as long as it remains such an interest.

Exchange of Book-Entry Notes for Certificated Notes

A beneficial interest in a Global Note may not be exchanged for a Note in certificated form unless:

Table of Contents

(1) clearing agency regis	DTC (a) notifies us that it is unwilling or unable to continue as depositary for the Global Note or (b) has ceased to be a stered under the Exchange Act, and in either case we thereupon fail to appoint a successor Depositary within 90 days,
(2)	we, at our option, notify the Trustee in writing that we elect to cause the issuance of the Notes in certificated form or
(3) would be an Event o	there shall have occurred and be continuing an Event of Default or any event which after notice or lapse of time or both f Default with respect to the Notes.
issued in any approv certificated Note issu Any such exchange	ted Notes delivered in exchange for any Global Note or beneficial interests therein will be registered in the names, and ed denominations, requested by or on behalf of the Depositary (in accordance with its customary procedures). Any led in exchange for an interest in a Global Note will bear the legend restricting transfers that is borne by such Global Note. will be effected through the DWAC system and an appropriate adjustment will be made in the records of the Notes Registrar in the principal amount of the relevant Global Note.
Certain Book-Entry	Procedures for Global Notes
(Clearstream) that respective settlement	the operations and procedures of DTC, Euroclear System (Euroclear) and Clearstream Banking, société anonyme to follow are provided solely as a matter of convenience. These operations and procedures are solely within the control of the systems and are subject to change by them from time to time. We take no responsibility for these operations and sinvestors to contact the system or their participants directly to discuss these matters.
DTC has advised us	that it is:
•	a limited purpose trust company organized under the laws of the State of New York,
•	a banking organization within the meaning of the New York Banking Law,
•	a member of the Federal Reserve System, and

• a clearing corporation within the meaning of the Uniform Commercial Code and a Clearing Agency registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Exchange Act.

DTC was created to hold securities for its participants (participants) and facilitate the clearance and settlement of securities transactions between participants through electronic book-entry changes in accounts of its participants, thereby eliminating the need for physical transfer and delivery of certificates. Participants include securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies and clearing corporations and may include certain other organizations. Indirect access to the DTC system is available to other entities such as banks, brokers, dealers and trust companies that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a participant, either directly or indirectly (indirect participants).

DTC has advised us that its current practice, upon the issuance of the Rule 144A Global Notes and the Regulation S Global Note, is to credit, on its internal system, the respective principal amount of the individual beneficial interests represented by such Global Notes to the accounts with DTC of the participants through which such interests are to be held. Ownership of beneficial interest in the Global Notes will be shown on, and the transfer of that ownership will be effected only through, records maintained by DTC or its nominees (with respect to interest of participants) and the records of participants and indirect participants (with respect to interests of persons other than participants).

As long as DTC, or its nominee, is the registered holder of a Global Note, DTC or such nominee, as the case may be, will be considered the sole owner and holder of the Notes represented by such Global Note for all purposes under the Indenture and the Notes. Except in the limited circumstances described above under Exchanges of Book-Entry Notes for Certificated Notes, owners of beneficial interests in a Global Note will not be entitled to have any portions of such Global Note registered in their names, and will not receive or be entitled to receive physical delivery of Notes in definitive form and will not be considered the owners or holders of the Global Note (or any Notes represented thereby) under the Indenture or the Notes.

Investors may hold their interests in the Rule 144A Global Note directly through DTC, if they are participants in such system, or indirectly through organizations (including Euroclear and Clearstream) which are participants in such system. Investors may, and

Table of Contents

during the Restricted Period must, hold their interests in the Regulation S Global Note through Euroclear or Clearstream, if they are participants in such systems, or indirectly through organizations which are participants in such systems. After the expiration of the Restricted Period (but not earlier), investors may also hold their interests in the Regulation S Global Note through organizations other than Euroclear and Clearstream that are participants in the DTC system. Euroclear and Clearstream will hold interests in the Regulation S Global Note on behalf of their participants through customers—securities accounts in their respective names on the books of their respective depositories. The depositories, in turn, will hold such interests in the Regulation S Global Note in customers—securities accounts in the depositories—names on the books of DTC. All interests in a Global Note, including those held through Euroclear or Clearstream, will be subject to the procedures and requirements of DTC. Those interests held through Euroclear or Clearstream will also be subject to the procedures and requirements of such system. Transfers and exchanges of interests in a Global Note will also be subject to the procedures described above under—Exchanges between the Rule 144A Global Note and the Regulation S Global Note, if applicable.

The laws of some states require that certain Persons take physical delivery in definitive form of securities that they own. Consequently, the ability to transfer beneficial interests in a Global Note to such persons may be limited to that extent. Because DTC can act only on behalf of its participants, which in turn act on behalf of indirect participants and certain banks, the ability of a Person having beneficial interests in a Global Note to pledge such interest to Persons or entities that do not participate in the DTC system, or otherwise take actions in respect of such interests, may be affected by the lack of a physical certificate evidencing such interests.

Payments of the principal, of, premium, if any, and interest on Global Notes will be made to DTC or its nominee as the registered owner thereof. Neither the Issuer, the Trustee nor any of their respective agents will have any responsibility or liability for any aspect of the records relating to or payments made on account of beneficial ownership interest in the Global Notes or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing any records relating to such beneficial ownership interests.

We expect that DTC or its nominee, upon receipt of any payment of principal of, premium, if any, or interest in respect of a Global Note representing any Notes held by it or its nominee, will credit participants—accounts with payments in amounts proportionate to their respective beneficial interests in the principal amount of such Global Note for such Notes as shown on the records of DTC or its nominee. We also expect that payments by participants to owners of beneficial interests in such Global Note held through such participants will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is now the case with securities held for the accounts of customers registered in—street name. Such payments will be the responsibility of such participants. None of the Issuer or the Trustee will be liable for any delay by DTC or any of its participants in identifying the beneficial owners of the Notes, and the Issuer and the Trustee may conclusively rely on and will be protected in relying on instructions from DTC or its nominee as the registered owner of the Notes for all purposes.

Except for trades involving only Euroclear and Clearstream participants, interests in the Global Notes will trade in DTC s Same-Day Funds Settlement System and secondary market trading activity in such interests will therefore settle in immediately available funds, subject in all cases to the rules and procedures of DTC and its participants. Transfers between participants in DTC will be effected in accordance with DTC s procedures, and will be settled in same-day funds. Transfers between participants in Euroclear and Clearstream will be affected in the ordinary way in accordance with their respective rules and operating procedures.

Subject to compliance with the transfer and exchange restrictions applicable to the Notes described elsewhere herein, cross-market transfers between DTC participants, on the one hand, and Euroclear or Clearstream participants, on the other hand, will be effected by DTC in accordance with DTC s rules on behalf of Euroclear or Clearstream, as the case may be, by its respective depositary; however, such cross-market transactions will require delivery of instructions to Euroclear or Clearstream, as the case may be, by the counterparty in such system in accordance with the rules and procedures and within the established deadlines (Brussels time) of such system. Euroclear or Clearstream, as the case may be, will, if the transaction meets its settlement requirements, deliver instructions to its respective depositary to take action to effect final settlement on its behalf by delivering or receiving interest in the relevant Global Note in DTC, and making or receiving payment in accordance with normal

procedures or same-day funds settlement applicable to DTC. Euroclear participants and Clearstream participants may not deliver instructions directly to the depositories for Euroclear or Clearstream.

Because of time zone differences, the securities account of a Euroclear or Clearstream participant purchasing an interest in a Global Note from a DTC participant will be credited, and any such crediting will be reported to the relevant Euroclear or Clearstream participant, during the securities settlement processing day (which must be a business day for Euroclear and Clearstream) immediately following the DTC settlement date. Cash received in Euroclear or Clearstream as a result of sales of interests in a Global Note by or through a Euroclear or Clearstream participant to a DTC participant will be received with value on the DTC settlement date but will be

Table of Contents

available in the relevant Euroclear or Clearstream cash account only as of the business day for Euroclear or Clearstream following the DTC settlement date.

DTC has advised us that it will take any action permitted to be taken by a holder of Notes only at the direction of one or more participants to whose accounts with DTC interests in the Global Notes are credited and only in respect of such portion of the aggregate principal amount of the Notes as to which such participant or participants has or have given such direction. However, if there is an Event of Default under the Notes, DTC reserves the right to exchange the Global Notes for legended Notes in certificated form, and to distribute such Notes to its participants.

Although DTC, Euroclear and Clearstream have agreed to the foregoing procedures in order to facilitate transfer of beneficial ownership interests in the Global Notes among participants of DTC, Euroclear and Clearstream, they are under no obligation to perform or continue to perform such procedures, and such procedures may be discontinued at any time. None of the Issuer, the Trustee nor any of their respective agents will have any responsibility for the performance by DTC, Euroclear, Clearstream or their participants or indirect participants of their respective obligations under the rules and procedures governing their operations, including maintaining, supervising or reviewing the records relating to or payments made on account of, beneficial ownership interests in Global Notes.

Table of Contents

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

Each broker-dealer that receives exchange notes for its own account pursuant to the exchange offer must acknowledge that it will deliver a prospectus in connection with any resale of such exchange notes. This prospectus, as it may be amended or supplemented from time to time, may be used by a broker-dealer in connection with resales of exchange notes received in exchange for original notes where such original notes were acquired as a result of market-making activities or other trading activities. The Issuer has agreed that, starting on the expiration date of the exchange offer and ending one hundred and eighty days after such date, it will make this prospectus available to any broker-dealer for use in connection with any such resale.

The Issuer will not receive any proceeds from any sale of exchange notes by broker-dealers. Exchange notes received by broker-dealers for their own account pursuant to the exchange offer may be sold from time to time in one or more transactions in the over-the-counter market, in negotiated transactions, through the writing of options on the exchange notes or a combination of such methods of resale, at market prices prevailing at the time of resale, at prices related to such prevailing market prices or at negotiated prices. Any such resale may be made directly to purchasers or to or through brokers or dealers who may receive compensation in the form of commissions or concessions from any such broker-dealer and/or the purchasers of any such exchange notes. Any broker-dealer that resells exchange notes that were received by it for its own account pursuant to the exchange offer and any broker or dealer that participates in a distribution of such exchange notes may be deemed to be an underwriter within the meaning of the Securities Act and any profit of any such resale of exchange notes and any commissions or concessions received by any such persons may be deemed to be underwriting compensation under the Securities Act. The letter of transmittal states that by acknowledging that it will deliver and by delivering a prospectus, a broker-dealer will not be deemed to admit that it is an underwriter within the meaning of the Securities Act.

For a period of 180 days after the expiration of the exchange offer, the Issuer will promptly send additional copies of this prospectus and any amendment or supplement to this prospectus to any broker-dealer that requests these documents in the letter of transmittal. The Issuer will indemnify the holders of the original notes (including any broker-dealers) against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act.

MATERIAL U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS

The following is a summary of material U.S. federal income tax consequences to a holder who exchanges its original notes for exchange notes pursuant to the exchange offer. This summary is based upon existing U.S. federal income tax law, which is subject to change, possibly with retroactive effect. This summary does not discuss all aspects of U.S. federal income taxation which may be important to particular investors in light of their individual investment circumstances, such as original notes held by investors subject to special tax rules (e.g., financial institutions, insurance companies, broker-dealers, tax-exempt organizations (including private foundations) and partnerships and their partners), or to persons that hold the original notes as part of a straddle, hedge, conversion, constructive sale, or other integrated security transaction for U.S. federal income tax purposes or that have a functional currency other than the U.S. dollar, all of whom may be subject to tax rules that differ significantly from those summarized below. In addition, this summary does not address any state, local, or non-U.S. tax considerations.

EACH HOLDER SHOULD CONSULT ITS TAX ADVISORS REGARDING THE PARTICULAR U.S. FEDERAL, STATE AND LOCAL AND FOREIGN INCOME AND OTHER TAX CONSEQUENCES OF EXCHANGING ORIGINAL NOTES FOR EXCHANGE NOTES PURSUANT TO THE EXCHANGE OFFER AND OTHER TAX CONSEQUENCES OF THE OWNERSHIP AND DISPOSITION OF THE EXCHANGE NOTES.

Exchange of an Original Note for an Exchange Note Pursuant to the Exchange Offer

The exchange of an original note for an exchange note pursuant to the exchange offer will not be a taxable event to holders for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Consequently, a holder of original notes will not recognize gain or loss, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, as a result of exchanging original notes for exchange notes pursuant to the exchange offer. In addition, an exchanging holder will have a holding period in the exchange notes that includes the holding period of the original notes exchanged therefor, such holder s adjusted tax basis in the exchange notes received will be the same as the adjusted tax basis of the original notes exchanged therefor immediately before such exchange.

LEGAL MATTERS

The validity of the exchange notes being offered hereby and certain other legal matters regarding the exchange notes will be passed upon for us by Pillsbury Winthrop Shaw Pittman LLP, our special securities counsel.

EXPERTS

The financial statements and management s assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting (which is included in Management s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting) incorporated in this Prospectus by reference to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012 have been so incorporated in reliance on the reports (which contains an explanatory paragraph on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting due to the exclusion of certain elements of the internal control over financial reporting of the WKRC-TV, WOAI-TV, WHP-TV, WPMI-TV, WJTC-TV, KSAS-TV, WHAM-TV, WLYH-TV, KMTW-TV, KBTV-TV, WRSP-TV, WCCU-TV and WBUI-TV stations that the registrant acquired as of December 31, 2012) of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an

independent registered public accounting firm, given on the authority of said firm as experts in auditing and accounting.

The audited combined financial statements of the High Plains Broadcasting Operating Company LLC Stations and Newport Television LLC Stations in Cincinnati, OH; Harrisburg, PA; Mobile, AL; Rochester, NY; San Antonio, TX; and Wichita, KS as of December 31, 2011 and for the year then ended incorporated by reference in this prospectus and elsewhere in the registration statement have been so incorporated by reference in reliance upon the report of Grant Thornton LLP, independent certified public accountants, upon the authority of said firm as experts in accounting and auditing.

INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE

The SEC allows us to incorporate by reference the information we file with them, which means that we can disclose important information to you by referring you to those documents. The information incorporated by reference is considered to be a part of this prospectus, and later information that we file with the SEC will automatically update and supersede this information. The documents we incorporate by reference are:

Table of Contents

- our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012, filed with the SEC on March 12, 2013;
- our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2013, filed with the SEC on May 7, 2013, our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2013, filed with the SEC on August 9, 2013, and our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2013, filed with the SEC on November 12, 2013; and
- our Current Reports on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on February 15, 2013, March 1, 2013, March 15, 2013, March 21, 2013, April 4, 2013, April 12, 2013 (and dated April 9, 2013), April 12, 2013 (and dated April 11, 2013), April 17, 2013, April 29, 2013, May 7, 2013, June 6, 2013, June 10, 2013, July 31, 2013, August 7, 2013, September 27, 2013, October 17, 2013, October 29, 2013, and November 6, 2013.

We are also incorporating by reference the documents that we file with the SEC pursuant to Section 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, other than reports or portions thereof furnished under Item 2.02 or 7.01 on Form 8-K and not specifically incorporated by reference, between the date of this prospectus and termination of the exchange offer. Any statement contained in a document incorporated or deemed to be incorporated by reference in this prospectus will be deemed to be modified or superseded for purposes of this prospectus to the extent that a statement contained in this prospectus or any other subsequently filed document that is deemed to be incorporated by reference herein modifies or supersedes the statement. Any statement so modified or superseded will not be deemed, except as so modified or superseded, to constitute a part of this prospectus.

You may request a copy of any or all of the documents incorporated by reference in this prospectus, at no cost, by writing or calling our offices at the following address:

Sinclair Broadcast Group, Inc. 10706 Beaver Dam Road Hunt Valley, MD 21030 Attention: David B. Amy

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

This prospectus is part of a registration statement on Form S-4 that we have filed with the SEC. The registration statement covers the exchange notes being offered and the guarantees of the exchange notes, and encompasses all amendments, exhibits, annexes, and schedules to the registration statement. This prospectus does not contain all the information in the exchange offer registration statement. For further information about the Issuer and the exchange offer, reference is made to the registration statement. This prospectus summarizes material provisions of agreements and other documents to which we refer herein. For a more complete understanding and description of such agreements or other documents, you should read the full text of these agreements and documents. We have filed such agreements and documents as exhibits to our registration statement.

We file periodic reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC. You may read and copy any document that we file with the SEC at the SEC s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. You may obtain further information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. Our SEC filings also are available to the public over the Internet at the SEC s website at http://www.sec.gov.

SINCLAIR TELEVISION GROUP, INC.

Offer to Exchange

\$350,000,000 6.375% Senior Notes due 2021, registered under the Securities Act of 1933, for any and all outstanding 6.375% Senior Notes due 2021 PROSPECTUS

, 2013

PART II

INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED IN PROSPECTUS

Item 20. Indemnification of Officers and Directors

Our articles of incorporation and bylaws require us to indemnify our directors and officers to the fullest extent permitted by Maryland law. Under current Maryland law, we will indemnify (i) any director or officer who has been successful, on the merits or otherwise, in the defense of a proceeding to which he was made a party by reason of his service in that capacity, against reasonable expense incurred by him in connection with the proceeding and (ii) any present or former director or officer against any claim or liability unless it is established that (a) his act or omission was material to the matter giving rise to the proceeding and was committed in bad faith or was the result of active and deliberate dishonesty; (b) he actually received an improper personal benefit in money, property or services; or (c) in the case of a criminal proceeding, he had reasonable cause to believe that his act or omission was unlawful. In addition, our articles of incorporation and bylaws require us to pay or reimburse, in advance of the final disposition of a proceeding, expenses incurred by a director or officer to the fullest extent provided by Maryland law. Current Maryland law provides that we shall have received, before providing any such payment or reimbursement, (i) a written affirmation by the director or officer of his good faith belief that he has met the standard of conduct necessary for indemnification by us as authorized by Maryland law and our bylaws and (ii) a written undertaking by or on his behalf to repay the amount paid or reimbursed by us if it shall ultimately be determined that the standard of conduct was not met. Our articles of association and bylaws also permit our Board of Directors to provide indemnification, payment or reimbursement of expenses to any of our employees or agents in such capacity. Our articles of incorporation also provide that no amendment thereto may limit or eliminate this limitation of liability with respect to events occurring prior to the effective date of such amendment.

Our bylaws also provide that each director shall perform his duties in good faith and with such care as an ordinarily prudent person in like position would use under similar circumstances. In performing his duties, each director shall be entitled to rely on information, opinions, reports or statements, including financial statements and other financial data, in which case prepared or presented by: (a) one or more officers or employees of ours whom the director reasonably believes to be reliable and competent in the matters presented; (b) counsel, certified public accountants or other persons as to matters which the director reasonably believes to be within such person s professional or expert competence; or (c) a Committee of our Board of Directors that has been duly designated upon which such director does not serve as to matters within its designated authority, which Committee such director reasonably believes to merit confidence. Our bylaws provide that a director shall not be considered to be acting in good faith if he has knowledge concerning the matter in question that would cause such reliance described above to be unwarranted. A director who performs his duties in compliance with the foregoing shall have no liability by reason of being or having been a director of ours.

Item 21. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

- (a) The attached exhibit index is incorporated by reference herein.
- (b) No financial statement schedules are required to be filed herewith pursuant to this Item.

Item 22. Undertakings

(a) The undersigned registrant (the Registrant) hereby undertakes that, for purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each filing of the Registrant s annual report pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 that is incorporated by reference in the Registration Statement shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial *bona fide* offering thereof.

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933 may be permitted to directors, officers and controlling persons of the Registrant pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, the Registrant has been advised that in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange Commission such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a claim for indemnification against such liabilities (other than the payment by the Registrant of expenses incurred or paid by a director, officer or controlling person of the registrant in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is asserted by such director, officer or controlling person in connection with the securities being registered, the Registrant will, unless in the opinion of its counsel the matter has been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a court of appropriate

Table of Contents

jurisdiction the questi adjudication of such i	ion whether such indemnification by it is against public policy as expressed in the Act and will be governed by the final issue.
The undersigned regis	strants hereby undertake:
(1) statement:	To file, during any period in which offers or sales are being made, a post-effective amendment to this registration
(i)	To include any prospectus required by Section 10(a)(3) of the Securities Act of 1933;
the registration staten securities offered wor may be reflected in the changes in volume an	To reflect in the prospectus any facts or events arising after the effective date of the registration statement (or the most amendment thereof) which, individually or in the aggregate, represent a fundamental change in the information set forth in nent. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any increase or decrease in the volume of securities offered (if the total dollar value of all ont exceed that which was registered) and any deviation from the low or high of the estimated maximum offering range are form of prospectus filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Rule 424(b) if, in the aggregate, the ad price represent no more than a 20% change in the maximum aggregate offering price set forth in the Calculation of only in the effective registration statement;
statement or any mate (c) (1) (ii) do not appl	To include any material information with respect to the plan of distribution not previously disclosed in the registration erial change to such information in the registration statement; provided, however, that paragraphs (c) (1) (i) and ly if the information required to be included in a post-effective amendment by these paragraphs is contained in periodic egistrants pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 that are incorporated by tration statement;
be deemed to be a new	That, for the purpose of determining liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each such post-effective amendment shall we registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be ital bona fide offering thereof; and
	To remove from registration by means of a post-effective amendment any of the securities being registered which remain tion of the exchange offer.
the prospectus pursua	The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes to respond to requests for information that is incorporated by reference into unt to Items 4, 10(b), 11 or 13 of this form within one business day of receipt of such request, and to send the incorporated ass mail or other equally prompt means. This includes information contained in the documents filed subsequent to the

effective date of the Registration Statement through the date of responding to the request.

(c) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes to supply by means of a post-effective amendment all information concerning this transaction that was not the subject of and included in the Registration Statement when it became effective.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act, the registrant guarantor has duly caused this Registration Statement on Form S-4 to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Hunt Valley, State of Maryland, on December 6, 2013.

SINCLAIR BROADCAST GROUP, INC.

By: /s/ David B. Amy

Name: David B. Amy

Title: Executive Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer

SINCLAIR TELEVISION GROUP, INC., as Issuer

By: /s/ David B. Amy

Name: David B. Amy Title: Secretary

OTHER GUARANTORS:

WLFL, INC.

SINCLAIR MEDIA I, INC.

WSMH. INC.

WSTR LICENSEE, INC.

WGME, INC.

SINCLAIR MEDIA III, INC.

WTTO, INC.

WTVZ, INC.

KOCB, INC.

WDKY, INC.

WYZZ LICENSEE, INC.

WSYX LICENSEE, INC.

WTWC, INC.

SINCLAIR TELEVISION OF NASHVILLE, INC.

SINCLAIR ACQUISITION VII, INC.

SINCLAIR ACQUISITION VIII, INC.

SINCLAIR ACQUISITION IX, INC.

SINCLAIR ACQUISITION X, INC.

MONTECITO BROADCASTING CORPORATION

CHANNEL 33, INC.

NEW YORK TELEVISION, INC.

BIRMINGHAM (WABM-TV) LICENSEE, INC.

RALEIGH (WRDC-TV) LICENSEE, INC.

SAN ANTONIO (KRRT-TV) LICENSEE, INC.

WVTV LICENSEE, INC.

CHESAPEAKE TELEVISION, INC.

WJAC, INC.

SINCLAIR TELEVISION OF SEATTLE, INC.

FISHER PROPERTIES, INC.

SINCLAIR MEDIA SERVICES COMPANY SINCLAIR TELEVISION MEDIA, INC. FISHER MILLS, INC. SINCLAIR TELEVISION OF WASHINGTON, INC.

KBSI LICENSEE L.P.

SINCLAIR PROPERTIES, LLC

WMMP LICENSEE L.P. WSYT LICENSEE L.P.

By: Sinclair Properties, LLC, General Partner

WKEF LICENSEE L.P.

By: Sinclair Communications, LLC, General Partner By: Sinclair Television Group, Inc., Sole Member of

Sinclair Communications, LLC

WGME LICENSEE, LLC

By: WGME, Inc., Sole Member

WICD LICENSEE, LLC WICS LICENSEE, LLC

SINCLAIR TELEVISION OF ILLINOIS, LLC

By: Illinois Television, LLC, Member

By: Sinclair Communications LLC, Sole Member of

Illinois Television, LLC

By: Sinclair Television Group, Inc., Sole Member of

Sinclair Communications, LLC

WSMH LICENSEE, LLC

By: WSMH, Inc., Member

WPGH LICENSEE, LLC KDNL LICENSEE, LLC WCWB LICENSEE, LLC

By: Sinclair Media I, Inc., Sole Member

WTVZ LICENSEE, LLC

By: WTVZ, Inc., Sole Member

KLGT LICENSEE, LLC

By: WUCW, LLC, Sole Member

By: Sinclair Communications, LLC, Sole Member
By: Sinclair Television Group, Inc., Sole Member

WCGV LICENSEE, LLC

By: Milwaukee Television, LLC, Sole Member

By: Sinclair Communications, LLC Sole Member of

Milwaukee Television, LLC

By: Sinclair Television Group, Inc., Sole Member of

Sinclair Communications, LLC

WLFL LICENSEE, LLC

WRDC, LLC

By: WLFL, Inc., Sole Member

WTTO LICENSEE, LLC

By: WTTO, Inc., Sole Member

WTWC LICENSEE, LLC

By: WTWC, Inc., Sole Member

KOCB LICENSEE, LLC

By: KOCB, Inc., Sole Member

WDKY LICENSEE, LLC

KOKH, LLC

By: WDKY, Inc., Sole Member

KOKH LICENSEE, LLC

By: KOKH, LLC, Sole Member of KOKH Licensee,

LLC

By: WDKY, Inc., Sole Member of KOKH, LLC

WCHS LICENSEE, LLC WVAH LICENSEE, LLC

By: Sinclair Media III, Inc., Sole Member

WZTV LICENSEE, LLC WNAB LICENSEE, LLC WTVC LICENSEE, LLC WUXP LICENSEE, LLC

By: Sinclair Television of Nashville, Inc., Sole Member

CHESAPEAKE TELEVISION LICENSEE, LLC

KABB LICENSEE, LLC WLOS LICENSEE, LLC

SAN ANTONIO TELEVISION, LLC

KEYE LICENSEE, LLC KUTV LICENSEE, LLC WLWC LICENSEE, LLC WTVX LICENSEE, LLC WPEC LICENSEE, LLC WWMT LICENSEE, LLC WRGB LICENSEE, LLC WCWN LICENSEE, LLC

WLAJ LICENSEE, LLC

KTVL LICENSEE, LLC

Table of Contents

KFDM LICENSEE, LLC WUCW, LLC WWHO LICENSEE, LLC WFGX LICENSEE, LLC **KUPN LICENSEE, LLC** WEAR LICENSEE, LLC ILLINOIS TELEVISION, LLC KGAN LICENSEE, LLC KFXA LICENSEE, LLC WUPN LICENSEE, LLC WUTV LICENSEE, LLC WXLV LICENSEE, LLC WMSN LICENSEE, LLC WUHF LICENSEE, LLC MILWAUKEE TELEVISION, LLC WTAT LICENSEE, LLC WRLH LICENSEE, LLC WRGT LICENSEE, LLC KSAS LICENSEE, LLC WHP LICENSEE, LLC WKRC LICENSEE, LLC WOAI LICENSEE, LLC WTTA LICENSEE, LLC KFOX LICENSEE, LLC KRXI LICENSEE, LLC WTOV LICENSEE, LLC WJAC LICENSEE, LLC WFXL LICENSEE, LLC KVII LICENSEE, LLC **KXRM LICENSEE, LLC** WACH LICENSEE, LLC KGBT LICENSEE, LLC KTVO LICENSEE, LLC WPDE LICENSEE, LLC KHQA LICENSEE, LLC WSTQ LICENSEE, LLC WPBN LICENSEE, LLC KRCG LICENSEE, LLC WLUC LICENSEE, LLC WHOI LICENSEE, LLC WNWO LICENSEE, LLC KPTH LICENSEE, LLC WOLF LICENSEE, LLC WGFL LICENSEE, LLC **WQMY LICENSEE, LLC** SINCLAIR TELEVISION OF EL PASO, LLC By: Sinclair Communications, LLC, Sole Member

By:

Sinclair Television Group, Inc., Sole Member of

Sinclair Communications, LLC

SINCLAIR PROGRAMMING COMPANY, LLC

SINCLAIR COMMUNICATIONS, LLC

CHESAPEAKE MEDIA I, LLC

SINCLAIR TELEVISION OF FRESNO, LLC SINCLAIR TELEVISION OF OMAHA, LLC

By: Sinclair Television Group, Inc., Sole Member

KDSM, LLC

By: Sinclair Broadcast Group, Inc., Sole Member

KDSM LICENSEE, LLC

By: KDSM, LLC, Sole Member of KDSM Licensee,

LLC

By: Sinclair Broadcast Group, Inc., Sole Member of

KDSM, LLC

WDKA LICENSEE, LLC WNYS LICENSEE, LLC

By: Sinclair Properties, LLC, Sole Member

SINCLAIR BROADCASTING OF SEATTLE, LLC SINCLAIR TELEVISION OF PORTLAND, LLC

SINCLAIR TELEVISION OF BAKERSFIELD, LLC

SINCLAIR RADIO OF SEATTLE, LLC SINCLAIR MEDIA OF BOISE, LLC

SINCLAIR TELEVISION OF OREGON, LLC

SINCLAIR MEDIA OF SEATTLE, LLC SINCLAIR MEDIA OF IDAHO, LLC

SINCLAIR MEDIA OF WASHINGTON, LLC

SINCLAIR INTERACTIVE MEDIA, LLC

SINCLAIR SEATTLE LICENSEE, LLC

SINCLAIR BAKERSFIELD LICENSEE, LLC

SINCLAIR BOISE LICENSEE, LLC

SINCLAIR IDAHO FALLS LICENSEE, LLC

SINCLAIR YAKIMA LICENSEE, LLC

SINCLAIR LEWISTON LICENSEE, LLC

SINCLAIR PORTLAND LICENSEE, LLC

SINCLAIR EUGENE LICENSEE, LLC

SINCLAIR RADIO OF SEATTLE LICENSEE, LLC

By: Sinclair Television Media, Inc., Sole Member

SINCLAIR KENNEWICK LICENSEE, LLC

SINCLAIR La GRANDE LICENSEE, LLC

By: Sinclair Television of Washington, Inc.

KFRE LICENSEE, LLC KMPH LICENSEE, LLC

By: Sinclair Television of Fresno, LLC, Sole Member By: Sinclair Television Group, Inc. Sole Member of

Sinclair Television of Fresno, LLC

KPTM LICENSEE, LLC

Table of Contents

By: Sinclair Television of Omaha, LLC, Sole Member By: Sinclair Television Group, Inc., Sole Member of

Sinclair Television of Omaha, LLC

KDBC LICENSEE, LLC

By: Sinclair Television of El Paso, LLC, Sole Member By: Sinclair Communications, LLC, Sole Member of

Sinclair Television of El Paso, LLC

By: Sinclair Television Group, Inc., Sole Member of

Sinclair Communications, LLC

By: /s/ David B. Amy

David B. Amy, in his capacity as Executive Vice President, Secretary or Manager, as the case may be

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS that the individuals whose signatures appear below constitute and appoint David D. Smith, David B. Amy and David R. Bochenek, and each of them, his true and lawful attorney-in-fact and agents with full and several power of substitution, for him and his name, place and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments (including post-effective amendments) to this registration statement, and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto, and all documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in fact and agents, and each of them full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done in and about the premises, as fully to all intents and purposes as he or she might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorney-in-fact and agents or any of them, or their substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, this Registration Statement on Form S-4 has been signed by the following persons in the capacities and on December 6, 2013.

SIGNATURE TITLE

/s/ David D. Smith David D. Smith

Television Group, Inc. and the other Guarantors listed above)

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Sinclair Broadcast Group, Inc. and Treasurer and Director of Sinclair Television Group, Inc. and Director, or such other capacity identified above, of the Guarantors listed above

Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer, President of Sinclair Broadcast Group, Inc. and Sinclair Television Group, Inc. and Director, or such

other capacity identified above, of the Guarantors

(Principal Executive Officer of Sinclair Broadcast Group, Inc., Sinclair

/s/ David B. Amy David B. Amy

> Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer (Principal Accounting Officer)

(Principal Financial Officer)

/s/ David R. Bochenek David R. Bochenek

Director

A TO THE STATE OF THE STATE OF

/s/ Frederick G. Smith Frederick G. Smith

Director

/s/ J. Duncan Smith J. Duncan Smith

Table of Contents

/s/ Robert E. Smith Director

Robert E. Smith

/s/ Daniel C. Keith Director

Daniel C. Keith

/s/ Martin R. Leader Director

Martin R. Leader

/s/ Lawrence E. McCanna Director

Lawrence E. McCanna

EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit	Description of Exhibit
4.1	Indenture related to the 6.375% Senior Notes due 2021, dated as of October 11, 2013, among Sinclair Television Group, Inc., the guarantors named therein and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (including forms of 6.375% Senior Notes due 2021) (incorporated by reference to the indicated exhibit filed with Sinclair s Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 17, 2013).
4.2	Form of Note relating to the original notes (included in Exhibit 4.1).
4.3	Form of Note relating to the exchange notes (included in Exhibit 4.1).
4.4	Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of October 11, 2013, among Sinclair Television Group, Inc., the guarantors named therein, and Deutsche Bank Securities Inc., as representative for J.P. Morgan Securities LLC, RBC Capital Markets, LLC, SunTrust Robinson Humphrey, Inc. and Wells Fargo Securities, LLC (incorporated by reference to the indicated exhibit filed with Sinclair s Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 17, 2013).
5.1*	Opinion of Pillsbury Winthrop Shaw Pittman LLP.
12.1*	Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges.
21.1	Subsidiaries of the Registrant (incorporated by reference to the indicated exhibit filed with Sinclair s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed March 12, 2013).
23.1*	Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
23.2*	Consent of Grant Thornton LLP, Independent Certified Public Accountants.
23.3*	Consent of Pillsbury Winthrop Shaw Pittman LLP (included in Exhibit 5.1).
24.1*	Power of Attorney (included on the signature pages hereof).
25.1*	Statement of Eligibility of Trustee.
99.1*	Form of Letter of Transmittal.
99.2*	Form of Letter to Brokers, Dealers, Commercial Banks, Trust Companies and other Nominees.
99.3*	Form of Letter to Clients.
99.4*	Form of Notice of Guaranteed Delivery.
99.5*	Form of Instructions from Beneficial Owner.

^{*} Filed herewith.